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SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

JUNE 30, 1999

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Non-Cash Non-Cash
Program Title Number Number Receipts Receipts Disbursements Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRGICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Nutriton Cluster:
Food Distribution Program 03-PU-98 10.550 $0 $55,938 $0 $74,710
National School Lunch Program 03-PU-98 10.555 9,451 0 9,451 0
National School Lunch Program 03-PU-99 10.555 23,337 0 23,337 0
National School Lunch Program 04-PU-98 10.555 14,109 0 14,109 0
National School Lunch Program 04-PU-99 10.555 35,012 0 $35,012 0
Total CFDA # 10.555 81,909 0 81,909 0
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture -
Nutrition Cluster 81,909 55,938 81,909 74,710
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Telecommunications Act Grant n/a 84 XXX 1,998 0 0 0
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Title | C1-S1-99 84.010 258,316 0 192,204 0
Special Education Cluster:
Title VI-B 6B-SF-98 84.027 0 0 1,462 0
Title VI-B 6B-SF-99 84.027 124,971 0 100,387 0
Total CFDA # 84.027 124,971 0 101,849 0
Public School Preschool PG-S1-98 84.173 0 0 6,391 0
Public School Preschool PG-S1-99 84.173 11,154 0 1,590 0
Total CFDA # 84.173 11,154 0 7,981 0
Total Special Education Cluster 136,125 0 109,830 0
Innovative Education Program Strategies C2-S1-96 84.298 (140) 0 (140) 0
Innovative Education Program Strategies C2-S1-98 84.298 0 0 8,585 0
Innovative Education Program Strategies C2-S1-99 84.298 16,290 0 5,340 0
Total CFDA # 84.298 16,150 0 13,785 0
Drug Free Schools DR-S1-98 84.186 0 0 7,402 0
Total CFDA # 84.186 0 0 7,402 0
Eisenhower Prof Development State Grant  MS-S1-98 84.281 0 0 8,788 0
Eisenhower Prof Development State Grant ~ MS-S1-99 84.281 13,019 0 6,263 0
Total CFDA # 84.281 13,019 0 15,051 0
Goals 2000 G2-S4-99 84.276 2,094 0 2,094 0
School to Work WK-BE-98 n/a 10,000 0 9,700 0
Passed Through the Great Oaks Institute &
Career Development:
Carl Perkins / Vocational Education 20-C1-98 84.048 3,796 0 3,796 0
Carl Perkins / Vocational Education 20-C1-99 84.048 7,825 0 7,825 0
Total CFDA # 84.048 11,621 0 11,621 0
Total Department of Education 449,323 0 361,687 0
Total Federal Assistance $531,232 $55,938 $443,596 $74,710

The accompanying notes to this schedule are an integral part of this schedule.
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is a summary of the activity of the District’s
federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported on the schedule at the fair market value of the commaodities received
and consumed. Cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants.
It is assumed federal monies are expended first. At June 30, 1999, the District had no significant food
commodities in inventory.

NOTE C - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS
Certain Federal programs require that the Government contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to

support the Federally-funded programs. The Government has complied with the matching requirements.
The expenditure of non-Federal matching funds is not included on the Schedule.

Loveland City School District 2



250 West Court Street

STATE OF OHIO Suite 150 E

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
Telephone 513-361-8550

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-368-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Loveland City School District
Hamilton County

400 Loveland-Madeira Road
Loveland, Ohio 45140

To The Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Loveland City School District, Hamilton
County, Ohio (the District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 23, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the District in a separate letter dated December 23, 1999.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered District’s internal control over financial reporting in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have
reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated December 23, 1999.

Loveland City School District 3



Loveland City School District

Hamilton County

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance and on
Internal Control Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, and Board of
Education, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

December 23, 1999
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250 West Court Street

STATE OF OHIO Suite 150 E

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
Telephone 513-361-8550

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-368-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Loveland City School District
Hamilton County

400 Loveland-Madeira Road
Loveland, Ohio 45140

To The Board of Education:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Loveland City School District, Hamilton County, Ohio, (the District)
with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended
June 30, 1999. The District’'s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of the District's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the District’'s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to its major federal program for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Districtis responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Loveland City School District 5



Loveland City School District
Hamilton County
Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance and
Internal Control Required by Governmental Auditing Standards
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Districtas of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 1999. Our audit was performed for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Board of Education,

and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

December 23, 1999

Loveland City School District 6



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
JUNE 30, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)()

Type of Financial Statement Opinion

Unqualified

(d)(1)(ii)

Were there any material control
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(ii)

Were there any other reportable
control weakness conditions reported
at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(iii)

Was there any reported material non-
compliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(iv)

Were there any material internal
control weakness conditions reported
for the major federal program?

No

(d)(1)(iv)

Were there any other reportable
internal control weakness conditions
reported for the major federal
program?

No

(d)(1)(V)

Type of Major Program’s Compliance
Opinion

Unqualified

(d)(1)(vi)

Are there any reportable findings
under § .5107?

No

(d)(1)(vii)

Major Program (list):

Title 1- CFDA #84.010

(d)(1)(viii)

Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs

Type A > $300,000
Type B - all other programs

(d)(1)(ix)

Low Risk Auditee?

Yes

Loveland City School District




SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
JUNE 30, 1999
(Continued)

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None

Loveland City School District
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Loveland City School District

757 South Lebanon Road « Loveland, Ohio 45140
Telephone {513) 683-5600
Fax Number 683-5697

December 29, 1999
To the Citizens and Board of Education of the Loveland City School District:

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the Loveland City School District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data, and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. . This report
is prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as set
fourth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other recognized
" authoritative sources. We believe the enclosed data is fairly presented in all material
aspects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included. This report has been prepared by the Treasurer’s
Office and includes the unqualified opinion of our independent auditor, Jim Petro,
Auditor of State.

The CAFR is presented in the following three sections:

Introductory Section — This section introduces the reader to the report and includes the
table of contents, this transmittal letter, a list of principal and elected officials, and the
District’s organizational chart.

Financial Section — This section includes the general purpose financial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules as
well as the auditor’s report.

Statistical Section-The information preseﬁted in this section is designated to reflect social
and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the District.

LOVELAND INTERMEDIATE LOVELAND-MIAME ELEMENTARY L1 OYD MANN PRIMARY

HIGH SCHOOL MIDDLE SCHOOL S0 Loveland-Madeim Rd. . 6740 Loveland-Miamille .

#1 Tiger Trail 801 S Lebanon Rd. . 600 Loveland-Madeira R5d.



THE REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES PROVIDED

This report includes all funds and account groups of the District. The District also
acts as fiscal agent for State funds distributed to parochial schools located within the
District boundaries. This fiduciary responsibility is included in the reporting entity as an
agency fund. Although these organizations share operational and service similarity with
the District, each is a separate and distinct entity. Because of their independent nature,
none of these organizations’ financial statements are included in this report.

The District provides a full range of traditional and non-traditional educational
programs and services. These include elementary and secondary curriculum offerings at
the general, college preparatory, advanced placement, gifted, special education and
vocational levels; a broad range of co-curricular and extra-curricular activities; adult and
community education offerings; special education programs and community recreation
activities.

MAJOR INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR

Dr. Michael Ciine presented the following goals to the Board of Education and
Loveland Community in conjunction with the initial phases of the District’s facilities
Improvement program.

Our major emphasis for the coming year will be planning the first phase for a
smooth transition of our reorganization of grade levels. The first transition (2000-01
school year) will have the fifth and sixth grade moving into the new building and the
eighth grade temporarily housed in the High School while renovation takes place at the
Middle School. The following year (2001-02 school year), the schools will make the full
reorganization of grade levels; preschool and kindergarten at Lloyd Mann; Grade 1 and 2
at Loveland Miami; Grade 3 and 4 at Loveland Intermediate; Grade 5 and 6 in the new
building; Grade 7 and 8 in the Middle School; Grades 9 through 12 at the High School.

The second point of emphasis will be to put in place a process called a
Continuous Improvement Plan (CIP). The school district is ready for targeting
improvements on the Local Report Card. The process has already begun with our special
education program and our talented and gifted program. Other subject and program areas
of the curriculum will be scheduled for review in fiscal year 2000.

Additional areas of emphasis will include construction of the new 5™ and 6"
grade school. This facility will include 42 classrooms, a gymnasium and new media
center and new cafeteria to be shared with 7% and 8" grade in the remodeled middle
school. The existing high school will receive 16 additional classrooms, a greatly
enlarged music area, additional cafeteria space and a second gymnasium. Both facilities
will be available for the 2000-01 school year. Finally, total remodeling of the existing
middle school, and additions and remodeling to Loveland intermediate, Loveland Miami
and Lloyd Mann schools are planned. These projects will begin during the summer of
2000 and be completed for the 2001-2002 school year.



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOQOK

The District is just northeast of the City of Cincinnati. The School’s Community
lies in the corners of the counties of Hamilton, Clermont and Warren and is comprised of
approximately 10.6 square miles. The District surrounds the City of Loveland and
overlaps portions of the townships of Symmes, Miami and Hamilton. The following
chart demonstrates the representation of the registered voters by their political
subdivisions.

LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
VOTER DISTRIBUTION GRAPH

1998 TOTAL REGISTERED VOTERS e -

Hamitton Twp
2%

SHOWN BY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION WITHIN EACH COUNYY

Voter distributions have significantly shifted in the past decade. Miami Township
continues to grow with new upper middle-class housing developments that contribute a
greater proportion of property tax revenues with respects to the costs associated with
education the children from these families. This ten-year trend in growth, which
originated on the Hamilton County section of the District in Symmes Township, has
brought with it an extremely involved and proactive community, which is evidenced by
our most recent ballot issues.

In 1996, Loveland City Schools passed a 5.6 mil operating levy by a 60%
approval while drawing 75% of the registered voters, This past year, the Community
continued to show their support of Loveland City Schools with a nearly 70% voter turn-
out in November and decidedly approved a plan to completely overhaul the District’s



facilities by passing a thirty-two million-dollar Construction, Additions, Renovations and
Equipment (CARE) bond issue.

Property tax revenues of the residential/agricultural class predominantly support
Loveland City Schools. Through the continued conversion of agricultural land into
upscale residential properties being inhabited by well-educated upper middle-class
families, Loveland City Schools is secure in its economic future in that the community
understands and supports the value of education not just for sustaining property values,
but because of the intrinsic value it has brought to their own lives and their desire to
insure this for the children.

Additionally, the ability of the Loveland Community to provide for the District
has comparatively increased in the past decade. With the median income of $51,721,
Loveland City Schools enjoys the status of being 35 in the State of Ohio. This compares
to a position of 50™ with a median income of $32,754 just ten years earlier. Similarly,
assessed property values have increased from $50,389 per pupil and .’2',73'”d in the State to
$95,383 per pupil and 143" from 1989 to 1999. R

With that, the District is as stable as the region in which the Community works.
Since Loveland City Schools is the largest employer within the District’s boundaries, it is
safe to say that the District’s economic stability is as broad based as the businesses in the
Cincinnati and surrounding areas which employ these taxpayers.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The District’s accounting system is organized on a “fund” basis. Each fund and
account group is a distinct, self-balancing entity. For purposes of the District’s CAFR the
funds are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
GAAP, as more fully described in the notes to the financial statements provides for a
modified accrual basis of accounting for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds, and for full
accrual basis of accounting for all other funds.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected
from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a



control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from its implementation; and
(2) the valuation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

“«

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The District maintains its accounts, appropriations, and other financial records in
accordance with the procedures established and prescribed by the Auditor of State. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriation resolution approved by the Board of Education.
The level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is established at the fund level. The District also maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts at year-end are carried forward to succeeding years and are not re-
appropriated. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial

section of this report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS

Revenues for the District’s general operating fund totaled $22,615,318,
representing and increase of $4,071,993 (22%) over 1998.

-

Continued growth in both residential and commercial properties will allow for a steady
increase in tax revenues in the future.

The amount of 1999 revenues and increases (decreases) over 1998 are presented below:

Increase

Fiscal Fiscal (Decrease)
99 98 from 1998

Revenues:
Taxes $13,883,486 $10,862,965 $3,020,521
Intergovernmenial 8,221,555 7,209,493 1,012,062
Investment Revenue 279,688 245,418 34,270
Tuition and Fees 167,470 157,186 10,284
Other Revenues 63.119 137,581 (74.462)
Total Revenues $22.615.318 $18.612.643 $4.002.675



Expenditures for the District’s general operating fund totaled $20,451,890, representing
an increase of $2,280,164 (12.54%) over 1998. A significant portion of the increase is
the result of efforts fo upgrade the District’s pupil transportation system. This effort is
clearly reflected in the 74% increase in pupil transportation expenditures.

The amount of 1999 expenditures increases (decreases) are presented below:

Increase
Fiscal Fiscal (Decrease)
99 98 from 1998
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular $10,224,345 $9,829,515 $394,830
Special 1,703,951 1,554,854 149,097
Vocational 452,039 450,171 1,868
Other 27,102 0 27,102
Support Services:
Pupils 863,860 836,350 27,510
Instructional Staff - 292,553 282,385 10,168
Board of Education 68,693 52,313 16,380
Administration 1,633,757 965,049 668,748
Fiscal 566,339 435,314 131,025
Business 331,390 240,643 90,747
Operations and
Maintenance 1,970,441 1,833,557 136,884
Pupil Transportation 1,868,038 1,071,311 796,727
Central 228,734 282,408 (53,674)
Operation of Non
-Instructional Services 0 0 0
Extracurricular Activities 220,508 193,626 26,882
Capital Outlay 100 14,026 (13,926)
Debt Service 0 130,204 (130,204)
Total $20.451.890 $18.171,726 $2.280,164
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for certain revenue sources restricted by law or other
formal actions to be expended for a specific purpose. The sources are primarily grants
and entitlements. In 1999, all Special Revenue Funds on a combined basis operated with
$1,373,668 in revenues and other financial sources and $1,185,652 in expenditures and
other financing uses.

Capital Projects Fund :
The District’s Capital Projects Fund is used to fund major eqmpment purchases and major

capital improvement projects such as parking lots, bus purchases, roofs and heating and

10



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The general purpose financial statements of the District include the basic combined financial
statements, presented by fund type and account group, and notes to the financial statements that
are essential to the fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows.




Awards

The District will seek the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting from the Government Finance Officer’s Association of the United States
(GFOA). We feel that the contents of the report are easily readable, efficiently organized,
and conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The District believes our current
report conforms to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a certificate.

The District will also seek the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO)
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
This award certifies that a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report substantially
conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as recommended and
adopted by the Association of School Business Officials. This award is granted only after
an extensive review of the report by an expert panel of certified public accountants and
practicing school business officials.

Acknowledgements
The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated service of the staff of
the Treasurer’s Office.

Finally, this report would not have been possible without the leadership and support of
the District’s Board of Education, and the support of the Loveland Schools Community.

Sincerely,

Qf' oS s PF

Jill Manville
Treasurer
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Loveland City School
District, Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

C‘«a :BRN-&-/&

President

oo e

Executive Director

16



FINANCIAL

SECTION



250 West Court Street

STATE OF OHIO Suite 150 E
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

. Telephone  513-361-8550
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-36B-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.ch.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Education
Loveland City School District
757 South Lebanon Road
Loveland, Ohio 45140

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Loveland City School District,
Hamilton County, {the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
slatements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

{n our cpinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Loveland City School District, Hamilton County, as of June 3G, 1998, and
the results of its operations and the cash flows of iis proprietary fund types for the year then ended in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standard's, we have also issued our report dated December 23,
1999 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of iis
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

QOur auditwas performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
of the District taken as a whole. The combining and individuat fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of conients, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not 2 required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical section of this report and therefore
express no opinion thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

December 23, 1999
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GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The general purpose financial statements of the District include the basic combined financial
statements, presented by fund type and account group, and notes to the financial statements that
are essential to the fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows.




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Combined Balance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Groups

June 30, 1999

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS:
Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments

Restricted equity in pooled cash
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Accrued Interest
Iuterfimd receivable
Inventory held for resale
Fixed assets {net, where applicable,
of accumulsted deprecistion)
Other debits:

Amount available ja Debt Service Fund
for retirement of general obligation bonds

Amaount to be provided from
general govenument resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Lishilities
Accounts payable
Accmed interest payable
Accrued wages aud benefits
Comp dab payabl
Contracts payable
Retainage payable
Interfund payable
Deferred revenue
Due to students
Netes paysble
Geueral obligations bonds payable

“Total liabilitics

Fund Equity and other credits:
Investment in general fixed asseis
Retained earmnmgs:
Unreserved
Fund balsnces:
Reserved:
Reserved for property taxes
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for set-aside
Reserved for debt service

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total fimd equity and other credits

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND QTHER CREDITS

Scc accompanying totes

GOVERNMENTAL FIIND TYPES
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects

$619.645 $459,461 $22.473.912 $30,502,362
273,760 [} 0 0
12,379,115 0 2,000,000 ]
1,151 G [} a

783 29,357 o 0

o 1] 1] 276,222

53,477 0 0 [}

G /] a g

a 0 ] +]

0 4] 0 0

0 ¢ o] 0
13,327,935 488,818 24,473,912 30,778,584
56,123 4,266 0 40,772

0 1] ] 333,233
2,284,198 80,644 1] i)
71,226 0 ] a

[ 0 1] 215,052

[+ ] [+ 18,025

g 21,688 g h¢]
9,238,593 ¢ 1,162,211 0
[ 4] 0 0

[+} 6 8 20,008,000

0 G ¢ @
11,650,140 106,598 1,162,211 28,607,186
0 1] o [+

g 4] [} 1]
3,140,522 0 837,789 []
14,224 16,660 ¢ 15,865,675
273,760 & o &

0 4 22,473,912 o
(1,750,711) 365,620 (4 {5,694,277)
1,677,795 382,220 23,311,701 10,171,398
$13,327,935 $488,818 $24,473912 $30,778,584
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PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS ~
General General Totals
Intemal Trust Fixed Long-Term {Memomndum
Enterprise Service and Agency Assets Obligations Only}

$3,11 $9,857 $67,533 30 30 . $54,135885
i ] o ] o 273,760

1] Q 0 ] i 14,379,115

4] i} 4] 0 ] 1,151
10,922 a o 0 0 41,062
4] a g ol ¢ 276,222

4] 0 o 1] 0 . 53477
20,472 ] ] [ k4] 20,472
98,534 [t o 23,387,268 4] 23,485,802
¢ 1] [H] 0 23,311,701 23,311,701

¢ 1+ Q 0 23,762,655 23,762,655
133,03% 9,857 67,533 23,387,263 47,074,356 139,741,302
i R ] 0 1] G 101,161

4] [v] 4] 1] Q 333,333
82,554 Q 0 o 158,088 . 2,605,484
11,316 Q 0 5} 1,775,534 1,858,076
L+ Q Q ] o 215,652

1] a o 4] o 18,029
25,189 a 6,600 o 4] 53,477
12,307 0 k) _ 0 [+ 10,413,111
[+] 0 66,882 4] 4] 60,882

1] Q 0 0 ] 20,000,000

1] a 4] [ 45,140,734 45,140,734
131,365 9 £7,482 [ 47,074,356 80,799,339
1] 0 o 23,387,268 4] 23,387,268

1673 9,857 o ] 0 11,530

o 0 & 0 o 3,578311

[1] 0 [+ o o 15,895,459

& 1] ] o o 273,760

o 1] ¢ ] k4] A3 912
o [} 51 0 8 (7.079,317)

1,673 9,857 51 23,387,268 8 58,941,953
$133,039 39,857 $67,533 $23,387,268 347,074,356 $139,741,302
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Intergovenumental
Investment
‘Tuition and fees

Other revenues

Totel revermes

Opemutions snd maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Central
Operation of non-i jonal
services
B ol
Capital ouflsy
Debt Service:
Prncipal retirerment
Inferest and fiscal charges

‘Totsl Expenditures

Exocss of Tevenies over
{under) expenditures

Orhe financing sources (nses):
Proceeds of refunding bonds.
Payments of refunded bond escrow agent
Proceeds of sale of fixed asscts
Preminm and sccrued interest on bonds sold
Proceeds of bonds
Openating transfers i
Openating transfers (ont)

“Fetal other financing sotfes (uses)

Bxcess of revermes and ofher
financing sources over (ander)
expendifures snd other
Seancing uses

Fund balance, huly 1

Fund balance, Jime 30

Seo accompanying notes

24

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Specisl Debt Capital

Cenerat Revenus Service Projects
$13,883,486 50 32,956,602 50
8,221,555 926095 204,481 354,860
279,688 5269 o 978,247
167,470 ] [+ ]
0 208,221 o 0
63,119 194,083 [ 185
22,615,318 1333668 3,251,083 1333293
10,224,345 153,865 9 298,080
1,703,951 2347203 v ]
452,039 o 0 o
27,102 898 1) 2
863,860 8,197 0 84,035
292,553 113,775 0 16814
68,693 0 0 0
1,633,797 6,947 o 1,406
556,339 b 32,784 7333
331,390 0 o 597
1,970,441 0 0 40,282
1,868,038 0 0 0
228,734 £7,841 ¢ 107,615
¢ 276,071 0 0
220,508 243853 o o 0
100 0 0 2,145,991
‘b I 538,000 0
] o 958,542 333,333
20,451,890 1,185.652 1,569,326 3,070,863
2,163.428 14B016 1,681,757 (1,737,570}
o 0 14,972,897 8
o e (14,572,897} 6
5,800 a a (]
0 ] 153,815 [
o 0 39,000,000 2,000,000
9 40,000 0 11,753,317
(476,545) (10,800,000 1,316,772)
(457,545) 40,000 20,153,815 12,236,545
1,695,883 188,016 21,835,572 10,698,975
(18,088) 194204 1,476,129 (527,57
3LETT708 $387.320 $23311.761 $10,171.358



FIDUCIARY

FIND TYFE

Expendsble

Totals
Memorandum
Only)

Locoat

$16,840,088
9,796,991
1,263,204
167,470
208,221
257,688

38,533,662

QQ§= (-0 -]

w o

i

P
- EGG [ -1

10,675,2%1
193,154
452,039
28,000

1,036,092
423839
68,653
1,542,150
606,455
IUATT
2,010,723
1,868,038
404,150

276,071
454,361
2,153,112

538,000
1,331,875

14,837

38,292,508

(4,337

2,241,094

(-3~ - - I - - )

14572,397

(14572597
9,000
153,815
32,000,000
11,793317

{£1,793317

o

32,162,813

(4,537

14,588

34,403,909

1,139,256

$51

335,543,163
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Conbined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
Al Oy . Fond Bal

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
All Governmental Fund Types

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest

Tuition & fees
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Vocational
Other
Support services:
Pupil
Instructional staff
Board of Education
Fiscal
Business
Operation and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Central
Operation of Non-Instructional services
Extracurricular activities
Capital outlay
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest gnd fiscal charges

Tatal expenditures

Excess of revenues over {umder)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds of bonds

Proceeds of notes

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Refund of prior year expenditures
Refund of prior year receipts
Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Advances in

Advances {out)

Other sources (uses}

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encembrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 38

See accompanying notes

Generzl _Special Revenue

Variance: Variance:

Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
512,428,964 $12,428,964 50 50 $0 $0
8,224,652 8,224,267 (385) 912,557 898,833 {13,724)
296,736 279,688 (17,048) 0 5,269 5,269
167,307 168,010 703 [¢] 0 0
0 0 0 207,835 209,079 1,244
54,778 57,215 2,437 193,265 194,083 818
21,172,437 21,158,144 (14,253) 1,313,657 1,307,264 (6,393)
10,443,867 10,388,378 55,489 219,185 177,332 41,853
1,757,425 1,757,425 ] 248,552 209,921 38,631
458,157 458,157 1] 0 0 0
26,242 27,102 {860) G 4] 0
876,338 876,338 7o 166,417 76,208 30,209
303,168 303,168 0 132,186 107,161 25,025
79,558 79,532 26 0 0 0
1,502,309 1,502,309 0 28,925 6,947 21,978
573,997 574,578 (581} G 0 0
319,073 319,073 ] G V] 0
1,875,684 1,875,684 0 0 0 1]
1,843,544 1,843,544 4] G 0 0
223,310 223,310 0 93.875 73,213 20,662
a ¢ Q 359,549 287,260 72,289
216,744 216,744 0 253,545 253,545 0
106 160 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 €] 0 0
G 0 0 g 0 U]
20,499,516 20445442 54074 1,442,234 1,191,587 250,647
672,921 712,702 39,781 {128,577) 115,677 244,254
¢ 0 0 L] 0 0
1] 0 [ Q 0 0
9,000 9,000 0 0 [ 0
6,053 6,053 0 0 0 1]
0 0 0 (2,095) {2,095) Q
286,515 434,069 147,554 40,000 40,000 0
(763,060) (910,614) {147,554) 0 0 0
445,046 445,046 ¢ 0 6,981 6,581
{28,581 (28,581) 1] (6,501) {6,501} 0
) 0 0 (397 897y ¢
{45,027) (45,027) Q 30,507 37,4388 6,981
627,894 667,675 39,781 (98,070) 153,165 251,235
197,497 197,457 L4 286,377 286,377 0
$825,391 $865,172 $39,781 $188,307 $439,542 $251,235
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Totals

Diebt Service Capital Projects {Memorandum Only)
Varance: Varmance: Variance:
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$2,331,813 $2,331,813 $0 $0 - $0 $0 T $14,760,777 7 $14,760,777 £0
294,481 294,431 0 354,860 354,860 1) 9,786,550 9,772,441 {14,109}

o ¢ [v] 112 783,883 782,771 297,848 1,068,840 770,952

4] 8 0 o 0 0 167,307 168,010 703

a ¢ 0 ¢ [i] 0 207,835 209,079 i,244

0 i 0 4] 0 4] 248,043 251,298 3,258
2,626,294 2,626,294 [] 355972 1,138,743 782,771 ] 25,468,360 26,230,445 762,085
] [} D 426,280 368,132 58,148 11,089,332 10,933,842 155,490

<] 4] 0 Q ¢ 4] 2005977 1,967,346 38,631

O 0 0 0 0 0 458,157 458,157 0

a 0 0 Q a 0 26,242 27,102 (860}

L] 0 0 86,680 86,680 g3 1,069,435 1,039,226 30,209

0 0 0 16,814 16,814 0 452,168 427,143 25,025

i) Q [i] (] 0 4] 79,558 78,532 26

Li] 0 0 1,406 1,406 [ 1,532,640 1,510,662 21,978

32,782 32,782 0 7,333 7333 [ 614,112 614,693 {581}

0 1] 0 35,974 35974 1] 355,047 355,047 0

o ¢ ¢ 40,282 40,282 1] 1,915,966 1,915,966 0

[¢] 0 g 0 g 0 1,843,544 1,843,544 0

0 D 0 112,035 112,035 o 429,220 408,558 20,662

] 4] g 0 0 Q 359,549 287,260 72,289

0 0 0 0 o 0 470,289 470,289 o

0 a ¢ 31,535,502 18,075,336 13,460,166 31,535,602 18,075,436 13,460,166
10,532,234 10,532,234 [¢] @ 4] & 16,532,234 16,532,234 &
1,004,308 1,004,308 0 0 0 [} 1,004,308 1,004,308 v}
11,569,324 11,569,324 0 32,262,306 18,743,592 13,518,314 65,773,380 51,950,345 T 13,323,035
(8.943,030) (8,943.030) 0 _ (31906334 (17.605,249) 14,301,085 (40,305,020)  (25.719900) 14,585,120
30,153,813 34,153,815 [1] 2,060,000 2,600,000 4] 32,153,815 12,153,815 (4}
L 0 0 30,000,000 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 30,000,000 0

L] 0 0 0 0 0 9,000 9,000 ¢

[} a Q 0 0 ] 6,053 6,053 0

0 0 0 186 186 0 (1,909 (1,90%) 0

0 [ 4] 2,869,183 2,869,183 1] 3,195,698 3,343,252 147,554
4] 1} 0 £2,432,638) (2,432,638) ] (3,195,693) (3,343,252) {147,554}

[ ¢ 1] ¢ L] L] 445,046 452,027 6,981

1] ] 0 {436,545) (436,545) ] (471,627 {471,627) 0
30,153,815 30,153,815 [1] 32,000,186 ] 32,000,186 [ 62,140,578 62,147,359 6,981
21,210,785 21,210,785 1] 93,852 14,394,937 14,301,085 21,935,358 36,427,459 14,592,101
1,263,127 1,263,127 O 108,166 {08,166 0 {,855,167 1,855,167 G
$22.473,912 $22,473912 30 $202,018 $14,503,103 $14,301,085 $23,650,525 $38,282,626 $14,592,101

27



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICYT, OHIO

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses

And Changes in Retained Earnings

All Proprietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 : -

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Totals
Intemnal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)

Operating Revenues:

Tuition and fees $678 $678

Sales 639,010 659,010

Charges for Services 0 22,244 22,244

Other revenues 28 28
Total revenues 659,716 22,244 681,960
Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Wages 335,328 335,328

Fringe Benefiis 125,701 125,701

Purchased Services 8,777 17,398 26,175

Materials and supplies 411,901 411,901

Depreciation 31,662 31,662
Total operating expenses 913,369 17,398 930,767
Operating income (Joss) (253,653) 4,846 (248,807)
Non-operating revenues:

Federa! donated commodities 74,710 74,710

Operating grants 84,598 84,598
Total ron-operating reventues 159,308 159,308
Net income (loss) (94,345) 4,846 (89,499)
Retained Earnings, July I 96,018 5,011 101,029
Retained Eamnings, June 30 $1,673 89,857 $11,530
See accompanying notes
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combined Statement Of Cash Flows

All Propietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities;
Cash received from tuition and fees
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from sales
Cash received from miscellaneous sources
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employzes for services
Cash payments for other operating cxpenses

Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:

Operating grants received
Miscellancous revenue
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ‘
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for} operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss} to

net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
Donsted commodities used

Changes in assets and labilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory held for resale
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities

See accompanying notes

FROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Totals
Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)
8676 $0 8676
0 22,244 22,244
659,010 0 659,010
2,124 ¢} 2,124
(353,800) (17,398) (371,198)
(440,195) 0 (440,195)
0 0 0
(132,185) 4,846 (127,339)
86,361 0 86,361
13,000 0 13,0600
99,361 0 99,361
(32,824) 4,846 (27,978)
35,935 5,011 40,946
3,111 9,857 12,968
(253,653) 4,846 (248,807)
31,662 0 31,662
74,710 Q 74,710
2,096 0 2,096
12,834 0 12,834
{10,947) 9 (10,947)
25,693 0 25,693
(4,861) 0 (4,861)
(9,719) 0 (9.719)
121,468 i) 121,468
($132,185) $4,846 (8127,339)
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

The Loveland City School district (the "District") is a body politic and corporate
established for the purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the
constitution and laws of the State of Ohio.

The Loveland City School District is a city school district as defined by Section 3311.02,
Revised Code. The District operates under an elected Board of Education (5 members)
and is responsible for the provision of public education to residents of the District.

Management believes the financial statements included in this report represent all of the
funds of the District for which the Board of Education has fiscal responsibility.

A. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not
legally separate from the District. For Loveland City School District, this includes
general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District.
Generally, component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the primary government (i.e, the District) are financially accountable. The
District would consider an organization to be a component unit if:

1. The District appointed a voting majority of the organization's governing body;
and (a) was able to impose its will on that organization; or (b) there was a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on the District; or

2. The organization was fiscally dependent upon the District; or

3. The nature of the relationship between the District and the organization was such
that the exclusion from the financial reporting entity would render the. financial

statements misleading.

The District included no component units in the accompanying financial statements.
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Parochial Schools - Within the School District boundaries, Holy Family School is
operated through the Saint Columbia Catholic Diocese. Current State legislation
provides funding to this parochial school. These monies are received and disbursed
on behalf of the parochial school by the treasurer of the School District, as directed by
the parochial school. The activity of these State monies by the School District 1s
reflected in a special revenue fund for financial reporting purposes.

The School District is associated with two jointly governed organizations and two
public entity risk pools. These organizations are:

Jointly Governed Organizations:
Southwest Ohio Computer Association
Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association / Unified Purchasing Association

Public Entity Risk Pools:
Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating
Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium '

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the district have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
District's significant accounting policies are described below:

A. Fund Accounting Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the District are organized and operated on the basis of funds and
account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds are
maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account groups are a
reporting device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds
not recorded directly in those funds.

Governmental Fund Types - Governmental funds are those through which most
governmental functions of the District are financed. The acquisition, use and
balances of the District's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities
(except for those accounted for in Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund types) are
accounted for through Governmental Funds. The following are the District's
Governmental Fund Types: ’ - N '

32



General Fund - Is the general operating fund of the District and it 1s used to
account for all financial resources except those required by law to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than Expendable Trust or major Capital Projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Is used to_account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs; and

for the payment of interest on general obligation notes payable, as required by
Ohio Law.

Capital Projects Funds - Is used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds). )

Proprietary Fund Types -~ Proprietary Funds are used to account for the District's
ongoing activities, which are similar to those most often, found in the private sector.
The following are the District's Proprietary Fund Types:

Enterprise Funds - Are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of
the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or, (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - Are used to account for the financing of goods and
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies
of the District, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types - Fiduciary Funds are used for the assets held by the District in
a {rustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governmental units and/or other funds. These include Expendable Trust and Agency
Funds. Expendable Trust Funds aré accounted for essentially the same as
Governmental Funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities).

Account Groups - To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific
funds and those of general government and between long-term liabilities related to
specific funds and those of general nature, the following account groups are used:
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General Fixed Assets Account Group - This group of accounts is established to

account for all fixed assets of the District, other than those accounted for in
Proprietary Funds and Trust Funds.

General Long-Term Qbligations Account Group - This group of accounts is

established to account for all long-term obligations of the District, except those
accounted for in Proprietary Funds and Trust Funds.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement Focus: Governmental Funds types and Expendable Trust Funds are
accounted for on a spending, or "current financial resources", measurement focus.
Governmental Fund types and Expendable Trust Funds operating statements
represent increases and decreases in net current assets. Their reported fund balances
are considered a measure of available spendable resources.

Proprietary Funds types are accounted for on a cost of services, or "economic
resources", measurement focus. Proprietary Fund type income statements represent
increases and decreases in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting - The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for
Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds. Under this basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures for the current period, which for the District is 60 days after fiscal year
end. Revenue considered susceptible to accrual includes but is not limited to property
taxes available for advance, interest, tuition and state and federal grants. Property
taxes measurable but neither available to finance the current fiscal year expenditures,
nor intended to finance the current year expenditures are recorded as deferred
revenue. Expenditures are recognized in the period in which the related fund liability
is incurred, except principal and interest on long-term debt which is recorded when
due.

Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recognized in the period earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.

C. Budgetary Data
Budgetary Basis of Accounting - The District's budgetary process accounts for certain

transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major difference between the budget
basis and the GAARP basis are:
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(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP). ST

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or paid in cash (budget), as
opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final appropriation, for each fund
type by expenditure function and revenue by source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and
Actual (non-GAAP Budgetary Basis). The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year and is included in the
revised budget amounts shown in the budget to actual comparisons. The budgetary
process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the
preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major
documents prepared are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the
appropriation resclution, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of
accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriation resolution
are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that
appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as ceriified. All funds, other than
agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The legal level of
budgetary control is at the object level within each function, within each fund. Any
budgetary modifications at this level may only be made by resolution of the Board of
Education. The specific timetable is as follows:

Prior to January 15 of the preceding fiscal year, the Treasurer submits to the Board of
Education a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all
funds. Public hearings are publicized and conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments.
The expressed purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing or
increased tax rates.

By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is filed with the County
Budget Commission for tax rate determination.

Prior to March 15, the Board of Education accepts by formal resolution the tax rates
as determined by the County Budget Commission and receives the Commission's
Certificate of Estimated Resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund.
Prior to June 30, the District must revise its budget so that total contemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated
in the Certificate of Estimated Resources. The revised budget then serves as a basis
for the appropriation measure. On or about July 1, the Certificate is amended to
include any unencumbered balances from the preceding year as reported by the
District Treasurer. The Certificate may be further amended during the year if
projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the District Treasurer.
The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts set forth in the
final Amended Certificate.
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By July 1, the annual appropriation resolution is legally enacted by the Board of
Education at the fund, function and object level of expenditures, which are legal
levels of budgetary control. (State statute permits a temporary appropriation to be
effective until no later than October 1 of each year). Resolution appropriations by
fund must be within the estimated resources as ceriified by the County Budget
Commission and the total of expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the
appropriation totals.

Any revisions that alter the total of any fund appropriation the total function
appropriations within a fund, or object appropriations within functions must be
approved by the Board of Education.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for all funds consistent with statutory provisions. All departments, functions and
funds completed the year within the amount of their legally authorized appropriation.

Appropriation amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of
Education through the year by supplemental appropriations which either reallocated
or increased the original appropriation amounts. All supplemental appropriations
were legally enacted by the Board.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbered appropriations are
carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and need not be re-appropriated.
Expenditure plus encumbrances may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at
the fund level. '

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is utilized by District funds in the normal course of
operations for purchase orders and contract related expenditures. An encumbrance is
a reserve on the available spending authority due to commitment for a future
expenditure and does not represent a liability. For Governmental Fund types,
encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end appear on the combined balance sheet as
a reserve of the fund balance on a GAAP Basis and for all funds as the equivalent of
expenditures/expenses on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to demonstrate legal
compliance.

Cash and Investments

Cash received by the District is deposited in a cash and investment pool used by all
funds. Monies for all funds are maintained in these accounts or are temporarily used
to purchase short-term cash equivalent investments. State Statute authorizes the
District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper and
repurchase agreements. Under existing Ohio statutes, all investment eamings accrue
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F.

to the General Fund except those specifically related to Agency Funds, certain Trust
Funds, and those funds individually authorized by Board resolution.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows (GASB Statement No. 9) all highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three mounths or less when acquired, are
considered to be cash equivalents and are included under the heading "Equity in
pooled cash and investments".

During fiscal year 1999, investments were limited to STAROhio, 1.S. Government
Agencies and Commercial Paper.

The District has invested funds in the State Treasury asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAROhio) during the current fiscal year. STAROhio is an investment pool
managed by the State Treasurer's Office, which allows governments within the State
to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the
SEC as an investment company, but does operate in 2 manner consistent with Rule
2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued
at STAROhio's share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for at
year-end.

Investments are stated at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.
Restricted Cash

Restricted cash in the general fund represents cash and cash equivalents set aside to
establish reserves required by state statute for budget stabilization, textbooks, and
capital maintenance. The budget stabilization reserve can be used only after
receiving approval from the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. At June 30,
19905 restricted cash equaled $267,159.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Inventory (Materials and Supplies)

Inventories of the Enterprise Funds are valued at lower of cost (first-in, first-out
method) or market and are determined by physical count. Inventories of Proprietary
Funds consist of materials and supplies and are expensed when used. The amount of
unused commodities at vear end is reported as deferred revenue since title does not
pass to the school district until the commodities are used.
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I. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

1. General Fixed Assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and
updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the year in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market values as of the date donated. No depreciation is recognized for assets in
the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The District does not possess any
infrastructure.

2. Proprictary Funds - Equipment reflected in the Proprietary Funds are stated at
historical cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for the cost of additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market values as of the date donated. Depreciation has been provided, where
appropriate, on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building Improvements 20 - 40 years
Equipment 3 -15 years

J. Intergovernmental Revenues

In Governmental Funds, entitlements (to the extent they are intended to finance the
current fiscal year) and non-reimbursable grants are recorded as receivables and
revenue when measurable and available. Reimbursement type grants are recorded as
receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred. Grants for
Proprietary Fund operations are recognized as revenue when measurable and earned.

The School District currently participates in several State and Federal programs,
categorized as follows: ‘

Entitlements

General Fund

State Foundation Program
School Bus Purchase
State Property Tax Relief

Special Revenue Funds
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid

Non-Reimbursable Grants
Special Revenue Funds
Auxiliary Services
Career Education

Teacher Development
Excellence in Education
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School Age Child Care Grant
Management Information
Entry Year Program
American Sign Language Grant
Textbook Subsidy
Eisenhower Grant

Title VIB/Preschool

Carl Perkins Education

Title I

Title VI

Drug Free Schools

EHA Pre-School

Capital Projects Funds

School Net
Technology Equity

Reimbursable Grants

General Fund
Driver Education

Proprietary Funds
National School Lunch Program
Government Donated Commoditics

Grants and entitlements received in governmental funds amounted to 34% of
governmental fund revenue during the fiscal year.

K. Compensated Absences

GASB Statement No. 16 specifies that compensated absences should be accrued as
they are earned by employees if both of the following conditions are met:

1. The employee's right to receive compensation is attributable to services
already rendered.

2. 1t is probable that the employer will compensate the employee for the benefits
through paid time off or cash payment.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability
includes the employees who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and
those the School District had identified as probable of receiving payment in the
future. The amount is based on the accumulated sick leave and employees' wage

39



rates at fiscal year end, taking into consideration any limits specified in the School
District's termination policy.

For Governmental Funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and a
fund liability of the respective Governmental Fund. Amounts that are not expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Compensated absences of
Proprietary Funds are recorded as an expense and liability of the respective
Proprietary Fund.

Salary related payments are not applicable to the District.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the District has numerous transactions
between funds. The most significant include:

1. Routine transfers of resources from one fund to another fund through which
resources to be expended are recorded as operating transfers.

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another fund are treated as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction in
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund.

3. Short-ferm interfund loans are reflected as interfund loans payable/receivable,
while long-term interfund loans (greater than one year in length) arc recorded
as advances to/from other funds. There were no long-term interfund loans
outstanding at June 30, 1999. ' '

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a Governmental Fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated in the Debt Service Fund for payment early in
the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be
financed from expendable available resources is reported as a fund liability of a
Governmental Fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the
General Long-Term Obligation Account Group.

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from Proprietary Fund operations are
accounted for in those funds.

Fund Balance Reserves
The District records reservations for portions of fund equity which are legally

segregated for specific future use or which do not represent available spendable
resources and therefore are not available for appropriations for expenditures.
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3.

Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity, which is available for
appropriation, in future periods. Fund equity reserves are established for
encumbrances, property taxes and budgetary set-asides required under Ohio law. The
reserve for property taxes represents taxes recognized, as revenue under generally
accepted accounting principles not available for appropriation under State statutes.

O. Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general-purpose financial statements are captioned
(Memorandum Only) to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principals,  Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

P. Proprietary Fund Accounting

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting”, the District applies all GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB
pronouncements.

EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds. Each fund type's
portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in Pooled Cash
and Investments". State Statute requires the classification of monies held by the District
into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury.
Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the School District Treasury, in
commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of
withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Board of Education has identified as not
required for use within the current two-year period of designation of depositories.
Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later
than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit
accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not

needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period
of designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of
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deposit, maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit or by savings or
deposit accounts including passbook accounts.

Protection of School District's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security
for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by the financial
mstitution or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution o secure
the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.

State legislation permits interim monies to be deposited or invested in the following
securities:

1. United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security
issued by the United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to
principal and interest by the United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any
federal government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the
federal national mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm
credit bank, federal home loan mortgage corporation, government national
morigage association, and student loan marketing association. All federal
agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal government agencies or
instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the
market value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must
exceed the principal value of the agreement by at least two percent and be
marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed
thirty days;

4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations
descnbed in division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements
secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

6. The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio);

7. Certain bankers' acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to-
exceed one hundred and eighty days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five
percent of the interim moneys available for investment at any one time; and,

8. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two

highest rating classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating
agencies.

42



Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage,
the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature
within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or
debt of the School District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be
held to maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented by
a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

At year-end the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $20,265,480. The bank
balance of deposits was $20,428,594 and of the bank balance, $200,000 was covered by
federal depository insurance. The remaining amounts were uninsured and
uncollateralized as defined by GASB. Although the securities were held by the pledging
financial institutions' trust department in the School District's name and all statutory
requirements for the investment of the money had been followed, noncompliance with
the federal requirements could potentially subject the money held in the School District's
name fo a successful claim by the FDIC.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that investments held by the District
should be categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the District at
year-end. The District's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of
risk assumed by the entity at year-end.

CATEGORY 1 includes investments that are issued, registered, or held by the District
or its agent in the District's name.

CATEGORY 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the District's name.

CATEGORY 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty, or by its department or agent, buf not in the District's name.

Based on the above criteria, the District's investments at year-end are classified as
follows: _
RISK CARRYING VALUE

INVESTMENTS CATEGORY (Fair Value)

U.S. Government Agencies $25,357,842
Commercial Paper 1 5,710,000
* Star Ohio N/A 3.076,323
Totat §34!144!165

* STAR Ohio is an unclassified investment because it is not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry form.
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4.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, public utility and tangible personal
(business) property. Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis.
Second haif distributions occur in a new fiscal year. Property taxes include amounts
levied against all real, public utility and tangible personal (used in business) property
located in the School District. Real property taxes are levied after April 1 on the assessed
value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public utility property taxes attached
as a lien on December 31 of the prior year, were levied April 1 and are collected with real
property taxes. Assessed values for real property taxes are established by State law at 35
percent of appraised market value. All property is required to be revalued every six
years. Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at 88
percent of true value (with certain exceptions) and on real property at 35 percent of true
value. Tangible personal property taxes are levied afier April 1 on the value listed as of

December 31 of the current year. Tangible personal property assessments are 25 percent
of true value.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment
was due by January 20. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at least one-half of
amount billed) was due January 20, with the remainder due on June 20.

. The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected with periodic settlements of

Real and Public Utility property taxes in February and August and Tangible Personal
Property Taxes in June and October to all taxing districts.

The School District receives property taxes from the County Auditor. The County
Auditor periodically advances to the School District its portion of the taxes collected.
Second-half real property tax payments collected by the County by June 30, 1999 are
available to finance fiscal year 2000 operations. The amount available to be advanced
can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real
property, personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable as of June
30, 1999. Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable,
only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is intended to finance current year
operations. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that
portion not intended to finance current year operations.
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5.

FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the General Fixed Assets Account Group at the year-end follows:

Balance ‘ Balance
Beginning End

Class of Year Additions . Deletions of Year
Land $1,286,704 $149,652 . 0 $1,436,356
Buildings 15,457,016 334,583 0 15,791,599
Equipment 4,192,595 787,359 114,660 4,865,294
Construction
In Progress 0 1,294,018 0 1,294,018
Total $20.936,315  $2.565,612 $114.660 $23387,267

A summary of the Proprietary Fund fixed assets at year-end follows:

Equipment : $446,300

Less Accumulated Depreciation (347.766)

Net Fixed Assets $98,534
NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable activity for the District for the year ended June 30, 1999 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Beginning End
of Year “Additions Deletions of Year
Note Payable, 3.87% $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 - $0
Note Payable, 4.00% 0 20,000,000 0 20,000,000

The note is shown as a liability of the fund, that received the note proceeds. Accordingly,
all note debt activity has been reported in the Capital Projects Fund. See the following
note regarding changes in the general long-term obligations account group for long-term
disclosures.
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7. CHANGES IN THE GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT
GROUP '

During the year ended June 30, 1999, the following changes occurred in debt reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group:

Balance Balance
Beginning End
of Year Increase Decrease = of Year
Accrued Wages & Benefits § 139,039 $19,049 3 0 § 158,088
General Obligation 13,565,000 45,140,734 13,565,000 45,140,734
Bonds
Compensated 737,773 1,037,761 o 1,775,534
Absences
Notes Payable 118.000 0 118.000 0
Total $14.559.812  $46,197.544 $13.683.000 $47,074,356

The accrued wages and benefits amount above represents pension contributions that are
not expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

All current obligation bonds outstanding, issued to provide funds for the acquisition of
equipment and facilities, are general obligations of the District for which the full faith
and credit of the District is pledged for repayment. Accordingly, such un-matured
obligations of the District are accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligation
Account Group. Notes payable are paid through tax collections. Payments of principal
and interest relating to these liabilities are recorded as expenditures in the Debt Service
Fund. The source of payment is derived from debt tax issue proceeds.
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A. The following is a description of the District's bonds and notes outstanding as
of year end:

Balance Balance
Interest Issue Maturity Beginning Issued Retired End

ose Rate  Date Date of Year ~ 1999 1999 of Year
Energy
Conservation Note  5.00% 06/01/95 07/02/00 - $118,000 $0 $118,000 50
1999 Bond Issue 4.84% 02/01/99 12/01/19 0 2,000,000 ¢ 2,000,000
199% Bond Issue 5.00% 04/29/9% 12/01/24 0 43,140,734 0 43,140,734
1992 Bond Issue 6.50% 04/01/92 12/01/15 13,565.000 9 13.565.000 Q
TOTAL

$13,683.000 $45.140734 $13.683.000 $45,140,734

B. The following is a summary of the District's future annual debt service requirements
to maturity for general obligation bonds and notes:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest ) Total
2000 1,620,000 2,042,997 3,662,997
2001 1,555,000 1,990,493 3,545,493
2002 1,775,000 1,928,507 3,703,507
2003 2,020,000 1,856,143 3,876,143
2004 2,275,000 1,762,827 4,037,827
Thereafter 35,895,734 19,094,452 54 186
Totals $45.140.734 $28,675.419 $73.816.153

9. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

As of June 30, 1999, receivables and payables that resulted from various interfund
transactions were as follows:
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Interfund Interfund

Fund Type / Fund Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 53,477 $0
Special Revenue Fund:

Athletic Fund 0 14,707

Career Education 3,068

Carl Perkins 3,913
Enterprise Fund: .

Food Service 0 25,189
Agency Fund:

Student Activitics 0 6.600
Total All Funds $53.477 $53.477

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A. School Employees Retirement System

The School District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio
(SERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend
benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code.
SERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to the School Employees Retirement System, 45 N. Fourth Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215.

Plan members are required to contribute 9 percent of their annual covered salary and
the School District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
current rate is 14 percent of annual covered payroll. A portion of the School
District’s contribution is used to fund pension obligation with the remainder being
used to fund health care benefits; for fiscal year 1999, 7.7 percent of annual covered
salary was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 1998, 9.02
percent was used to fund the pension obligation. The contribution requirements of
plan member and employers are established and may be amended, up to statutory
maximum amounts, by the SERS Retirement Board. The School District's
contributions for pension obligations to SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $438,822, $421,644, and $374,766, respectively; 51.6
percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years
1997 and 1996. $116,701 representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 is
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recorded as a liability within the respective funds and the general long-term
obligations account group. : «

B. State Teachers Retirement System

The School District participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio
(STRS), a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system
administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provides basis
retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible
service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter
3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issue a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report
may be obtained by writing the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 E. Broad
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary
and the School District is required to coniribute 14 percent; 6 percent was the portion
used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 1998, the portion used to fund
pension obligations was 10.5 percent. Contribution rates are established by STRS,
upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum
rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. The School District's
contributions for pension obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $1,502,304, $1,436,268, and $1,300,788 respectively;
83.1 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years
1997 and 1996. $108,267 representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 is
recorded as a liability within the respective funds.

C. Social Security System

Effective July 1, 1991, all employees not otherwise covered by the School Employees
Retircment System or the State of Teachers Retirement System have an option to
choose Social Security or the School Employees Retirement System/State Teachers
Retirement System. As of June 30, 1999, certain members of the Board of Education
have elected Social Security. The Board's liability is 6.2 percent of wages paid.

- 11. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The School District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and
their dependents through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to retired
non-certified employees and their dependents through the School Employees Retirement
System (SERS). Benefits include hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs and
reimbursements of monthly Medicare premivms. Benefit provisions and the obligation to
contribute are established by the Systems based on authority granted by State statue.
Both systems are on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of
the health care costs will be absorbed by the STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion
of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of
coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the employer contribution rate;
currently 14 percent of covered payroli. Through June 30, 1997, the Board allocated
employer contributions equal to two percent of covered payroll to the Health Care
Reserve Fund. Beginning fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the allocation was increased
to 8 percent. For the School District, this amount equaled $767,339 during fiscal year
1999. '

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance in the
Fund was $2,156 million at June 30, 1998. For the year ended June 30, 1998, net health
care costs paid by STRS were $219,224,000 and STRS had 91,999 eligible benefit
recipients.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of
qualifying service credit, and disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring
on or after August 1, 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a
portion of their premium for health care. The portion is based on years of service up to
maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

For the fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care benefits were 6.30 percent
of covered payroll, an increase from 4.98 percent for fiscal year 1999. In addition, SERS
levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14 percent of the difference
between a minimum pay and the member's pay, pro-rated for partial service credit. For
fiscal year 1999, the minimum pay has been established at $12,400. The surcharge,
added to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate, provides
for maintenance of the asset target level for the health care fund.

The target level for the health care reserve is 125 percent of annual health care expenses.
Expenses for health care at June 30, 1998 (the latest information available), were
$111,900,575 and the target level was $139.9 million. At June 30, 1998 SERS had net
assets available for payment of health care benefits of $160.3 million. SERS had
approximately 50,000 participants currently receiving health care benefits. For the
School District, the amount to fund health care benefits, including the surcharge equaled
$220,517 during the 1999 fiscal year.

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
The School District maintains two enterprise funds to account for the operations of food

service and latchkey. The table below reflects the more significant financial data relating
to the enterprise funds of the District as of and for the current year ended.
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Total

Latch Enterprise
Food Service Key Funds
Operating Revenues $659,038 $678 $659,716
Operating Expenses 4
less Depreciation 867,297 14,410 881,707
Depreciation Expense 31,662 0 31,662
Operating Income (Loss) (239,921) (13,732) (253,653)
Donated Commodities 74,710 0 74,710
Operating Grants 84,598 0 | 84,598
Operating Transfers In/(OQut) o 0 0
Net Income (Loss) (80,613) (13,732) (94,345)
Net Working Capital (98,541) 1,680 (96,861)
Total Assets 131,359 1,680 1A33,039
Total Liabilities 131,366 0 131,366
Total Equity N 1,680 1,673

13. BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund
bzlance/retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP); the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The main difference between
the budget basis and GAAP basis are:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed
to when the liability is incurred (GAAP basis).
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3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures/expenses for all funds (budget basis)
rather than as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types and as
note disclosures in the proprietary fund types (GAAP basis).

4. Proceeds from the principal payment on bond and tax anticipation notes are

reported on the operating statement (budget basis) rather than on the balance sheet
(GAAP basis).

Reconciliation of Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources over (Under) Expenditures and other
Financing Uses From GAAP Basis to Budgetary Basis:

Govemmental General Special Revenue Debt Service  Capital Projects
Fund Types Fund Funds . .. Funds | Funds

GAAP Basis $1,737,491 $188,016 $21,835,572 $10,698,975
Net Adjustment for

Revenue Accruals (572,006) (19,423) (624,789) 20,921,502
Net Adjustment for

Expenditure Accruals  (469,573) 4,485 0 {1,144,425)
Encumbrances (28.237) (19.913) ] {16,081,115)
Budgetary Basis $667,675 $153,165 _ 321210785 $14,394 937

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grants - The District receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal,
state and local agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under
these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the
grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other
applicable funds. Management is unable to estimate possible claims resulting from such
audits until the audits have been completed. However, in the opinion of management,
any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial
statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the overall financial
position of the District.

15. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

The Southwest Ohio Computer Association (SWOCA) is a jointly governed organization
amount a three county consortium of Ohio school districts. The organization was formed
for the purpose of applying modern technology with the aid of computers and other
electronic equipment to the administrative and instructional functions of the member
districts. Each of the governments of these schools and instructional functions of the
member districts. Each of the governments of these schools supports SWOCA based
upon a per pupil charge dependent upon the software package utilized. SWOCA is
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governed by a Board of Directors consisting of the superintendents and treasures of
member school districts. The degree of control exercised by any participating school
district is limited to its representation on the Board. The Board consists of one
representative from each of the participating 29 school districts. The financial statements
for SWOCA are available at the Butler County Career Center, 3603 Hamilton-
Middletown Road, Hamilton, Ohio 45012.

Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association/Unified Purchasing Association - The
Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association/Unified Purchasing Association is a jointly
govemed organization among a two county consortium of school districts. The Unified
Purchasing Cooperative was organized under the Hamilton Clermont Cooperative
Association to benefit member districts with a more economically sound purchasing
mechanism for general school, office and cafeteria supplies. The United Purchasing
Cooperative organization is governed by representatives from each of the governments
that created the organization, but there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility
by the participating governments. Complete financial statement for H/CCA can be

obtained from their administrative office at 7615 Harrison Avenue, Cincinnati, Ohio
45231.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for real
property, building contents and vehicles. Vehicle policies include liability coverage for
bodily injury and property damage. Real property and contents are 90% co-insured.

The District’s insurance sctilements did not exceed insurance coverage for each of the
past three fiscal years.

17. INSURANCE PURCHASING POOL

Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium ~ The Greater Cincinnati Insurance
Consortium, an insurance purchasing pool, is a health trust formed to provide affordable
and desirable dental, life, medical and other disability group insurance for member's,
employees, eligible dependents and designated beneficiaries of such employees. The
board of Directors consists of one representative from each of the participating members
and are elected by the vote of the majority of the member school districts. The School
District pays premiums to a third party administrator, Edward Paul Cerry, which in turn
buys the insurance policies from various insurance companies. Upon termination, the
School District shall be responsible for prompt payment of all plan liabilities accruing as
a result of such termination and maintain no right to any assets of the Consortium. The
School District may terminate participation in the Consortium for the benefit of its
employees upon written notice to the Consortinm delivered at least sixty days prior to the
annual review date of the policy. Financial information can be obtained from the Greater

Cincinnati Insurance Consortium at 20600 Chagrin Boulevard, Shaker Heights, Ohio
44122,

53



Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating Plan - The
School District participates in the Ohio School Boards Association Workers'
Compensation Group Rating Program (GRP), and insurance purchasing pool. The GRP's
business and affairs are conducted by a three member Board of Directors consisting of
the President, the President-Elect and the Immediate Past President of the OSBA. The
Executive Director of the OSBA, or his designee, serves as coordinator of the program.
Each year, the participating school districts pay an enrollment fee to the GRP to cover the
costs of administering the program.

18. STATE SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION

On March 24, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain
portions of the Ohio school-funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of
its ruling for one year to allow the State's legislature to design a plan to remedy the
perceived defects in that system. Declared unconstitutional was the State's "school
foundation program", which provides significant amount of monetary support to the
District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the District received $4,713,755 of
school foundation support for its general fund.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the
State Legislature in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of
Common Pleas in Perry County is currently reviewed the new laws and, in a decision on
February 26, 1999, determined they are not sufficiently responsive to the constitutional
issues raised under the "thorough and efficient” clause of the Ohio Constitution. The
State has appealed the decision made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Ohio
Supreme Court. As of December 23, 1999, the Ohio Supreme Court has not rendered an
opinion on this issue. The decision of the Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has
been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Court, and, as such, school districts are still operating
under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared unconstitutional.

As of the date of these financial statements, the School District is unable to determine
what effect, if any, this ongoing litigation will have on its future state funding under this
program and on its financial operations.

19. ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE
A. Fund Deficits

Fund balances at June 30, 1999, included the following individual fund deficits:

Deficit Fund Balance
Athletic Special Revenue Fund $8,843
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid Special Revenue Fund 2,660
Carl Perkins Special Revenue Fund 3,913
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The above funds have deficit fund balances due to the accrual of wages and fringe
benefits and/or the reclassification of Advances In (other sources) to Interfund
Payable (liability). '

B. Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations

The Ohio Revised Code states that total expenditures from each fund are not to
exceed the total appropriations. The District had expenditures exceeding
appropriations at the legal level of control in the following fund:

Amount of Excess
General Fund $93,478

20. YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing
systems and other equipment that may adversely affect the government's operations.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other equipment
necessary to conducting District operations and has identified such systems as being
financial reporting, payroll and employee benefits, and educational statistics reporting
(through the State's Education Management and Information System (EMIS).

The District uses the State of Ohio Uniform School Accounting System software for its
financial reporting, and the State of Ohio Uniform Staff Payroll System sofiware for its
payroll and employee benefits. The State is responsible for remediation of these systems.

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the form of
"Foundation” and federal and state grant payments. Further, the State processes a
significant amount of financial and non-financial information about the District through
EMIS. The State is responsible for remediation of these systems.

County collects property taxes for distribution to the District. The County is responsible
for remediating the tax collection system and is solely responsible for all associated costs.

There were no remaining contracted amounts committed to this project as of June 30,
1999. All compliance costs to date have been covered under current hardware and
software support agreements with vendors.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of
related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and
thereafter. Management cannot assure that the (District) is or will be Year 2000 ready,
that District's remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties
with whom the District does business will be year 2000 ready.
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21. SET-ASIDE CALCULATIONS

The School District is required by State stature to annually set aside in the general fund
an amount based on a statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other
instructional materials and an equal amount for the acquisition and construction of capital
iImprovements. Amounts not spent by year-end or offset by similarly restricted resources
received during the year must be held in cash at year-end and carried forward to be used

for the same purposes in future years. The School District is also required to set aside
money for budget stabilization.

The following cash basis information describes the change in the year-end set-aside
amounts for textbooks, capital acquisition, and budget stabilization. Disclosure of this
information is required by State statute,

Reserved Fund Balances
Capital Budget
Text Acquisition Stabilization Totals

Set-aside Cash Balance as of

June 30, 1998 $0 30 $113,604 113,604
Current Year Set-aside Requirement 320,312 320,312 160,156 800,780
Current Year Offsets (54,338) (320,312) 0 (374,650)
Qualifying Disbursements (265,974) 0 0 (265.974)
Set-aside Cash Balance as of

June 30, 1999 N . b [t} 2 0 $273.760  $273.760

Although the School District had offsets and qualifying disbursements during the year
that reduced the set-aside amounts for textbooks and instructional materials and capital
improvement and maintenance to below zero, these extra amounts may not be used to
reduce the sef-aside requirements of future years. Qualifying disbursements for
textbooks and instructional materials and capital improvement and maintenance during
the year were $427,812 and $440,745, respectively, which exceeded the required set-
aside and the reserve balance. Bond proceeds can be used as an offset to the capital
improvement and maintenance reserve. Of the $32,000,000 bond proceeds, $31,679,688
may be carried forward and used in future years.

22. ADVANCED REFUNDING

On April 1, 1999, the District issued $43,140,734 in General Obligation Bonds with
interest rates from 3.2% to 5.25% to advance refund $13,145,000 of outstanding 1992
General Obligation Bonds with interest rates from 4.1% to 7.1%. $14,972,897 (after
payment of $490,697 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) was used
to purchase U.S. Government Securities. Those Securities were deposited in an
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irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on
the 1992 general obligation bonds. As a result, the 1992 general obligation bonds are
considered defeased and the Hability for those bonds has been removed from the debt
service fund.

The District completed the advanced refunding to reduce its total debt service payments

over the next 17 years by $1,546,389 and to obtain an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $1,103,848.
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COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND
AND ACCOUNT GROUP FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for govérnment resources not accounted for in any other
fund. The General Fund balance is available to the District for any purpose provided it is
expended or transferred to the general laws of the State of Ohio.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actua] (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 °

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $12,428. 964 $12,428,964 $0
Intergovernmental 8,224,652 8,224,267 - (38%)
Interest 296,736 279,688 {17,048)
Tuition and fees 167,307 168,010 703
Other revenues 54,778 57,215 - 2,437
Total revenues 21,172,437 21,158,144 (14,293)
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages 7,964,094 7,963,015 1,079
Fringe benefits 2,004,522 2,004,522 ¢
Purchased services 42,194 42,194 o
Materials and supplies 335,503 281,891 54,412
Capital outlay - new 82,343 82,343 0
Capital outlay - replacement 10,916 10,916 G
Other expenditures 4,295 4,295 0
Total reguiar 10,443,867 10,388,376 55,491
Special:
Salaries and wages 1,061,875 1,061,875 0
Fringe benefits 346,202 346,202 0
Purchased services 276,587 276,587 i}
Materials and supplies 5,009 5,009 0
Capital outlay - new 268 268 0
Other expenditures 67,484 67,484 0
Total special 1,757,425 1,757,425 ]
Vocational:
Salaries and wages 365,827 365,827 0
Fringe benefits 84,318 84,318 0
Purchased services 1,795 1,795 0
Materials and supplies 5,848 5,848 ]
Capital cutlay - new 369 369 0
Total vocational 458,157 458,157 0
Other:
Purchased services 26,242 27,102 (360)
Total other 26,242 27,102 (860}
Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages 681,590 681,590 0
Fringe benefits 156,013 156,013 0
Purchased services 31,918 31,918 0
Materials and supplies 5,263 5,263 0
Capital outlay - new 1,554 i,554 0
Total pupil 876,338 876,338 0
Continued
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT -
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actnal (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budgeat Actual (Unfavorable)
Instructional staff:
Salary and wages 177,706 177,706 0
Fringe benefits 53,198 53,198 0
Purchased services 23,5990 23,990 0
Materials and supplies 43,407 43,407 0
Capital outlay - new 4,364 4,364 0
Capitalf outlay - replacement 503 503 0
Total instructional staff 303,168 303,168 0
Board of Education:
Salaries and wages 11,440 11,440 0
Fringe benefits 1,262 1,262 ]
Purchased services 56,715 56,715 0
Materials and supplies 6,672 6,672 0
Other expenditures 3,469 3,443 26
Total board of education 79,558 79,532 26
Administration:
Salaries and wages 1,121,086 1,121,086 0
Fringe bencfits 296,170 296,170 o
Purchased services 12,891 12,891 0
Materials and supplies 47,639 47,639 0
Capital outlay - new 389 389 0
Other expenditures 24,134 24,134 0
Total school administration - 1,502,309 1,502,309 0
Fiscal:
Salaries and wages 205,930 205,930 0
Fringe benefits 61,829 61,829 0
Purchased services 63,027 63,027 0
Materialg and supplies 31,591 31,591 0
Capital outlay - new 4,124 4,124 0
Other expenditures 207,496 . 208,077 (581}
Total fiscal 573,997 574,578 (581)
Business:
Salaries and wages 102,190 102,190 0
Fringe benefits 26,051 26,051 0
Purchased services 153,534 153,534 0
Materials and supplies 37,298 37,298 0
Total business 319,073 ’ 319,073 0
Operations and maintenance:
Salaries and wages 695,793 695,793 0
Fringe benefits 215,160 215,160 0
Purchased services 803,556 803,556 0
Materials and supplies 144,678 144,678 0
Capital outlay - new 16,497 16,497 0
Total operations and maintenance 1,875,684 1,875,684 0
Continued
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LOVELAND CITY SCHQOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 -
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Pupil transportation:
Salaries and wages 745,037 745,037 0
Fringe benefits 233,275 233,275 1
Purchased services 672,063 672,063 G
Materials and supplies 123,732 123,732 o
Capital outlay - new 69,437 69,437 o
Total pupil transportation 1,843,544 1,843,544 &
Central:
Salaries and wages 59,263 59,263 0
Fringe benefits 76,172 76,172 ¢
Purchased services 54,023 54,023 0
Materials and supplies 16,630 16,630 G
Capitai ontlay - new 17,222 17,222 0
Totat central 223,310 223,310 0
Extracurricular activities:
Salaries and wages 13,777 13,777 0
Fringe benefits 2,017 2,017 0
Other 1,211 1,211 0
Total academic and subject oriented activities 17,005 17,005 0
Sports oriented activities: B
Salaries and wages 164,663 164,663 0
Fringe benefits 23,373 23,373 0
Purchased services 1,813 1,813 0
Total sports oriented activities 189,849 189,845 0
School and Public Service:
Salaries and wages 8,680 8,680 0
Fringe benefits 1,210 1,210 0
Total School and Public Service 9,890 9,850 i}
Total extracurricular activities 216,744 216,744 0
Capital Outlay
Site Improvement Services
Capital outlay 100 100 0
Total Site Improvement Services 100 100 0
Total capital outlay 100 100 0
Continued
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Total expenditures 20,459,516 20,445 442 54,076
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 672,921 712,702 39,781
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of sale of fixed assets $9.000 £9,000 0
Refund of prior year expenditures 6,053 6,053 o
Advances in 445,046 445,046 0
Advances (out) (28,581) (28,5813 0
Operating transfers in 286,515 434,069 147,554
Operating transfers {out) (763,060) {910,614) (147,554)
Total other financing sources (uses) (45,027) {45,027} 0
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other financing uses 627,894 667,675 39,781
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior 197,497 197,497 0
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance, June 30 $825,391 $865,172 $39,781
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects or expendable trusts) that are legally restricted to expenditure
for specified purposes. The following are descriptions of each Special Revenue Fund:

PUBLIC SCHOOL SUPPORT: To account for specific local revenue sources (other than taxes)
generated by individual school bmldlngs (i.e. sales of pictures, profits from vending machines,
etc.). Expenditures include field trips, materials, equipment and other items to supplement co-
curricular and extra-curricular programs.

LEARNING LINKS: To account for monies which are provided for the Learning Links
Program.

VENTURE CAPITAL EAST: To account for the state monies which support the school
improvement program and to enhance faculty knowledge and experiences.

ATHLETIC: To account for those student activity programs which have student participation in
the activity but do not have student management in the programs. This fund includes athletic
programs as well as the band, cheerleaders, flag corps and other similar types of activities.

AUXILIARY SERVICES: To account for state funds which provide services and materials to

students attending non-public schools within the boundaries of the District as provided by state
law.

CAREER EDUCATION: To account for state funds which are provided to introduce various
career opportunities to students.

TEACHER DEVELOPMENT: To account for state funds which are provided to assist school
districts in the development of in-service programs.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION: To account for state funds which are provided to assist the
District in implementing a staff, student and financial system as mandated by the Omnibus
Education Reform Act of 1989,

ENTRY YEAR PROGRAM: To account for state funds which are provided for implementing
entry year programs.

AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE: To account for monies which are provided in conjunction
with American Sign Language Grant.
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DISADVANTAGED PUPIL IMPACT AID: To account for the provision of state funds fo
economically deprived pupils. The funds are grants designed to help level out the economic
differences between students.

TEXTBOOK SUBSIDY: To account for state funds which are provided for textbook subsidies.

EISENHOWER PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT: To account for monies which are
provided for professmnai development.

TITLE VIB/PRE-SCHOOL: To account for federal funds received for the purpose of assisting
in the identification of handlcapped children, development of procedural safeguards,
implementation of least restrictive alternate service patterns, and provision of fuil educational
opportunities fo handicapped children at preschool.

CARL PERKINS VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ACT: Provision of funds to boards of
education, teacher training institutions, and the state administering agency for cooperating in
development of vocational education programs in the following categories: secondary,
postsecondary, adult, disadvantaged and handicapped persons, exemplary programs, cooperative
education, construction of area vocational schools, ancillary services, research, advisory
committees, and work study projects, including sex equity grants. Funds are administered by the
Ohio Department of Education, Division of Vocational and Career Education.

TITLE I: To account for federal funds used to meet special educational needs of educationally
deprived children.

TITLE VI: To account for federal funds used to provide programs for at-risk students;
instructional materials to improve the quality of instruction; programs of professional
development; and programs to enhance personal excellence of students and student achievement.

EHA PRE-SCHOOL: To account for revenues and expenditures made in conjunction with child
abuse, child neglect preventlon programs and other grants.

DRUG FREE SCHQOLS: To account for federal funds used for establishment, operation and
improvement of programs of drug abuse prevention, early intervention, rehabilitation referral
and education in schools.

TELECOMM.: To account for funds provided for the Telecomm Program.

CONTINUQUS IMPROVEMENT: To account for funds provided for the Continuous
Improvement Program.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1999

Public
School Learning Venture Athletic
Support Links Capital East Fund
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $181,004 $3,160 $12.440 $3,203
Receivables:
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 2,661
Total Assets 181,004 3,160 12,440 5,864
Liabilities
Accounts payable 775 0 52 i
Accrued wages 0 0 484 g
Interfund payable 1] 0 0 14,707
Total liabilities 775 0 536 14,707
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 11,427 0 0 0
Unreserved:
Undesignated 168,802 3,160 11,904 (8,843)
Total fund equity {deficit} 180,225 3,160 11,904 (8,843)
Total Liabilities and fund equity $181,004 $3,160 $12,440 £5,864
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Disadvantaged

69

Auxiliary Career Teacher Management Entry Year American Pupil
Services Education Development Information Program Sign Language Impact Aid
$72,624 L3 $5,272 $25,662 $24,981 5487 51
0 6,981 0 0 G 0 0
_ 72,625. 6,982 5,272 25,662 24,981 487 1
2,072 0 954 0 ¢ 0 ]
21,209 ] 0 0 0 0 _ 2,661
0 3,068 0 0 0 0 0
23,281 3,068 954 0 0 0O 2,661
966 0 0 0 ¢ 378 9
48,377 3,914 4,318 25,662 24981 109 (2,660)
49,343 3914 4318 25,662 24,981 487 (2,660)
$72,624 $£6,982 $5,272 $25,662 $24.981 $487 $1
Continued



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1999
Textboaok Eisenhower Titie VIB Carl
Subsidy Grant Pre-School Perkins
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $0 $6,756 $24,585 $0
Receivables:
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 0
Total Assets 0 6,756 24585 0
Liabilities
Accounts payable 0 0 413 0
Accrued wages 0 0 17,822 0
Interfund payable 0 0 0 3,913
Total Labilities 0 0 18,235 3,913
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 0 220 1,525 0
Unreserved:
Undesignated 0 6,536 4,825 (3,913)
Total fimd equity {deficit) 0 6,756 6,350 (3,913)
Total Liabilities and fund equity 50 $6,756 $24,585 $0
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EHA Drug Free Continuous

Title 1 Title V1 Pre-School Schools Telecomm Improvement Totals
$66,112 312,494 $9,563 58,818 51,998 §300 $459.461
i) 0 o 19,715 0 0 29,357
66,112 12,494 9,563 28,533 1,998 300 488,818
Lt 0 0 0 0 0 4,266
38,468 0 0 0 0 0 80,644
0 9 0 0 Y 0 21,688
38,468 9 0 0 0 O 106,598
1,864 220 G o ¢ 0 16,600
25,780 12,274 9,563 28,533 1,998 300 365,620
27,644 12,494 9,563 28,533 1,998 300 382,220
$66,112 $12.494 $9,563 $28,533 $1,998 $300 $488,818
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1959

Revenues:

Intergovernmental
Investment
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other

Support services:
Pupil
Instructional Staff
Administration
Central

Operation of nen-instructional
services

Extracurricular activitics

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditares

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources {uses}

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over (under)}

expenditures and other

financing uses

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Public Venture
School Learning Capital Athletic
Support Links East Fund
S0 $4,000 $25,000 $2,651
0 0 0 0
118,951 0 0 £9,270
189,906 $1,130 229 2,000
308,857 5,130 25,229 93,931
0 438 12,947 0
1] ¢ 0 (]
0 898 ] 0
0 1] o 0
1,250 3,000 17,198 0
0 0 0 o
67,841 0 o
[} g (1} ]
112,536 ¢ 0 131,317
181,627 4,386 30,145 131,317
127,230 744 {4.916) (37,386)
0 0 0 40,000
0 0 0 40,000
127,230 744 {4,916) 2,614
52,999 2,416 16,820 {11,457
$180,229 $3,160 $11,904 (58,843}
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Entry American Disadvantaged
Auxiliary Career Teacher Management Year Sign Pupil
Services Education Development Information Program Language Impact Aid
£277,189 $12,754 $17,812 $10,750 $28,000 30 $£32,654
5,269 0 0 0 ] 1] g
o 0 0 0 0 0 g
0 0 0 0 0 0 818
282,458 12,754 17,812 10,750 28,000 0 33472
0 6,135 0 0 3,019 2,175 0
0 0 0 0 0 ] 39,870
k(] 0 0 0 0 0 0
11,780 0 g 1] 0 0 0
0 g 15,544 ] 0 0 15,270
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 1] 0 0 [ 0
256,165 i 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
267,945 6,135 15,544 0 3,019 2,175 55,140
14,513 6,619 2,268 10,750 24,981 (2,175) (21,668)
L 0 1] 0 0 o 0
0 0 0 0 0 O 0
14,513 6,619 2,268 10,750 24,981 {2,175) {21,668}
34,820 {2,705) 2,050 14,912 0 2,662 19,008
349,343 $3,914 $4,313 $25,662 $24,581 $487 (52,660}
Continued

73



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, CHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenugs:

Intergovernmental
Investment
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

“Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other

Support services:
Pupil
Instructional Staf¥
Administration
Central

Operation of non-instructional
sarvices

Extracurricular activities

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over
{under)} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other

financing uses

Fur.d balance, July

Fu.t balance, June 30

Textbook Eisenhower Title VIB Carl

Subsidy Grant Pre-School Perkins
$54,338 £13,019 $124,971 §7,709
0 9 0 0
0 0 0 0
[ a 9 0
54,338 13,019 124,971 7,769
82,602 15,051 0 7.826
0 0 3,871 0
0 0 0 0
¢ Y 35,780 g
0 0 61,406 0]
0 0 2,090 0
0 g 0
0 0 16,936 0
0 0 8 1]
82,602 15,051 120,083 7,826
(28,264) (2,032) 4,888 (117)
a 0 i 0
0 0 0 1]
(28,264) (2,032) 4,888 {117
28,264 8,788 1,462 {3,796)
$0 $6,756 $6,350 ($3,913)
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EHA Drug Free Continuzous

Title I Title VI Pre-Scheol Schools Telecomm Improvement Totals
$258,216 $16,150 $9,059 $19,715 $1,998 $10,000 $926,095
L] 0 [ 0 ] [ 5269
L] 9 Q 0 [+ (14 208,221
] 0 4] 0 0 [+ 194,083
258,316 16,150 9,059 19,715 1,998 10,000 1,333,668
0 10,625 0 3,298 o 9,700 153,866
187,640 0 2,095 726 0 4] 234,203
[ g [ 0 Q0 a 898
34,450 ] 2,618 3,569 0 G 88,197
[+ g 108 0 0 ¢ 113,776
4,857 L] i} 0 0 G 6,547
(¢} ] 0 0 0 ¢ 67,841
0 3,160 0 (190) 0 0 276,071
1] 0 ¢] Q 0 1} 243,853
226,947 13,785 4,822 . 7,403 0 9,700 1,185,652
31,369 2,365 4237 12312 1,998 300 148,016
G 9 0 0 0 1] 40,000
0 4] 0 Q 0 1] 40,000
31,3589 2,365 4,237 12,312 1,998 300 188,016
(3,725} 10,129 5,326 16,221 4] 0 194,204
£27,644 $12,494 $9,563 $28,533 $1,998 $300 $382,220
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Public School Support Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

Revenues:
From local sources:
Extracurricular activities
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support services:
Instructional staff:
Materials and supplies
Total instructional staff

Central
Capital outlay - new

Total central

Extracurricular
Materials and supplies

Total extracurricular
Total support services
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)

$118,515 $118,951 $436
189,996 189,906 0
308,421 308,857 436
1,250 1,250 0
1,250 1,250 0
73,213 73,213 0
73,213 73,213 0
119,454 119,454 0
119,454 119,454 0
193,917 193,917 0
193,917 193,917 0
114,504 114,940 436
53,862 53,862 0
$£168,366 $168,802 $436
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis)
Learning Links Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
From local sources:
Intergovernmental
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages
Materials and supplies
Total regular instruction

Support Services:
Instructional Staff:
Capital outlay - new
Total instructional staff

‘Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
QOther sources (uses)

Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources cver (under)
expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

WVariance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$4,000 $4,000 $0
1,136 {130 0
5,130 5,130 0
469 460 0
29 29 0
489 489 0
3,000 3,000 0
3,000 3,000 ¢
3,489 3,489 0
1,641 1,641 4]
{897) (897) 0
{897) (897) 0
744 744 0
2,416 2416 4]
$3,160 $£3,166 30

77



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actal (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Venture Capital Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revisad Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: _
Intergovernmental $25,000 $25,000 $0
Other revenue 229 229 0
Total revenues 25,229 25,229 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages 9,264 9,264 0
Fringe benefits 849 849 0
Materials and supplies 2,351 2,351 0
Total regular 12,464 12,464 0
Support services:
Instructional staff:
Purchased services 17,427 17,427 0
" Total instructional staff 17,427 17,427 0
Total expenditures 29,291 29,891 ) 0
Excess of revenues (under) expenditures (4,662) (4,662} 0
Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated) 17,050 17,050 0
Fund balance, June 30 $12,388 $12,388 30

78



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Athletic Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Extracurricular activities
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Extracurricular activities:

Sports oriented activities:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased setvices
Materials and supplies

Total sports oriented activities

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in

Tota! other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encurmbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$89,320 $90,128 ) $808
2,000 2,000 0
91,320 92,128 808
1,210 1,210 0
191 191 0
27,139 27,139 0
105,550 105,550 0
134,090 134,090 0
134,090 134,090 0
(42,770) (41,962) 808
40,000 40,000 0
40,000 40,000 0
(2,770 (1,962) 808
5,165 5,165 0
$2,395 $3,203 $808
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Auxiliary Services Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Interest
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Pupils:
Purchased services
Total pupils

Operation of non-instructional services:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total operation of
non-instructional services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$0 $5,269 $5,269
277,189 277,189 0
277,189 282,458 5,269
11,800 11,780 20
11,800 11,780 20
210,690 164,657 46,033
42,331 33,492 8,839
13,639 4,247 9,392
67,716 67,685 31
334,376 270,081 64,295
346,176 281,861 64,315
(68,987) 597 69,584
68,987 68,987 0
$0 $69,584 $69,584
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis)

Career Education Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Curzent:
Instruction:
Reguiar:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total regular

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Advances in
Advances (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$8,841 $5,773 ($3,068)
8,841 5,773 (3,068)
4,560 4,500 0
1,635 1,635 0
6,135 6,135 0
6,135 6,135 0
2,706 (362) (3,068)
0 3,068 3,068
(2,705) {2,705) 0
(2,705) 363 3,068
1 1 0
0 0 0
§1 $1 £0
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LOYELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Teacher Development Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support services:

Instructional staff’
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and supplies

Total instructional staff

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$17,812 $17,812 $0
17,812 17,812 0
7,000 5,700 1,300
1,082 452 630
8,000 6,104 [,896
3,779 2,334 1,445
19,861 14,590 5,271
19,861 14,590 5,271
(2,049) 3,222 5,271
2,049 2,049 0
$0 $5,271 $5,271
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Management Information Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $10,750 £i10,750 80
Total revenues 16,750 10,750 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Support services:
Instructional Staff: .
Purchased services 5,000 0 5,000
Total instructional staff 5,000 0 5,000
Central:
Salaries and wages 5,000 ¢ 5,000
Fringe benefits 600 0 600
Purchased services . 5,000 0 5,000
Capital outlay 10,062 0 10,062
Total central 20,662 0 20,662
Total expenditures 25,662 i 25,662
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (14,912) 10,750 25,662
Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated) 14,912 14,912 0

Fund balance, June 3¢ 50 §25,662 $25,662
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Enfry Year Program Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Carrent:
Instruction:
Reguiar:

Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Funad balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 3¢

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budpget Actual {(Unfavorable)

$28,000 $28,000 $0
28,000 28,000 0
10,000 0 10,660
1,400 ] 1,400
12,600 420 12,180
4,600 2,600 1,400
28,000 3,020 24,980
0 24,980 24,980
g 0 G
30 $24,9380 $24,980
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

American Sign Language Grant Special Revenue Fund .

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 o ) o i -

Variance;
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental 50 $0 50
‘Total revenues 0 0 0
Expenditures

Current:

Instruction:
Regular: B
Capital outlay - new 2,661 2,553 108
Total expenditures 2,661 2,553 108
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (2,661) {2,553) 108
Fund balance, July I (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated} 2,661 2,661 0

Fund balance, June 30 (30) $108 $108
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Special
Salaries and wages
Finge benefits
Total special

Support services:
Instructional staff:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Capital outlay
Total Instructional Staff
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Badget Actual (Unfavorable)
$33,472 $32,654 ($818)
Q 818 8ig
33,472 33472 Q
36,967 36,967 0
_. 5307 5,307 0
42,274 42,274 0
8,588 8,588 0
6,682 6,682 0
88 818 0
16,088 16,088 0
58,362 58,362 0
(24,890) {24,890) 0
24,890 24,890 0
30 $0 0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Textbook Subsidy Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 S

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $54,338 $54,338 30
Total revenues 54,338 54,338 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular

Materials and supplies 105,732 105,732 0

Total regular 105,732 105,732 0

Total expenditures 105,732 105,732 0
Excess of revenues

over (under) expenditures (51,394) (51,394) 0

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated) 51,394 51,394 0

Fund balance, June 30 $0 $0 $0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Eisenhower Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:

Regular:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total regular

Support services:
Noninstructional:
Materials and supplies
Total noninstructional
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

" Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$13,019 $13,019 8¢
13,019 13,019 s
10,280 6,280 4,00¢
570 970 ¢
3,701 2,897 80
6,569 5,124 1,44
21,520 15,271 B 6,245
287 o 28
287 0 - 28,
21,807 15,271 o 6,53
(8,788) (2,252) 6,53
8,78% 8,788 o |
(50) $6,536 8653
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) |
Title VI B/ Preschool

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

“Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Special:
Purchased services
Capital outlay - new

Total special instruction

Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Capital outlay

Total Pupil

Instructional staff:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total instructional staff

Administration:
Fringe benefits
Materials and supplies

Capital outlay

Total administration

89

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$130,896 $124,971 ($5,925)
130,896 124,971 {5,925)
100 72 28
3,845 3,799 46
3,945 3,871 74
29,868 22,477 7,391
6,075 6,037 38
405 405 0
36,348 28,919 7,429
40,166 28,386 11,780
9,992 7,187 2,805
4,143 4,143 4]
15,051 14,981 70
69,352 54,697 14,655
1,013 808 205
750 608 142
750 674 76
2,513 2,090 423
Continued



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Title VI B/ Preschool (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

QOperations and non-instructional services:
Salaries and services
Fringe benefits
Materials and supplies

Total operations and non-instructional services

Total support services
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
vear ¢encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

S0

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

17,443 12,357 5,086
2,695 1,791 904
62 62 0
20,200 14,210 5,990
128,413 95,916 28,497
132,358 163,787 28,571
(1,462) 21,184 22,646
1,462 1,462 0
50 $22,646 $22,645




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Carl Perkins Education Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Total regular

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {(uses):

Advances in

Advances out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
vear encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Acinal (Unfavorable)
$11,622 $7,709 ($3,913)
11,622 7,709 3,913
5,300 5,300 0
2,526 2,526 0
7,826 7,826 0
7,826 7,826 0
3,796 i (3,913)
0 3,913 3,913
(3,796) (3,796} [§]
(3,796) 117 3,913
0 0 ¢
] ¢ y
50 $0 S0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary B

Title I Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenves

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outfay - new

Tota! special
Support services:

Pupil:

Salaries and wages

Fringe benefits

Purchased services

Total Pupil

Administration:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Parchased services

Total administration
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$258.316 $258,316 $0
258,316 258,316 0
145,244 122,229 23,015
22,770 22,767 3
14,692 2,401 12,291
11,780 11,779 1
1,778 1.778 ¢
(¢
196,264 160,954 35 ,3§G
31,770 22,397 937,

10,120 5,859 4,26
749 0 74

42,639 28,256 14,38

16,137 4,184 11,95

2,268 673 1,5¢

1,007 0 1,00

19,412 4,857 14.5:

258,315 194,067 64?2-

H 64,249 64,2
0 0
$1 $64,249 $64.2
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Title VI Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Tnstruction:

Regular:
Salaries and wages
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay

Total regular

Support services:
Pupils:
Salaries and wages
Total pupils

Administration:

Salaries and wages
Total administration

Operations and non-instructional
Salaries and wages

Materials and supplies
Total aperations and nen-instructional services

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$16,150 $16,150 $0
16,150 16,150 0
7,000 612 6,388
4413 3,705 708
3,185 3,119 66
4,122 3,400 713
18,720 10,845 7,875
2,060 0 2,600
2,000 0 2,000
1,000 0 1,000
1,000 0 1,000
2,315 1,245 1,070
2,244 1,915 329
4,559 3,160 1,399
26,279 14,005 12,274
(10,129) 2,145 12,274
10,129 16,129 0
$0 $12,274 $12,274




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT - N
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

EHA Pre-School Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actaal {Unfavorabie}
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $11,154 $11,154 $0
Total revenues 11,154 11,154 0
Expenditures:

Cusrent:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages 2,118 0 2,118
Fringe benefits 297 \] 297
Materials and supplies 2,767 2,096 671
Total speciat 5,182 2,006 3,086
Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages 315 0 315
Fringe benefits 44 0 44
Purchased services 5,648 ' 0 5,648
Capital cutlay 4,054 3,684 370
Total pupil 10,061 3,684 6,377
Instructional staff:
Purchased services 208 108 100
Total instructional staff 208 108 100
Total expenditures 15451 5,888 9,563
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures (4,297 5,266 9,563
Other financing sources (uses):

Refund of prior year receipts (2,095) (2,095) 0
Total other financing sources (uses} {2,095) (2,095) 0

Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses (6,392) 3,171 9,563
¥ond balance, July 1 (includes prior 6,392 6,392 ¢

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30 30 $9,563 $9,563
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LOVELAD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Drug Free Schools Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:

Purchased services
Capital outlay - new

Total regular

Special:

Materials and supplies
Total special

Support services:

Pupil:

Purchased services

Total pupil

Administration:
Salaries and wages
Total administration

Operations and non-instructional services:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total operations and non-instructional services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$0 $0 30
] ) 0
3,297 3,297 0
2,341 0 2,341
5,638 3,297 2,341
886 726 160
886 726 160
3,569 3,569 0
3,569 3,569 0
6,000 0 6,000
~ 6000 0 6,000
(300) (300) 0
a27 110 317
127 (190} 317
16,220 7,402 8,818
(16,220) (7,402) 8,818
16,220 16,220 0
50 $8,818 $8.818
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Telecomm Act Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $1,998 $1,998 $0
Total revenues 1,998 1,998 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages 0 0 0
Total special 0 V] 0
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 1,998 1,998 0
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior 0 0 ]
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance (deficit), June 30 - -$1,998 £1,998 30
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Continuous Improvement Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
- Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $10,000 $10,000 50
Total revenues 10,000 10,000 ¢
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular:
Purchased services 9,700 9,700 0
Materials and supplies 300 0 366
Total regular 10,000 9,700 300
Total expenditures 10,000 9,700 300
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures 0 380 300
Fund balance, July I (includes prior 0 ] a
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance (deficit), June 30 $0 $300 $£300
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment
of general obligation bond principal and interest and certain other long-term obligations from
governmental resources when the District is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Since there is only one Debt Service Fund and the level of budgetary control is not greater than
that presented in the General Purpose Financial Statements, no additional financial statements
are presented here.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are used fo account for the financing and acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings and additions to existing buildings, or
for major renovation projects, including equipment purchases other than those financed by
Proprietary or Nonexpendable Trust Fund. The following are descriptions of each Capital
Projects Fund:

BUILDING: To account for all transactions related to all special bond funds in the District.
Proceeds from the sale of bonds, except premium and accrued interest, are paid into this fund.

PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT: To account for all transactions related to acquiring,
constructing or improving such permanent improvements as are authorized by Chapter 5705,
Revised Code.

SCHOOL NET: To account for revenues and expenditures related to the development and
implementation of the School Net network within the district.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
June 30, 1999
Permanent School
Building Improvement Net Totals

Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $30,241,272 $202,940 $58,150 $30,502,36

Receivables:

Accrued interest 276,222 0 0 276,22
Total Assets 30,517,494 202,940 58,150 30,778,582
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 40,772 0 0 40,77
Contracts payable 215,052 0 0 215,05
Retainage payable 18,029 0 0 18,02¢
Accrued interest payable 333,333 0 0 333,33
Notes payable 20,000,000 0 0 20,000,00(
Total liabilities 20,607,186 0 0 20,607,18¢
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 15,863,642 2,033 a 15,845,675
Undesignated (5,953,334) 200,907 58,150 (5,694,277
Total fund equity (deficit) 9,510,308 202,940 58,150 16,171,398
Total Liabilities and fund equity $30,517,494 $202,940 $58,150 530,?78,,,5' 84
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOCL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balances

All Capital Projects Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Permanent Schocl
Building Improvement Net Totals
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $0 50 $354,860 $334,860
Investment 978,247 4] i} 978,247
Other revenues 0 186 0 186
Total revenues 978,247 186 354,860 1,333,293
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 0 9,611 288,465 298,080
Support services:
Pupil 4] 84,035 0 84,035
Instructional staff 0 0 16,814 16,814
Administration 1,406 0 o 1,406
Fiscal 7.333 0 o 7,333
Business 35974 0 g 35,974
Operations and maintensnce -0 40,282 ] 40,282
Central 14,479 61,561 31,575 107,615
Capital outlay 1,358,642 787,349 v 2,145,991
Debt Service:
Interest 333,333 9 0 333333
Total Expenditures 1,751,167 982,838 336,858 3,070,863
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures (772920) (982,652) 18,002 (1,737,570)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 10,000,000 1,753,317 0 11,753,317
Operating transfers (out) (1,316,772 0 0 1,315,772)
Proceeds of Bonds 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000
Total other financing sources {uscs) 10,683,228 1,753,317 g 12,436,545
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other
financing uses 9,910,308 770,663 18,002 10,698,975
Fund balance, July 1 0 (567,725) 40,148 (527,577
Fund balance, June 30 $9,910,308 32(}7&940 $58,150 $10,171,398
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Building Capital Projects Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Interest

Tota] revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Administration
Purchased services

Total administration

Fiscal
Purchased services

Total fiscal

Business
Capital cutlay - new

Total business

Central
Purchased services

Total central

Site improvement services
Purchased services

Total site improvement services

Architecture and Engineering Services
Purchased services

Total architecture and engineering services
Building Acquisition and Construction
Purchased services

Capital outlay - new

Total building acquisition and construction
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabl
$1,112 $783,883 $782
1,112 783,883 782
1,406 1,406
1,406 1,406
7.333 7,333
7,333 7,333
35974 35,974
35,974 35,974
14,479 14,479
14,479 14,479
3,837,204 3,837,204
3,837,204 3,837,204
1,680,098 1,680,098
1,680,098 1,680,098
33,094 33,094
13,460,166 0 13,46
13,493,260 33,004 13,46
" Con



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Building Capital Projects Fund ' :
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Building Improvement Services
Purchased services 2,396,261 2,396,261
Capital outlay ~ new 9,217,213 9.217,213
Total building improvement services 11,613,474 11,613,474
Total capital outlay 30,624,036 17,163,870 13,460,1
Total expenditures 30,683,228 17,223,062 13,460,
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (30,682,116) (16,439,179 14,2421
OCther financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of bonds 2,000,000 2,000,000
Proceeds from sale of notes 30,000,000 30,000,000
Operating transfers (out) (1,316,772) (1,316,772)
Total other financing sources (uses) 30,683,228 30,683,228
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other financing uses ) 1,112 14,244,049 14,242,
Fund balance, July 1
0 0
Fund balance, June 30 $1,112 $14,244,049 $14,247.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Permanent Improvement - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
‘Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Capital outlay - new
Total regular
Support services:
Pupil:
Capital outlay - new
Total pupil

Operations and maintenance:
Capital outlay - new

Total operations and maintenance

Central
Capital outlay - new

Total Central
Site Improvement Services:
Purchased services

Capital outlay - new

Total site improvement services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabls
50 50
0 0
11,644 11,644
11,644 11,644
86,680 86,680
86,680 86,680
40,282 40,282
40,282 40,282
65,981 65,981
65,981 65,981
415,954 415,954
495512 495,512
911,466 911,466
1,116,053 1,116,053 )
(1,116,053) {1,116,053)
Contir:
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Permanent Improvement - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Other financing sources (uses):

Advanes (out)
Refund of prior year expenditures
Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out
Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over {under} expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

{436,545) (436,545) 0
186 186 0
2,869,183 2,869,183 0
(1,115,866) (1,115,866) 0
1,316,958 1,316,958 9
200,905 200,505 0
0 0 0
$200,905 $200,505 $0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
School Net - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 199%

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits

Capital outlay
Total regular
Support Services:
Instructional Staff:
Purchased services

Total instructional staff

Central:
Purchased services

Totzl central

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$354,860 $354,860 $0
354,860 354,860 0
75 75 0
12 12 0
414,550 356,402 58,148
414,637 356,489 58,148
16,814 16,814 (0}
16,814 16,814 {0)
31,575 31,575 0
31,575 31,575 0
463,026 404,878 58,148
(108,166) {50,018) 58,148
108,166 108,166 0
$0 $58,148 $58,148
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the expense (including
depreciation) of providing goods or services primarily or solely to the general public be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges. The following are descriptions of each of the
District's Enterprise Funds:

FOOD SERVICE: To account for all revenues and expenses related to the provision of food
services, including breakfast and lunch, for the District students and staff.

LATCH KEY: To account for all revenues and expenses related to the Latch Key Program for
the schools in the district. -
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, GHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 1999

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Intergovernmental
Inventory held for resale

Total Current Assets

‘Non-current assets:
Fixed assets (net of accumulated

depreciation)
Total Asseis

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accrued wages
Compensated absences payable
Interfund payabie
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Retained Earnings:
Unreserved
Total retained earnings

Total Liabilities and fund equity

Food Latch
Service Key

$1,431 $1,680
10,922 0
20,472 0
32,825 1,680
98,534 0
131,359 1,680
82,554 0
11316 0
25,189 0
12,307 0
131,366 0
131,366 0

) 1,680

) 1,680

$131,359 $1,680 §
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Retained Earnings

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees
Sales
Other revenues

Total revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
Federal donated commodities
QOperating grants
Total non-operating revenues
Net Income

Retained Earnings, July 1

Retained Earnings, June 30

Food Latch
Service Key Totals

$0 $678 $678

659,010 0 659,010

28 0 28

659,038 678 659,716

322,665 12,663 335,328

123,954 1,747 125,701

8,777 0 8,777

411,901 0 411,901

31,662 0 31,662

898,959 14,410 913,369
~(239,921) (13,732) (253,653)

74,710 0 74,710

84,598 0 84,598

159,308 0 159,308
(80,613) {13,732) (94,345)

80,606 15,412 96,018

7 $1,680 $1,673
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, oHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALIL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from tuition and fees
Cash received from miscellaneous
Cash received from sales

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Cash payments to employees for services
Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:

Operating grants received

Miscellaneous
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconcihiation of operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (Joss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
Donated commmodities nsed
Changes in assets and lizbilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in inventory held for resale
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits

Increase {decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for} operating activities

Food Latch
Service Key
$0 $676
2,124 0
659,010 0
(353,780) (20)
(425,787) (14,408)
{118.433) (13,732)
86,361 0
13,000 0
99,361 0
(15,072) (13,752)
24,503 15,432
1,431 1,680
(239,921) (13,732) (:
31,662 0
74,710 4]
2,096 0
12,834 g
(10,927 i) <
25,693 0
(4,861) 0
9,719) Q
121,488 20) |
($118,433) ($13,752) (3
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to another department or agency of the District on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Since there is only one Internal Service Fund and the level of budgetary control is not greater
than that presented in the General Purpose Financial Statements, no further financial statements
are presented here.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The
District's fiduciary funds include an Expendable Trust Fund, Nonexpendable Trust Fund and
Agency Funds. The following are descriptions of each of the District's Fiduciary Funds:

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

SPECIAL TRUST: To account for donations received by the District in a trustee capacity.
(Since there is only one Expendable Trust Fund, the only financial statement presented here is
the combining balance sheet).

AGENCY FUND

STUDENT ACTIVITIES: To account for the resources that belong to the various student groups
in the District. The funds account for sales and other revenue generating activities by student
activity programs which have students involved in the management of the program.

DISTRICT AGENCY: To account for assets received and disbursed where the Dlstnct 18
required to act in an agency capacity.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

June 30, 1999

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Interfund payable
Due to students

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved:

Undesignated
Total fund equity (deficit)

Totat Liabilities and fund equity

Smdent
Expendable Activities District
Trust Agency Agency Totals
$51 $62,770 54,712 567,533
51 62,770 4,712 67,533
0 6,600 0 6,600
0 56,170 4,712 60,882
0 62,770 4,712 67,482
51 0 0 51
51 0 Q 51
$51 $62,770 $4,712 $67,533
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIC
Statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to students

Total Habilities

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to students

Total Liabilities

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liahilities
Due to students

Total liabilities

Student Activities Fund
Beginning N - ; “Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$50,381 $131,397 $119,008 $62,770
50,381 131,397 115,008 62,770
50,381 131,397 119,008 62,770
$50,381 $131,397 $119,008 $62,770
District Agency Fund
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$3,508 $4,837 $3,633 $4,712
3,508 4,837 3,633 4,712
3,508 4,837 3,633 4712
$3,508 $4,837 $3,633 $4,712
Total All Agency Funds
Beginning “Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$53,889 $135,234 $122,641 $67,482
0 0 0 0
53,889 136,234 122,641 67,482
53,889 136,234 122,641 67,482
$53,889 $136,234 $122,641 $67,482
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

This account group is used to account for all land and land improvements, building and building
improvements, furniture and equipment not used in the operations of the Proprietary Funds. The
majority of the District's assets are reflected in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source
June 30, 1999

General fixed assets:

Land and land improvements $1,436,356
Buildings and building improvements 15,791,599
Furniture and equipment 4,865,294
Construction in progress 1,294,018
Total General Fixed Assets $23,387,267

Investment in general fixed assets by source:

General Fund $253,552
Special Revenue Funds 120,072
Capital Projects Funds 2,466,598
Acquisitions Prior to July 1, 1997* 20,547,045
Total General Fixed Assets $23,387,267
b ————

* Represents older assets for which fund source cannot practically be obtained.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of General Fixed Assets

By Function and Type
June 30, 1999

Land Buildings Construction
and land and building Furniture and In
Function Improvements Improvements Equipment Progress Total

Instruction:

Regular $149,652 $334,583 $521,122 50 $1,005,357

Special 0 0 36,814 0 36,814
“Total instruction 149,652 334,583 557,936 0 1,042,171
Support services:

Pupil 0 4] 55,877 0 55,877

Instructional staff 0 0 4,836 ] 4,836

Administration 0 0 3,088 o 3,088

Fiscal 0 0 3,445 G 3,445

Business 9 0 34,653 0 34,653

Operations and maintenance 0 0 18,680 0 18,680

Pupil transportation 0 0 860 G 360

Central 0 0 176,546 o 176,546
Total support services 0 0 297,985 0 297985
Capital Outlay o 39,293 166,755 0 206,048
Construction in Progress 0 G 0 1,294,018 1,294,018
Other - Pre July 1, 1997 items* 1,286,704 15,417,723 3,842,618 ] 20,547,045
Total General Fixed Assets $1,436,356 $15,791,59% $4,865,294 $1,294,018 $23,387,267

“Represents older assets for which function cannot practically be obtained.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed

Assets by Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Balance at Balance at
Function July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
Instruction:
Regular $25,766 $979,591 56 $1,005,357
Special 0 36,814 0 36,814
Total Instruction 25,766 1,016,405 0 1,042,171
Support services:
Pupil 8,032 47,845 0 55,877
Instructional staff G 4,836 0 4,836
Administration 3,088 0 0 3,088
Fiscal o 3,445 ¢ 3,445
Business (¢} 34,653 0 34,653
Operations and maintenance 4,495 14,185 0 18,680
Pupil transportation 0 860 0 860
Central 27,181 149,365 0 176,546
Total Support services 42,796 255,189 0 297,985
Capital Qutlay 206,048 0 0 206,048
Construction in Progress 0 1,254,018 0 1,294,018
Other - Pre July 1, 1997 items* 20,661,705 0 114,660 20,547,045
Total General Fixed Assets $20,936,315 $2,565,612 $114,660 $23,387,267

*Represents older assets for which function cannot practically be obtained.
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STATISTICAL

SECTION

119



"SISBq Yses € U0 pazodos axe sieak [eosy soud [V

"5i5eq JYVD © U0 papodat reak 1511 o 51 1661 13, 183514 m
“SPI02ST 1MISK] [00495 K31 PUR[PAC] amog
e — i —— e

8I1E'S19'TTS £P9719'81% L96°90S°L1§ 6TO0P0'SIS  SEYRUGEIS  G6FCS6TIS  PSBTOCZIS  CICSTEOIS LPELTSTIS S6LYEC'6S SINUATY [210],
61169 185°L€1 £97'89 118'6¢ 8LL1S 81491 TE6'PE LLT'OE IFO‘EL ) S3NLIATY WYIO
0 0 0 0 ) 0 71 509'¥D ] 0 SPIANOY JE[moLmoRnXy
OLK'LOT 981'L51 AT T6T's11 966011 967'38 £7L'99 186'¢S £SLYr SBY'Ov $33,] pure uogIng,
889°6LZ 81¥'shL 68Tczl SHPPL 0SH'Es] S6L'¥3 £05°F3 95¢'29 981'08 §58°48 Jsasauy
§86 173 £69'60T°L LIESES rralTEn: OVSE'S 838°799'S 0ST'OL'S S65OVE'S 192°096's SISSLBY JeluatIRA0 I
08K E8RCIS §96'798°01S 750'178°01§ BS6'6EY'8S T P6ILS WH6TILS PEVOLE'DS R6L°LOT'SS 105'79L°5$ SEIILTYS soxe],

6661 2661 L1661 9661 $661 #5661 £661 7661 1661 0661 ey

{easig
6661 - 0661
(1) ssea g [e3s14 ua], s
s0anog Ag senuaAsy puny jelouap
1319V OIHO ‘LORIISIA TOOHIS ALLY ANVTHAOT

120



i ——————

‘5158 YSBD B U0 paniodal o sivdk [2osy soud [y ‘sistq JvvD € uo papodal aeak )siy o) S1 2661 Je0 ) 881 (1)

*SPI0DA J3LLEIC] [OOUOS AILD) PUEIIACT 15005

\

068°ISK 0TS 9L 1L1'8IS £2' 189018 BEY'6ET'SIS 079 THEYIS STLST'EIS  016°01S' IS gFE6€8°018 919°6L5°01§ 121°€89°6% saumpusdxy [0l
0 Y0Z'0E1 0052 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SdMALRE (]
001 920'%1 9591 SLe'll SO1'%T oLi Tl 0o . 0 0 Aapng endeD
20507 979'€61 TSET91 10¢°991 961°9¢1 SLE'VEL 6.8°08 g56'L 0 61Z°1 SORIANDY JB[nOLUNSRYXE
YEL'RTL 20V'787 O 1'v6E SLS'LTL 6Z¥'08 SLS9Y 0 0 SE0'vR 0 [enual)
8EO'R9E'T . N’ orli'1o 866'PE0' LY T95°110°1 £5P'88L 9E¥ LOB ££L'068 SOO'E08 uorrauodsuelr, [idng
1#7'0L6'] LSS'EE8] 788551 178'06¢'1 69£°6LT' ] g61°161°1 £1€°706 250'0L6 6E1'8¥6 £9¢°006 d0uBULIUIRHY pus suoHLdO
06" 1€ tHo'obe 006'8£7 188061 SITsLl £L8°L61 PeLOV] 6PE8T1 861'€T1 £78'c8 ssasng]
6£€'99¢ ¥ie'sey 12T'99¢ 0E6°TEE 16401€ 09L'10¢ TTE'erE WETHT TLEL9T 868'97T [Lach
LOLEEY] 610'596 289°68T'1 ¥89°8p1°1 066" 190°1 EEL'ET0N 8098 0z0'0£6 859652 9L0'P08 UoHRASIINUPY
£65°89 £I€°C8 086'8¢ L9t 966'ST 681°LT 159°Z1 o11's1 LoS'p1 oLE'Tl uogeonpg jo pieoy
£65°767 $8¢° AT £86'€ST ePpesT 108°052 SSLTHT 299°612 et 091°L1T T09°661 Jyug jeuohontsuj
098°693 0se'ots TEY'ELY 991659 816'619 w009 869°v7S TOE' IS 9L1'L6Y 805°3TY Julng
01T 4] 0 0 0 ] Ev6'L $89°69 $56°021 088°95 uononusu] IO
6E0'TSY 1L1°0s¥ £16°0EY $65°C6€ $OL°LLE LOT'8LE S8TYIC 950°55T 068°657 068'6+T ucHInRsu] [BUOHEIOA
186°€0L°1 ¥S8vssl 819°997°1 68£°050'1 £95°868 1€L'8¥9 Tov'oey 78S°605 £80°CHy 00£'86€ uoponnsy] [epeds
SHE'PLLOIS s15°628'68 LR IT0'6s 8TSOPEeS £60°186°L$ ov8'roLLs 208°96L'98 069°980'9% 09.°658'S$ 186'815°CY uononysul e[ndey
6661 8661 L661 9661 5661 661 £661 T66!1 1661 0661 A
LR
6661 - 0661
(1) sreax Jeosty uo[, 1se']
nonouny Aq saanpipuadxy punyj jesousp)
19Vl OIHO IDIYISIA TOOHOS ALL) ANVTHAOT

121



8661 PUE L661 10F papnjoul Ajuo a5e s3xg) usnbutiop Auncy) juowal)
SINDO0 TAUSSIESE 52 UoneSijqo xe) oy

Jo 1red swoadq Aoy me| o) Aq 99UIs “PAPI[UL D18 1SAISIUL PUB SaL)[RUS] &)
8661 PUE /66 | 10] papnjoul A|Uo are SUOHO2[[03 AUROT) JHOWLISL)

“popnjauL 218 SUodaXa peslsoUlty pug Yorq|[ol JO SIEUSINGUIIAI 0)E1S ©)
"B6G T PUE L661 10J PAPRIOUL AJUO 318 POIAS]

soxu) AJUNOY) JMCULI) *sIseq Ysed v Ho pajussald aIv pojoa|joo pus palaa] sax8], 64
"$18101 ¢661 ydnoy

6861 93 U} PIpn[oUL J0U 318 ST PUE £46] 03 J01d JGRIIBAR 10U 555 SUOHIIA]I00) XBL
10, “1oAamo]] “SUORII[IOD) X8, 230, JO uondaoxa s g JoNpny Lune))
JUOULIATY) S WO S[qE[IEAE JOU SM 9661 YSnoup) 6961 woyy uoneuuojuy . (1)

‘s0upny b::cU GALBM PAre J:OE.BHU “ﬁBmEcm SNeg
%8'E 1.8°9558 %I10°'L6 £6L'85Y9O18 $089Z€S %80°56 886'1£1°018 96£°996'019 6661
%0L'T £8TYOES 9%59'86 STEPOEEIS FEG'EPTS %y8'96 165'090°C1% LIS'OBY'EIS 2661
%8€'T 11Z°01£$ %60'86 0cEL8L°T1S 89L°19T8 %8096 895'675°718 L10'9E0'E1$ 1661
%ETE 011°0£28 %T6'96 LSS'968°08 250°IVIS %166 661°65L°93 01L'S1V'LS 9661
%E6'T 625°L0T8 %ET'L6 £25'788'9% LT9'881S %LG Y6 968'£699% 1SE'8L0'LS $661
%50 9523078 %01'96 0£H'90£'08 £19°1918 %99°€6 L18'907 98 060'279'9% ¥661
%09 £97°9828 %68'56 yIF068'S £EROEIS %99°E6 185°65L°SS Pr'er1'os £661
%86'C yEpTTIS %T0'%6 SLY'19€°¢S 975'€68 %SE V6 6¥6°L9T7°SS SGHERS'ES 7661
%0¢°¢ 8bLSEIS Y%LL'96 6LLTR6ES 6LEGLS %86 00" €06°€S LEL'STTYS 1661
%P6'T ¥18°6018 %IL'L6 6I6E£0°CS 699183 %P6'v6 068 155°€S 8LITHL'ES 0661
pateT xe], of, () soxuy, Asey oL SUOBIII0)) uonsfio) pa10a][o)) {g) suonaafo)) (2) patasy xs, Jeag
saxe], uanburaq wanburppg SUOI3[{07) X8], [®10], juanbuippg JLIERYER XgJ, uaun) uonBd0)
Suipuwising Supueising IE101, JO
Jouodiag liCRTER
6661 - 0661
(1) s;ea x (Fepuaje)) UOKIAIO]) UA Y, Ise]
Kyadoag Annp oqngd pu By - SUONDSII0)) PR sa1As] xe, Aadorg
EHIgGVE OIHO ‘IDIISIA TOOHIS AL QNYTIAOT

122



“A1un) JUOLLIAYY) P AJING?) BOHRUIRE] A[i0 9PNIouL SH[EA 8661 L
"AUITIOD) WLIE AN 1403} OfGUIIEAY 0K SR 8661 10) UoRewmoly  (5)

“anjeA PIFRUNSY [EC/ONIRA PIssIsse sjuasauda oney @

SIS JEIA JEPUIED ¥ 0D PAUTEIUINIT Are
spiooas we) Aadosd soypay AumoD uoset] (1)

SERIPAY KUnoD UOLIBA, PUR JUOULIDL) U0y Ramos

%6E'SE 8LO'ILE6ST'L 0EE08S 'ShY SLR'SLY'LE 0LO'ER6'1T 0¥T'056'PL 095'LEL'S] 000'THL'95 1L 00L'658'PO0¥ 6661
%PISE 8THRLL'SI] $66'965'601 ST6'09H'61 o,x_,@m.n_ 099'LZ8'1L $16'966'LI £r5 68k pL0' e 1L0'9LE {£) 8661
woI'sE 9BL'OPFSII'] 86V 16Z'C6E £98°681°07 068'151°91 TSre0s'eL 88L'sel8l 1L ESL ST 0z8'glo'ase L1661
%E1SE SS9 IFE'SLE EPL'E61ErE E9L'E01'61 010'¢87'$1 T6TOEL'L £L5'TE6'1 009'L05'388 099'LL6"01E 9661
WETSE 07T THL 668 SER'FIS’LIE £99°Lev3l 0E1'05L'¥1 TL8'88F°95 RIT'TLIY 989'SER°PT8 06¢'769'887 661
%SHSE BEsLaTig 161'898'L87 Beo'sLLl olLee'el PTOEIE 1Y 1£R'0PE 00 oo LTr'ESL 065'669'€9C 661
NEY'EE ELO'LOE 1L ¥ TOF T £16°169°05 065'E01'El 095' 140" 0601011 008'£95°679 099'8E 0L £661
%K e £1HE98999 Lrrzze e 888'959'1§ 015'2L8° 11 89Y'ITL'TY L15°189°01 LSO'0BY'OLS 020899661 7661
UPG'TE T50'EZE'S6S £9€'080°961 £90°L69' (S 091's6L'6 TE6'3E8'6E £EL°656% LSO'LBLE05 oLK'sTE'9L) 1661
%ro'Te SLTBAT'65VS 66T'6E6°6H1S STL'SES'LYS 076'100°6$ 9{9'CER1ES 60F"356'L$ ¥16°6£6°6LES 0L6'8L6'TE1S 0661

(z) oney S [Ey PuBA njes [enoy ;A HEA Y e njeA eIy FCILTY wIN

pelwsy pessassy paRLIysH passassy patewnsyg pamsasy povaugsy passassy uoyIIo)
[ETH Jposiad sammit Hond Ausdald jeuosiad Siqiuz], Auadord vy
6661 - 066 ¢

(1) swea ), (1epuae]) uopas|jo)) U, 1587]
Auadoag ajqexe] Jo STifBA [RIIOY PABUIST PUB Pssossy
F 19V OIHO ‘IOFYISIA TOOHIS AL aNVTFA0T



“SIONPNY AIUNOY) USLIEA PUE JUOULIS]) UOHIUEY —:8MIN0S

WAl orel 01l or°Ll oLl oret 09'81 1z e 11°¢e diysumoy, urery

0991 0991 0Ll 0oLl 0%°L1 0o'L1 09°L1 09°LL 09°LI 0Lt diysumo], usyson

oL's 058 058 §C6 LA §T6 sT6 A §To ST Aunoy) juouus)

or's ore 0I'L orL 0L LS9 L§9 00's 00°S SLy Ajuno)) uonep

oLt oLt 0L 0Lt 0LT 0L'T oLt 0LT 0L'T 0Le 100D [EUOHBIOA JUlOf §YB() JealD)

0£'8 0€°01 0£°01 0£'01 0£'01 0011 0011 00°11 00°11 0611 digsumo] sauwdg

wiL T6'8 [4A] we 0001 00°01 00°01 00°01 0001 0001 puBRACT JO AI1D

991 8891 0sLT 9¢°81 £E°8l 0£'81 0e'8l 1241 10°61 ¥<'61 Aunop) uoyjuer]

80°Cs 9'is veLS 9L 69'9% £1'98 s ¥I°09 85°65 1749 10SIY [0oydS A1) puBiAcT
0661 1661 To61 £661 661 £661 9661 L661 8661 6661 &nug

6661 - 0661

sIwa & (Fepus[e)) uonasyjo) us], ise]

syuourusaory Surddeproa() pue 1an(]

(uoneniep passassy JO 000°1$ 124) sarey xe], Auadoig

§HTAVI OIHO IDIYISIA TOOHOS ALID QNVYTIAOT

124



‘s15eq Yseo & uo poptodar arm sieak Joud [y 'siseq JyVD 8 uo pariodar Jesk 1813 Sy s1 L66 ] Nea ) [eosld {¢)

*SAIUNOD UILIEAY PUB UOI[IUBH WO} BIBP SAPR[OUI AJU0 S pue £Junoy) USLIBAY L0 S[B]IBAE JOU SeM BIED 8661

*S1S8q JE3A JPUSE ‘SIONPNY AUNC,) UALIEAL PUR JIOLLIL) U IWURH (¢A]

"PAUIEIGE 9 JOU PINOO SILEPUNO RHUSI [00Ys oY) 0] o1yisads uoneunoful ‘pue[sacy Jo KD

a1jus oy} 10j papujoul s efeq] "PUR[RAGT Jo AID 93 Aq papiaoid saTBWINSI ‘G661 PUB 0661 10 BIEP STSUD (1

ﬁou.—:om
S69°1 %06 £€0°628' 1T 0L TIE'ET yeLObLSE 0£E'088 Sk 88Tl 6661
86 %86'C 148°907'T1 6Z1'0LF'] 000°€89°¢1 $66'065'60F 78871 8661
7001 %LT'E #90°506'T1 9€6°65%1 00059€ 1 86¥'16T°00F 78871 L661
¥60°1 %I1Y 0Z€'66071 089°010°1 000°011°S1 HTE61EPE 29821 9661
914 %1Ly STL906'Y1 SLT'E1S 000°08L'St 3CLPOGLIE 78871 5661
#95°1 %0p'S SLL'PES'ST STT'0T9 © o 000S1'91 1E1'898'L8T 0£6'6 #661
0F9°1 %999 v63'L3T'91 901°L6¥ TR OV TOV VYT 0£6'6 £661
7691 %95'L ¥TT'008°01 oLLObS 000°LPE LI l'eer'eet 0£6'6 7661
001 %150 LTL066 £LTvET 000°52T1 £06'080961 0£6'6 1661
AL %180 2€4°80¢°1 2oT'161 000001 667°6E6'6¥1 0£6'6 0661
¥lide) (CAETLIN 1990 (£) pung (sa10N Buipnpoup) (7) anjep (1) uongjndog Teag

21930 passassy o],  papuoglaN IA1G 192 1930 possassy
papuog laN  1qe( papuog 8897 papuog [Ei0],
parewnsy  JaN Jo oney §8010)

6661 - 0661

sIEax US] 1se]

eytde]) 124 199(] popuog 1N PuY

an[eA passassy 0} (sajoN Buipnjour) 1ga(] papuog [BISUL) JaN JO oley

9HTAVL OIHO ‘IDIYISIA TOOHIS ALID ANVTAAOT

125



nteer—_ Ao e .

£22°010Y8
0

£CT010'YS

085St

085°Syrs$

y99'v$5°8018

VEL'OVI'SY

0

YEL'OVI'SYS

10L°T1E°EL
6TCTO10¥8

e

0££°086°Sy¥s

LHTVI

*$PI0AI ILUSICY JOOYOS AN PUBJOADT]  190IN0S

UORENW] %6°0 WUHM WISl 3op (e8]
preog ay) 4q

PAZHIOYINE $3j0U UOHBAISSUOY AT1auy
UOLIBI[BA DISSISSB JO %50

uonEyI 163(

TH0'EET UORIAG ap0)) PasiaAy oY
uoneIIuy] puog uoneAlasucy ASrug

o] % 10 Wipis wieut 1qop efe]

UORBII] %1°0 01 1000qns 1930
uoHBIwI] woly dILRX? 1qa(] 1S53

pieog ay) Aq paz|JoyIng SSIUPAJGIPUI SSCIN
1G9P PRIOAUN 0) PAEIRL

pun,] S31ARG JQ2(T Ul S]qe[IRAL JUROWY
UOEN|BA PASSISSE JO %10

UOnBHUILL 3q9D PAj0oAU[)

126

UOHEILUET 3G3(] 10311 paloAuf)
UOHBINL 946 UNPIA uidrews jgop (8o

uonEILl %46 01 193qns 1920
uoyFeII] woyy dwaxa 10a(] 58977

SS3UPIQIPUL §50I5)

pung 901AI3S 105(] UI 2[GR{IBAR JUNCUEY
UONRN[BA PISSISSE JO %6

uoneIu] 1g9p 001

UORBIRUY 193] 15311 JIEIA0)

PLISICY JO HOLRN[RA POsSISSY

6661 ‘0¢ dung
wSIBA 193(] [e8o7 Jo uonendwio))

OIHO ‘IOIYLSIA TOOHIS ALID QNVTHAOT



Jiouno)) K1os1apy [ediounyy oo o £q paseinoed (1)

T1ounoy) L10SIApY [EdIDIUN 1Y) :50I008

£65'386'¥53 $8976€THTS 1qap Buiddejeso pue 111p (0],

658°LEH35 1S6° 1¥8°5618 Burddepsao g0,
0 %09'¢ 0 (I/S [BUOTIEIOA JUIO[ SYEQ 18210
9LECY %E1'9T 000991 diysumoy, sounug
966'59 %LS'ET 000082 diysumoy, Ruety
ove'E %76 052891 diysumo, uojjumy
0L2Z %bSy 00005 diysumoy, usyson
YT6'vrs'y %L0'16 000°02¢’s PUE[3A0T 3O KD
S06°6€ %ITO 102'200°61 Ajuno) usirepm
807°8LS'T %59'1 000°552°961 Aunoy) uoHel
0F6°658% %68°S 000°009°v1$ Aunopy Juowisal)

Buiddepoap

YEL'0SS OS %00°001 ¥EL'0sS oS Jomsi( [00Y3g AN puB[aA0T]
0211
pUsIq (1) wmsiq uonesiiqo U[) [RUALWIACH
o} s|qeayjddy 03 3|qeotddy [B18UE) $5040)
Junoury Jusdiad

6661 ‘0g sung

192(J Swiddejwag pue 30a11(T Jo nonrnduwo))

8a1aVI OIHO ‘IDIIISIA TOOHIS A.LID ANVTHAOT

127



"§158q Yse2 B U0 papiodal are siead [eosyy toud 1y
81580 JY'VD € u0 papiodal reak 183y oY) S| L66] B0 A [B9sId 4]

‘SPICRL JNsI [o0YoS b_U pUB[2A0] WRAN0Y
%ES'L 8ToIv'or Treioes] 6661
%CT'8 ANTAR 9zTE6Y'l 8661
%88'6 £2E189°] 690°8¢9'1 - L661
%06°01 8€9°6€T°C1 191°199'1 9661
%99'11 0T9THE'YI 988°7LY' $661
%6L'T1 STLGST'EN 654°£89°1 661
%86'S1 016°015°11 1r'6£8'] £661
%LS'0S 8¥€'6£8°01 STE'I8Y'S 7661
%OF'T 91961501 0€0'7ST 1661
%EL'T 121°¢89° YLT'P9T 0661
(%) samyipuadxg sarmypuadxg a0jAlg (1) 1801
pun,j jeisten o1 pun] [Risuan 1G93(] R0 easty
ANAIE 1997 Jo onvy mo],
6661 - 0661
$IB0X [BOSLY UD], 158

6 19VL

sonyipuadxy] pun, [BIDUSL) [£10], 0 13(] POPUOY [BIBUSL) JO]
samypuadxs] 9014198 1G3(] [enuUyY JO oney
OIHO ‘LOTYLSIA TOOHIS ALID ANV TAAOT

128



‘a]qe[IEAR JOT SEA ATUO JOLNSI(] S JOJ E1R(] "PUB[ACT JO K17 a1y J0J ST Bje(]
"pueraA0 Jo A0 o £q papraoid SojEUINS ‘G66] PUB 0667 I0F EIUP SUSUIY)  :02MOY

SIONIOM TE[[OD) anjf
SIHA0 M JRIIOD) SPYA
uonednoog

a3ap100) Jo s1ea) -+ parejdmo))
uoneonpyg Aq uonendog

anfeA SCH 98rIoAY
aoou] Ployasnoy] afersAy
SploYasnoy

wonrgndog

8SH'I 892°1

PIZY 6TLE

£69°T S8Y'T
$69°601% 6L9°L6%
667'75$ 9.L8vbS
£ob'y opb'e
78871 0£6'6

$661 0661

oI T19VI

6661 - 0661
STB9X U3], 158
sansueg oydeidowacy

OIHO ‘LONLSIA TOOHIS ALID ANVTIA0T

129



sanfea passesse Auadoid oy
‘si5eq Kgak JEpUS[ED ‘SIONPTY AIUNOY) UL PUR JUOULIDLD ‘woyuuey  (g)

‘PUB[RAR]D) “uBg 2163y [RIIPAF A[UO JOLUSIT U
10§ J[QE[IBAB 10U SEA\ BJB(] ('SYUEQ PAIIMIBYD 9}E)S PUE [BUOLIEU SIpR[oUL)

‘WO “AIune]) uoyurE ul pasayenbpeay sxueq [fe jo snsodsp @10l ()

‘1661 PUE ‘0661 ‘6861 SIB2A JEPUO[ED 10} J|E|IEAB J0U SBA UCHEBUKON

puappacgjo 110 (1) 100108
00L'658'v0¥ TTES0EYT 000°000°02 6661
OVE1LO'9LE LEV'0LO'ST 000°L6L°01 8661
0Z8€10°65€ 9£6'868°12 000'588 L661
099°LL6'01E 8E1199'81 000¥€8'11 9661
06v'769'88T 6V 10€°LE 000°666°L $661
065'669°€92 TS0°06Z°S1 K00E19'¢L 661
099'8¥€°0CL LSE'008'€1 000'6L5'01 €661
020899661 £00'SPLT1 000°087°L1 7661
OL¥'STEOLT LET'LVYOI VIN 1661
OL6'SLETEIS O pLL'esI'o01s VIN 0661

(g) sonpep {spuesnol}, uf) (1) voonnsua) 183 1, JEpURIED
Ayadoig (2) susodaq
jueg
6661 - 0661
siea § Jepus[e)) uaj, 1seq]

sanjep Kyradoxg pue sysoda(] Jueq ‘UononIsuo)
namgavr OIHO ‘IDNNISIA TOOHDS AL ANVTIAOT

130



%9

%S0

%070

WITO

%ET0

%38T0

%38C0

%LE0

%0¥0

%ILD

%€8°]

uoneneA
PossassY
[E30], Jo %

I TV

0ES TPTO1S

00TTLS
010°€69
0¥0°0LL
000°0Z8
09€°5L6
0¥E'086
U RS
08T°20%'|
016'16v'C

05€'sTY'98

Auadorg
kst

*6661 ‘0C aung Jo se Jjqe[ieas uoneuuojul uo pasegq (1)

$103ipny AJUoD) USLIZAR PUE JUORNA]) ‘UOJIURH  193IN0S

11 USIUBUGSIAT] I0JSIUYOULA
ofe]iA PA0ISIM

YT 111 30331g-PUBIDADT]
pacypelg sdlyd
disiomm uaaelj ssaddoys
BIRPEIA-PUR[AQ T-UBTHSSOY
PIT 208014-PUR|PAC]

P} siaupred 98pry 123Q
Jieg Heuwown

ADYINID

12hedxe], Jo sumep

(1) 6661 og dung
siakedxe ], fediourrg uay, dog,

Auadoag [eoy
OIHO ‘IDINISIA TOOHIS ALLD ANV TIAOT

131



998¢ 9%¢ ¥ET 1244 1414 96T 66T 18 182 L6t LIt 88¢C (444 LT¥ 6678661
[eor | [ar][o][o]lefjle]ledlellellr]lelle] s ]x]
apern) Aq Juxujjoag

6661 ‘0¢ aunf
BIB(] [EOLSIIB)G SHOAUR][IOSTIA]

E1AT4VI OIHO LOTALSIA TOOHDS AL ANVTHAOT

132



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

LOVELAND, OHIO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINAN CIAL~REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

LOVELAND, OHIO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Prepared by:
Jill Manville, Treasurer



INTRODUCTORY

SECTION




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Ii.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Table of Contents
Letter of Transmittal
List of Principal Officials
Organizational Chart

ASBO Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting
GFOA Certificate of Acheivement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types and Account Groups

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
All Governmental Fund Types
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Reiamed Earnings
All Proprietary Fund Types
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
All Proprietary Fund Types
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND AND ACCOUNT
GROUP STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

General Fund:
General Fund Description

PAGE

13
14
15
16

19

22

24

26

28

29
31

60



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance,
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis )

Special Revenue Funds:
Description of Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Public School Support

Learning Links

Venture Capital East

Athletic

Auxiliary Services

Career Education

Teacher Development
Management Information

Entry Year Program

American Sign Language
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid
Textbook Subsidy

Eisenhower Professional Development
Title VIB/PreSchool

Carl Perkins Vocational Education Act
Title I

Title VI

EHA Preschool

Drug Free Schools

Telecomm Act

Continuous Improvement Grant

Debt Service Fund:
Description of Fund

PAGE

61

65
68

72

76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
8s
86
87
88
89
91
92
93
94
95
96
97

98



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
. COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Capital Project Funds:
Description of Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Building - Capital Projects Fund
Permanent Improvement-Capital Projects Fund
School Net Plus-Capital Projects Fund

Enterprise Funds:
Description of Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Retained Earnings
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Fund:
Description of Fund

Fiduciary Funds:
Description of Funds
Combining Balance Sheet - All Fiduciary Fund Types
Combining Statemnent of Chages in Assets and Liabilities ~ All Agency Funds

General Fixed Assets Account Group:
Description of Account Group
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function and Type
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function

PAGE

99
100

- 101

102
104
106

107
108
109
110

111

112
113
114

115
116
117
118



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
HI. STATISTICAL SECTION

General Fund Revenues by Source 120
General Fund Expenditures by Functions 121
Property Tax Levies and Collections ) 122
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property , 123
Property Tax Rates . 124
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value & 7

Net Bonded Debt per Capita 125
Computation of Legal Debt Margin 126
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 127
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures 128
Demographic Statistics T 129
Construction, Bank Deposits and Property Values 130
Real and Tangible Personal Property, Top Ten Principal Taxpayers 131
Miscellaneous Statistical Data : 132



Loveland City School District

757 South Lebanon Road « Loveland, Ohio 45140
Telephone {513) 683-5600
Fax Number 683-5697

December 29, 1999
To the Citizens and Board of Education of the Loveland City School District:

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the Loveland City School District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data, and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. . This report
is prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as set
fourth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other recognized
" authoritative sources. We believe the enclosed data is fairly presented in all material
aspects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included. This report has been prepared by the Treasurer’s
Office and includes the unqualified opinion of our independent auditor, Jim Petro,
Auditor of State.

The CAFR is presented in the following three sections:

Introductory Section — This section introduces the reader to the report and includes the
table of contents, this transmittal letter, a list of principal and elected officials, and the
District’s organizational chart.

Financial Section — This section includes the general purpose financial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules as
well as the auditor’s report.

Statistical Section-The information preseﬁted in this section is designated to reflect social
and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal capacity of the District.

LOVELAND INTERMEDIATE LOVELAND-MIAME ELEMENTARY L1 OYD MANN PRIMARY

HIGH SCHOOL MIDDLE SCHOOL S0 Loveland-Madeim Rd. . 6740 Loveland-Miamille .

#1 Tiger Trail 801 S Lebanon Rd. . 600 Loveland-Madeira R5d.



THE REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES PROVIDED

This report includes all funds and account groups of the District. The District also
acts as fiscal agent for State funds distributed to parochial schools located within the
District boundaries. This fiduciary responsibility is included in the reporting entity as an
agency fund. Although these organizations share operational and service similarity with
the District, each is a separate and distinct entity. Because of their independent nature,
none of these organizations’ financial statements are included in this report.

The District provides a full range of traditional and non-traditional educational
programs and services. These include elementary and secondary curriculum offerings at
the general, college preparatory, advanced placement, gifted, special education and
vocational levels; a broad range of co-curricular and extra-curricular activities; adult and
community education offerings; special education programs and community recreation
activities.

MAJOR INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR

Dr. Michael Ciine presented the following goals to the Board of Education and
Loveland Community in conjunction with the initial phases of the District’s facilities
Improvement program.

Our major emphasis for the coming year will be planning the first phase for a
smooth transition of our reorganization of grade levels. The first transition (2000-01
school year) will have the fifth and sixth grade moving into the new building and the
eighth grade temporarily housed in the High School while renovation takes place at the
Middle School. The following year (2001-02 school year), the schools will make the full
reorganization of grade levels; preschool and kindergarten at Lloyd Mann; Grade 1 and 2
at Loveland Miami; Grade 3 and 4 at Loveland Intermediate; Grade 5 and 6 in the new
building; Grade 7 and 8 in the Middle School; Grades 9 through 12 at the High School.

The second point of emphasis will be to put in place a process called a
Continuous Improvement Plan (CIP). The school district is ready for targeting
improvements on the Local Report Card. The process has already begun with our special
education program and our talented and gifted program. Other subject and program areas
of the curriculum will be scheduled for review in fiscal year 2000.

Additional areas of emphasis will include construction of the new 5™ and 6"
grade school. This facility will include 42 classrooms, a gymnasium and new media
center and new cafeteria to be shared with 7% and 8" grade in the remodeled middle
school. The existing high school will receive 16 additional classrooms, a greatly
enlarged music area, additional cafeteria space and a second gymnasium. Both facilities
will be available for the 2000-01 school year. Finally, total remodeling of the existing
middle school, and additions and remodeling to Loveland intermediate, Loveland Miami
and Lloyd Mann schools are planned. These projects will begin during the summer of
2000 and be completed for the 2001-2002 school year.



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOQOK

The District is just northeast of the City of Cincinnati. The School’s Community
lies in the corners of the counties of Hamilton, Clermont and Warren and is comprised of
approximately 10.6 square miles. The District surrounds the City of Loveland and
overlaps portions of the townships of Symmes, Miami and Hamilton. The following
chart demonstrates the representation of the registered voters by their political
subdivisions.

LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
VOTER DISTRIBUTION GRAPH

1998 TOTAL REGISTERED VOTERS e -

Hamitton Twp
2%

SHOWN BY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION WITHIN EACH COUNYY

Voter distributions have significantly shifted in the past decade. Miami Township
continues to grow with new upper middle-class housing developments that contribute a
greater proportion of property tax revenues with respects to the costs associated with
education the children from these families. This ten-year trend in growth, which
originated on the Hamilton County section of the District in Symmes Township, has
brought with it an extremely involved and proactive community, which is evidenced by
our most recent ballot issues.

In 1996, Loveland City Schools passed a 5.6 mil operating levy by a 60%
approval while drawing 75% of the registered voters, This past year, the Community
continued to show their support of Loveland City Schools with a nearly 70% voter turn-
out in November and decidedly approved a plan to completely overhaul the District’s



facilities by passing a thirty-two million-dollar Construction, Additions, Renovations and
Equipment (CARE) bond issue.

Property tax revenues of the residential/agricultural class predominantly support
Loveland City Schools. Through the continued conversion of agricultural land into
upscale residential properties being inhabited by well-educated upper middle-class
families, Loveland City Schools is secure in its economic future in that the community
understands and supports the value of education not just for sustaining property values,
but because of the intrinsic value it has brought to their own lives and their desire to
insure this for the children.

Additionally, the ability of the Loveland Community to provide for the District
has comparatively increased in the past decade. With the median income of $51,721,
Loveland City Schools enjoys the status of being 35 in the State of Ohio. This compares
to a position of 50™ with a median income of $32,754 just ten years earlier. Similarly,
assessed property values have increased from $50,389 per pupil and .’2',73'”d in the State to
$95,383 per pupil and 143" from 1989 to 1999. R

With that, the District is as stable as the region in which the Community works.
Since Loveland City Schools is the largest employer within the District’s boundaries, it is
safe to say that the District’s economic stability is as broad based as the businesses in the
Cincinnati and surrounding areas which employ these taxpayers.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The District’s accounting system is organized on a “fund” basis. Each fund and
account group is a distinct, self-balancing entity. For purposes of the District’s CAFR the
funds are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
GAAP, as more fully described in the notes to the financial statements provides for a
modified accrual basis of accounting for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt
Service Fund, Capital Projects Funds, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds, and for full
accrual basis of accounting for all other funds.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected
from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a



control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from its implementation; and
(2) the valuation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

“«

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The District maintains its accounts, appropriations, and other financial records in
accordance with the procedures established and prescribed by the Auditor of State. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriation resolution approved by the Board of Education.
The level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is established at the fund level. The District also maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts at year-end are carried forward to succeeding years and are not re-
appropriated. As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial

section of this report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS

Revenues for the District’s general operating fund totaled $22,615,318,
representing and increase of $4,071,993 (22%) over 1998.

-

Continued growth in both residential and commercial properties will allow for a steady
increase in tax revenues in the future.

The amount of 1999 revenues and increases (decreases) over 1998 are presented below:

Increase

Fiscal Fiscal (Decrease)
99 98 from 1998

Revenues:
Taxes $13,883,486 $10,862,965 $3,020,521
Intergovernmenial 8,221,555 7,209,493 1,012,062
Investment Revenue 279,688 245,418 34,270
Tuition and Fees 167,470 157,186 10,284
Other Revenues 63.119 137,581 (74.462)
Total Revenues $22.615.318 $18.612.643 $4.002.675



Expenditures for the District’s general operating fund totaled $20,451,890, representing
an increase of $2,280,164 (12.54%) over 1998. A significant portion of the increase is
the result of efforts fo upgrade the District’s pupil transportation system. This effort is
clearly reflected in the 74% increase in pupil transportation expenditures.

The amount of 1999 expenditures increases (decreases) are presented below:

Increase
Fiscal Fiscal (Decrease)
99 98 from 1998
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular $10,224,345 $9,829,515 $394,830
Special 1,703,951 1,554,854 149,097
Vocational 452,039 450,171 1,868
Other 27,102 0 27,102
Support Services:
Pupils 863,860 836,350 27,510
Instructional Staff - 292,553 282,385 10,168
Board of Education 68,693 52,313 16,380
Administration 1,633,757 965,049 668,748
Fiscal 566,339 435,314 131,025
Business 331,390 240,643 90,747
Operations and
Maintenance 1,970,441 1,833,557 136,884
Pupil Transportation 1,868,038 1,071,311 796,727
Central 228,734 282,408 (53,674)
Operation of Non
-Instructional Services 0 0 0
Extracurricular Activities 220,508 193,626 26,882
Capital Outlay 100 14,026 (13,926)
Debt Service 0 130,204 (130,204)
Total $20.451.890 $18.171,726 $2.280,164
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for certain revenue sources restricted by law or other
formal actions to be expended for a specific purpose. The sources are primarily grants
and entitlements. In 1999, all Special Revenue Funds on a combined basis operated with
$1,373,668 in revenues and other financial sources and $1,185,652 in expenditures and
other financing uses.

Capital Projects Fund :
The District’s Capital Projects Fund is used to fund major eqmpment purchases and major

capital improvement projects such as parking lots, bus purchases, roofs and heating and

10



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The general purpose financial statements of the District include the basic combined financial
statements, presented by fund type and account group, and notes to the financial statements that
are essential to the fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows.




Awards

The District will seek the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting from the Government Finance Officer’s Association of the United States
(GFOA). We feel that the contents of the report are easily readable, efficiently organized,
and conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. The District believes our current
report conforms to the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a certificate.

The District will also seek the Association of School Business Officials (ASBO)
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.
This award certifies that a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report substantially
conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as recommended and
adopted by the Association of School Business Officials. This award is granted only after
an extensive review of the report by an expert panel of certified public accountants and
practicing school business officials.

Acknowledgements
The preparation of this report was made possible by the dedicated service of the staff of
the Treasurer’s Office.

Finally, this report would not have been possible without the leadership and support of
the District’s Board of Education, and the support of the Loveland Schools Community.

Sincerely,

Qf' oS s PF

Jill Manville
Treasurer

12



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

June 30, 1999

BOARD OF EDUCATION

President

Vice President

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICIALS

Superintendent

Treasurer

13

Dr. Kathryn Lorenz
Mr. Gary Waits
Mr. Darryl Haeussler

Dr. Judy McClanahan

'Mrs. Linda Pennington

Dr. Michael Cline

Ms. Jill Manviile



(000 AIBjUDW[Y

{
{
'
|
!
!
t
1
1
]

[ouuosiag

VIO
[enua)

7 [euuosiad

S901AIDG

y1oddng
v

v

S901A10§
KBotouyoa],
:10s1Al9dng

!
!
|
I
! ledoung
| jouuosiag
“ 1 1030911(]
“ (edioutig
“ '158Y !
! [00Y2S 2[PPIN I
Jediouns .
_Humﬂmwwomm [reotd junnatm)
11010911
/Suryoseay, 1ot
184 rediounig
1SSy
[ooyog a8
yS1y :jedroung ssoulsng
[ouuosIag
N0
$,19Insea1],
japuajuiadng

I2INSLBAL],

e A W e LA e ek e e e e

uoneINPY
J0
pivog

e

Q0UBUIUIRA

:10s1AI0dng

901AI2G POO,]

10s1AJodNg




JO0RIg aANDaXg Juapisaid
XYy ITE
weifoid esus|ieoxs Jo Sjedyia) s,08SY 10 Spiepue)s pue sjdiound 0] suLouod Ajenue)sqns
Hoday sy jey) pabpnf sey ysium mainay JO jauBd S,UCHEI00SSY Bl JO UojepuslILLosal uodn

8661 ‘0€ aun[ papuy Jea X [eostq sy Jog
(4vD) nodoy [eroueur, [enuuy sAISUSYRIdWOr) 1 10,

LIOTALSIA "TOOHODS ALLD ANVTHAO'I

0} pajussald sy Sunioday [eroueul,] Ul SOUL[[99XH JO AJBOLYIMA)) ST,

15



Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Loveland City School
District, Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

C‘«a :BRN-&-/&

President

oo e

Executive Director
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250 West Court Street

STATE OF OHIO Suite 150 E
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

. Telephone  513-361-8550
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-36B-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.ch.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Education
Loveland City School District
757 South Lebanon Road
Loveland, Ohio 45140

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of Loveland City School District,
Hamilton County, {the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the table of
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
slatements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

{n our cpinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Loveland City School District, Hamilton County, as of June 3G, 1998, and
the results of its operations and the cash flows of iis proprietary fund types for the year then ended in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standard's, we have also issued our report dated December 23,
1999 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of iis
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

QOur auditwas performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
of the District taken as a whole. The combining and individuat fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of conients, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not 2 required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical section of this report and therefore
express no opinion thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

December 23, 1999

19



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The general purpose financial statements of the District include the basic combined financial
statements, presented by fund type and account group, and notes to the financial statements that
are essential to the fair presentation of financial position, results of operations and cash flows.




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Combined Balance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Groups

June 30, 1999

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS:
Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments

Restricted equity in pooled cash
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Accrued Interest
Iuterfimd receivable
Inventory held for resale
Fixed assets {net, where applicable,
of accumulsted deprecistion)
Other debits:

Amount available ja Debt Service Fund
for retirement of general obligation bonds

Amaount to be provided from
general govenument resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Lishilities
Accounts payable
Accmed interest payable
Accrued wages aud benefits
Comp dab payabl
Contracts payable
Retainage payable
Interfund payable
Deferred revenue
Due to students
Netes paysble
Geueral obligations bonds payable

“Total liabilitics

Fund Equity and other credits:
Investment in general fixed asseis
Retained earmnmgs:
Unreserved
Fund balsnces:
Reserved:
Reserved for property taxes
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for set-aside
Reserved for debt service

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total fimd equity and other credits

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND QTHER CREDITS

Scc accompanying totes

GOVERNMENTAL FIIND TYPES
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects

$619.645 $459,461 $22.473.912 $30,502,362
273,760 [} 0 0
12,379,115 0 2,000,000 ]
1,151 G [} a

783 29,357 o 0

o 1] 1] 276,222

53,477 0 0 [}

G /] a g

a 0 ] +]

0 4] 0 0

0 ¢ o] 0
13,327,935 488,818 24,473,912 30,778,584
56,123 4,266 0 40,772

0 1] ] 333,233
2,284,198 80,644 1] i)
71,226 0 ] a

[ 0 1] 215,052

[+ ] [+ 18,025

g 21,688 g h¢]
9,238,593 ¢ 1,162,211 0
[ 4] 0 0

[+} 6 8 20,008,000

0 G ¢ @
11,650,140 106,598 1,162,211 28,607,186
0 1] o [+

g 4] [} 1]
3,140,522 0 837,789 []
14,224 16,660 ¢ 15,865,675
273,760 & o &

0 4 22,473,912 o
(1,750,711) 365,620 (4 {5,694,277)
1,677,795 382,220 23,311,701 10,171,398
$13,327,935 $488,818 $24,473912 $30,778,584
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PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS ~
General General Totals
Intemal Trust Fixed Long-Term {Memomndum
Enterprise Service and Agency Assets Obligations Only}

$3,11 $9,857 $67,533 30 30 . $54,135885
i ] o ] o 273,760

1] Q 0 ] i 14,379,115

4] i} 4] 0 ] 1,151
10,922 a o 0 0 41,062
4] a g ol ¢ 276,222

4] 0 o 1] 0 . 53477
20,472 ] ] [ k4] 20,472
98,534 [t o 23,387,268 4] 23,485,802
¢ 1] [H] 0 23,311,701 23,311,701

¢ 1+ Q 0 23,762,655 23,762,655
133,03% 9,857 67,533 23,387,263 47,074,356 139,741,302
i R ] 0 1] G 101,161

4] [v] 4] 1] Q 333,333
82,554 Q 0 o 158,088 . 2,605,484
11,316 Q 0 5} 1,775,534 1,858,076
L+ Q Q ] o 215,652

1] a o 4] o 18,029
25,189 a 6,600 o 4] 53,477
12,307 0 k) _ 0 [+ 10,413,111
[+] 0 66,882 4] 4] 60,882

1] Q 0 0 ] 20,000,000

1] a 4] [ 45,140,734 45,140,734
131,365 9 £7,482 [ 47,074,356 80,799,339
1] 0 o 23,387,268 4] 23,387,268

1673 9,857 o ] 0 11,530

o 0 & 0 o 3,578311

[1] 0 [+ o o 15,895,459

& 1] ] o o 273,760

o 1] ¢ ] k4] A3 912
o [} 51 0 8 (7.079,317)

1,673 9,857 51 23,387,268 8 58,941,953
$133,039 39,857 $67,533 $23,387,268 347,074,356 $139,741,302
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Fund
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Intergovenumental
Investment
‘Tuition and fees

Other revenues

Totel revermes

Opemutions snd maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Central
Operation of non-i jonal
services
B ol
Capital ouflsy
Debt Service:
Prncipal retirerment
Inferest and fiscal charges

‘Totsl Expenditures

Exocss of Tevenies over
{under) expenditures

Orhe financing sources (nses):
Proceeds of refunding bonds.
Payments of refunded bond escrow agent
Proceeds of sale of fixed asscts
Preminm and sccrued interest on bonds sold
Proceeds of bonds
Openating transfers i
Openating transfers (ont)

“Fetal other financing sotfes (uses)

Bxcess of revermes and ofher
financing sources over (ander)
expendifures snd other
Seancing uses

Fund balance, huly 1

Fund balance, Jime 30

Seo accompanying notes
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Specisl Debt Capital

Cenerat Revenus Service Projects
$13,883,486 50 32,956,602 50
8,221,555 926095 204,481 354,860
279,688 5269 o 978,247
167,470 ] [+ ]
0 208,221 o 0
63,119 194,083 [ 185
22,615,318 1333668 3,251,083 1333293
10,224,345 153,865 9 298,080
1,703,951 2347203 v ]
452,039 o 0 o
27,102 898 1) 2
863,860 8,197 0 84,035
292,553 113,775 0 16814
68,693 0 0 0
1,633,797 6,947 o 1,406
556,339 b 32,784 7333
331,390 0 o 597
1,970,441 0 0 40,282
1,868,038 0 0 0
228,734 £7,841 ¢ 107,615
¢ 276,071 0 0
220,508 243853 o o 0
100 0 0 2,145,991
‘b I 538,000 0
] o 958,542 333,333
20,451,890 1,185.652 1,569,326 3,070,863
2,163.428 14B016 1,681,757 (1,737,570}
o 0 14,972,897 8
o e (14,572,897} 6
5,800 a a (]
0 ] 153,815 [
o 0 39,000,000 2,000,000
9 40,000 0 11,753,317
(476,545) (10,800,000 1,316,772)
(457,545) 40,000 20,153,815 12,236,545
1,695,883 188,016 21,835,572 10,698,975
(18,088) 194204 1,476,129 (527,57
3LETT708 $387.320 $23311.761 $10,171.358



FIDUCIARY

FIND TYFE

Expendsble

Totals
Memorandum
Only)

Locoat

$16,840,088
9,796,991
1,263,204
167,470
208,221
257,688

38,533,662

QQ§= (-0 -]

w o

i

P
- EGG [ -1

10,675,2%1
193,154
452,039
28,000

1,036,092
423839
68,653
1,542,150
606,455
IUATT
2,010,723
1,868,038
404,150

276,071
454,361
2,153,112

538,000
1,331,875

14,837

38,292,508

(4,337

2,241,094

(-3~ - - I - - )

14572,397

(14572597
9,000
153,815
32,000,000
11,793317

{£1,793317

o

32,162,813

(4,537

14,588

34,403,909

1,139,256

$51

335,543,163
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Conbined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
Al Oy . Fond Bal

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
All Governmental Fund Types

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest

Tuition & fees
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Vocational
Other
Support services:
Pupil
Instructional staff
Board of Education
Fiscal
Business
Operation and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Central
Operation of Non-Instructional services
Extracurricular activities
Capital outlay
Debt Service:
Principal retirement
Interest gnd fiscal charges

Tatal expenditures

Excess of revenues over {umder)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds of bonds

Proceeds of notes

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Refund of prior year expenditures
Refund of prior year receipts
Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Advances in

Advances {out)

Other sources (uses}

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encembrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 38

See accompanying notes

Generzl _Special Revenue

Variance: Variance:

Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable} Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
512,428,964 $12,428,964 50 50 $0 $0
8,224,652 8,224,267 (385) 912,557 898,833 {13,724)
296,736 279,688 (17,048) 0 5,269 5,269
167,307 168,010 703 [¢] 0 0
0 0 0 207,835 209,079 1,244
54,778 57,215 2,437 193,265 194,083 818
21,172,437 21,158,144 (14,253) 1,313,657 1,307,264 (6,393)
10,443,867 10,388,378 55,489 219,185 177,332 41,853
1,757,425 1,757,425 ] 248,552 209,921 38,631
458,157 458,157 1] 0 0 0
26,242 27,102 {860) G 4] 0
876,338 876,338 7o 166,417 76,208 30,209
303,168 303,168 0 132,186 107,161 25,025
79,558 79,532 26 0 0 0
1,502,309 1,502,309 0 28,925 6,947 21,978
573,997 574,578 (581} G 0 0
319,073 319,073 ] G V] 0
1,875,684 1,875,684 0 0 0 1]
1,843,544 1,843,544 4] G 0 0
223,310 223,310 0 93.875 73,213 20,662
a ¢ Q 359,549 287,260 72,289
216,744 216,744 0 253,545 253,545 0
106 160 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 €] 0 0
G 0 0 g 0 U]
20,499,516 20445442 54074 1,442,234 1,191,587 250,647
672,921 712,702 39,781 {128,577) 115,677 244,254
¢ 0 0 L] 0 0
1] 0 [ Q 0 0
9,000 9,000 0 0 [ 0
6,053 6,053 0 0 0 1]
0 0 0 (2,095) {2,095) Q
286,515 434,069 147,554 40,000 40,000 0
(763,060) (910,614) {147,554) 0 0 0
445,046 445,046 ¢ 0 6,981 6,581
{28,581 (28,581) 1] (6,501) {6,501} 0
) 0 0 (397 897y ¢
{45,027) (45,027) Q 30,507 37,4388 6,981
627,894 667,675 39,781 (98,070) 153,165 251,235
197,497 197,457 L4 286,377 286,377 0
$825,391 $865,172 $39,781 $188,307 $439,542 $251,235
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Totals

Diebt Service Capital Projects {Memorandum Only)
Varance: Varmance: Variance:
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$2,331,813 $2,331,813 $0 $0 - $0 $0 T $14,760,777 7 $14,760,777 £0
294,481 294,431 0 354,860 354,860 1) 9,786,550 9,772,441 {14,109}

o ¢ [v] 112 783,883 782,771 297,848 1,068,840 770,952

4] 8 0 o 0 0 167,307 168,010 703

a ¢ 0 ¢ [i] 0 207,835 209,079 i,244

0 i 0 4] 0 4] 248,043 251,298 3,258
2,626,294 2,626,294 [] 355972 1,138,743 782,771 ] 25,468,360 26,230,445 762,085
] [} D 426,280 368,132 58,148 11,089,332 10,933,842 155,490

<] 4] 0 Q ¢ 4] 2005977 1,967,346 38,631

O 0 0 0 0 0 458,157 458,157 0

a 0 0 Q a 0 26,242 27,102 (860}

L] 0 0 86,680 86,680 g3 1,069,435 1,039,226 30,209

0 0 0 16,814 16,814 0 452,168 427,143 25,025

i) Q [i] (] 0 4] 79,558 78,532 26

Li] 0 0 1,406 1,406 [ 1,532,640 1,510,662 21,978

32,782 32,782 0 7,333 7333 [ 614,112 614,693 {581}

0 1] 0 35,974 35974 1] 355,047 355,047 0

o ¢ ¢ 40,282 40,282 1] 1,915,966 1,915,966 0

[¢] 0 g 0 g 0 1,843,544 1,843,544 0

0 D 0 112,035 112,035 o 429,220 408,558 20,662

] 4] g 0 0 Q 359,549 287,260 72,289

0 0 0 0 o 0 470,289 470,289 o

0 a ¢ 31,535,502 18,075,336 13,460,166 31,535,602 18,075,436 13,460,166
10,532,234 10,532,234 [¢] @ 4] & 16,532,234 16,532,234 &
1,004,308 1,004,308 0 0 0 [} 1,004,308 1,004,308 v}
11,569,324 11,569,324 0 32,262,306 18,743,592 13,518,314 65,773,380 51,950,345 T 13,323,035
(8.943,030) (8,943.030) 0 _ (31906334 (17.605,249) 14,301,085 (40,305,020)  (25.719900) 14,585,120
30,153,813 34,153,815 [1] 2,060,000 2,600,000 4] 32,153,815 12,153,815 (4}
L 0 0 30,000,000 30,000,000 0 30,000,000 30,000,000 0

L] 0 0 0 0 0 9,000 9,000 ¢

[} a Q 0 0 ] 6,053 6,053 0

0 0 0 186 186 0 (1,909 (1,90%) 0

0 [ 4] 2,869,183 2,869,183 1] 3,195,698 3,343,252 147,554
4] 1} 0 £2,432,638) (2,432,638) ] (3,195,693) (3,343,252) {147,554}

[ ¢ 1] ¢ L] L] 445,046 452,027 6,981

1] ] 0 {436,545) (436,545) ] (471,627 {471,627) 0
30,153,815 30,153,815 [1] 32,000,186 ] 32,000,186 [ 62,140,578 62,147,359 6,981
21,210,785 21,210,785 1] 93,852 14,394,937 14,301,085 21,935,358 36,427,459 14,592,101
1,263,127 1,263,127 O 108,166 {08,166 0 {,855,167 1,855,167 G
$22.473,912 $22,473912 30 $202,018 $14,503,103 $14,301,085 $23,650,525 $38,282,626 $14,592,101
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICYT, OHIO

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses

And Changes in Retained Earnings

All Proprietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 : -

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Totals
Intemnal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)

Operating Revenues:

Tuition and fees $678 $678

Sales 639,010 659,010

Charges for Services 0 22,244 22,244

Other revenues 28 28
Total revenues 659,716 22,244 681,960
Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Wages 335,328 335,328

Fringe Benefiis 125,701 125,701

Purchased Services 8,777 17,398 26,175

Materials and supplies 411,901 411,901

Depreciation 31,662 31,662
Total operating expenses 913,369 17,398 930,767
Operating income (Joss) (253,653) 4,846 (248,807)
Non-operating revenues:

Federa! donated commodities 74,710 74,710

Operating grants 84,598 84,598
Total ron-operating reventues 159,308 159,308
Net income (loss) (94,345) 4,846 (89,499)
Retained Earnings, July I 96,018 5,011 101,029
Retained Eamnings, June 30 $1,673 89,857 $11,530
See accompanying notes
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combined Statement Of Cash Flows

All Propietary Fund Types

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities;
Cash received from tuition and fees
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from sales
Cash received from miscellaneous sources
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employzes for services
Cash payments for other operating cxpenses

Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:

Operating grants received
Miscellancous revenue
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ‘
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by (used for} operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss} to

net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
Donsted commodities used

Changes in assets and labilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory held for resale
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities

See accompanying notes

FROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Totals
Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service Only)
8676 $0 8676
0 22,244 22,244
659,010 0 659,010
2,124 ¢} 2,124
(353,800) (17,398) (371,198)
(440,195) 0 (440,195)
0 0 0
(132,185) 4,846 (127,339)
86,361 0 86,361
13,000 0 13,0600
99,361 0 99,361
(32,824) 4,846 (27,978)
35,935 5,011 40,946
3,111 9,857 12,968
(253,653) 4,846 (248,807)
31,662 0 31,662
74,710 Q 74,710
2,096 0 2,096
12,834 0 12,834
{10,947) 9 (10,947)
25,693 0 25,693
(4,861) 0 (4,861)
(9,719) 0 (9.719)
121,468 i) 121,468
($132,185) $4,846 (8127,339)
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

The Loveland City School district (the "District") is a body politic and corporate
established for the purpose of exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the
constitution and laws of the State of Ohio.

The Loveland City School District is a city school district as defined by Section 3311.02,
Revised Code. The District operates under an elected Board of Education (5 members)
and is responsible for the provision of public education to residents of the District.

Management believes the financial statements included in this report represent all of the
funds of the District for which the Board of Education has fiscal responsibility.

A. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government. The primary
government consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not
legally separate from the District. For Loveland City School District, this includes
general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District.
Generally, component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the primary government (i.e, the District) are financially accountable. The
District would consider an organization to be a component unit if:

1. The District appointed a voting majority of the organization's governing body;
and (a) was able to impose its will on that organization; or (b) there was a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on the District; or

2. The organization was fiscally dependent upon the District; or

3. The nature of the relationship between the District and the organization was such
that the exclusion from the financial reporting entity would render the. financial

statements misleading.

The District included no component units in the accompanying financial statements.
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Parochial Schools - Within the School District boundaries, Holy Family School is
operated through the Saint Columbia Catholic Diocese. Current State legislation
provides funding to this parochial school. These monies are received and disbursed
on behalf of the parochial school by the treasurer of the School District, as directed by
the parochial school. The activity of these State monies by the School District 1s
reflected in a special revenue fund for financial reporting purposes.

The School District is associated with two jointly governed organizations and two
public entity risk pools. These organizations are:

Jointly Governed Organizations:
Southwest Ohio Computer Association
Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association / Unified Purchasing Association

Public Entity Risk Pools:
Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating
Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium '

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the district have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
District's significant accounting policies are described below:

A. Fund Accounting Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the District are organized and operated on the basis of funds and
account groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds are
maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account groups are a
reporting device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds
not recorded directly in those funds.

Governmental Fund Types - Governmental funds are those through which most
governmental functions of the District are financed. The acquisition, use and
balances of the District's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities
(except for those accounted for in Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund types) are
accounted for through Governmental Funds. The following are the District's
Governmental Fund Types: ’ - N '
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General Fund - Is the general operating fund of the District and it 1s used to
account for all financial resources except those required by law to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than Expendable Trust or major Capital Projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds - Is used to_account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs; and

for the payment of interest on general obligation notes payable, as required by
Ohio Law.

Capital Projects Funds - Is used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those
financed by proprietary funds). )

Proprietary Fund Types -~ Proprietary Funds are used to account for the District's
ongoing activities, which are similar to those most often, found in the private sector.
The following are the District's Proprietary Fund Types:

Enterprise Funds - Are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of
the governing body is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges; or, (b) where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds - Are used to account for the financing of goods and
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies
of the District, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types - Fiduciary Funds are used for the assets held by the District in
a {rustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governmental units and/or other funds. These include Expendable Trust and Agency
Funds. Expendable Trust Funds aré accounted for essentially the same as
Governmental Funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities).

Account Groups - To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific
funds and those of general government and between long-term liabilities related to
specific funds and those of general nature, the following account groups are used:
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General Fixed Assets Account Group - This group of accounts is established to

account for all fixed assets of the District, other than those accounted for in
Proprietary Funds and Trust Funds.

General Long-Term Qbligations Account Group - This group of accounts is

established to account for all long-term obligations of the District, except those
accounted for in Proprietary Funds and Trust Funds.

B. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement Focus: Governmental Funds types and Expendable Trust Funds are
accounted for on a spending, or "current financial resources", measurement focus.
Governmental Fund types and Expendable Trust Funds operating statements
represent increases and decreases in net current assets. Their reported fund balances
are considered a measure of available spendable resources.

Proprietary Funds types are accounted for on a cost of services, or "economic
resources", measurement focus. Proprietary Fund type income statements represent
increases and decreases in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting - The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for
Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds. Under this basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures for the current period, which for the District is 60 days after fiscal year
end. Revenue considered susceptible to accrual includes but is not limited to property
taxes available for advance, interest, tuition and state and federal grants. Property
taxes measurable but neither available to finance the current fiscal year expenditures,
nor intended to finance the current year expenditures are recorded as deferred
revenue. Expenditures are recognized in the period in which the related fund liability
is incurred, except principal and interest on long-term debt which is recorded when
due.

Proprietary Funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is
recognized in the period earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.

C. Budgetary Data
Budgetary Basis of Accounting - The District's budgetary process accounts for certain

transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major difference between the budget
basis and the GAARP basis are:
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(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP). ST

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or paid in cash (budget), as
opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final appropriation, for each fund
type by expenditure function and revenue by source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and
Actual (non-GAAP Budgetary Basis). The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year and is included in the
revised budget amounts shown in the budget to actual comparisons. The budgetary
process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the
preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major
documents prepared are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the
appropriation resclution, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of
accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriation resolution
are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that
appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as ceriified. All funds, other than
agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The legal level of
budgetary control is at the object level within each function, within each fund. Any
budgetary modifications at this level may only be made by resolution of the Board of
Education. The specific timetable is as follows:

Prior to January 15 of the preceding fiscal year, the Treasurer submits to the Board of
Education a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following
July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all
funds. Public hearings are publicized and conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments.
The expressed purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for existing or
increased tax rates.

By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is filed with the County
Budget Commission for tax rate determination.

Prior to March 15, the Board of Education accepts by formal resolution the tax rates
as determined by the County Budget Commission and receives the Commission's
Certificate of Estimated Resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund.
Prior to June 30, the District must revise its budget so that total contemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated
in the Certificate of Estimated Resources. The revised budget then serves as a basis
for the appropriation measure. On or about July 1, the Certificate is amended to
include any unencumbered balances from the preceding year as reported by the
District Treasurer. The Certificate may be further amended during the year if
projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the District Treasurer.
The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts set forth in the
final Amended Certificate.
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By July 1, the annual appropriation resolution is legally enacted by the Board of
Education at the fund, function and object level of expenditures, which are legal
levels of budgetary control. (State statute permits a temporary appropriation to be
effective until no later than October 1 of each year). Resolution appropriations by
fund must be within the estimated resources as ceriified by the County Budget
Commission and the total of expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed the
appropriation totals.

Any revisions that alter the total of any fund appropriation the total function
appropriations within a fund, or object appropriations within functions must be
approved by the Board of Education.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for all funds consistent with statutory provisions. All departments, functions and
funds completed the year within the amount of their legally authorized appropriation.

Appropriation amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of
Education through the year by supplemental appropriations which either reallocated
or increased the original appropriation amounts. All supplemental appropriations
were legally enacted by the Board.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbered appropriations are
carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and need not be re-appropriated.
Expenditure plus encumbrances may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at
the fund level. '

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is utilized by District funds in the normal course of
operations for purchase orders and contract related expenditures. An encumbrance is
a reserve on the available spending authority due to commitment for a future
expenditure and does not represent a liability. For Governmental Fund types,
encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end appear on the combined balance sheet as
a reserve of the fund balance on a GAAP Basis and for all funds as the equivalent of
expenditures/expenses on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to demonstrate legal
compliance.

Cash and Investments

Cash received by the District is deposited in a cash and investment pool used by all
funds. Monies for all funds are maintained in these accounts or are temporarily used
to purchase short-term cash equivalent investments. State Statute authorizes the
District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper and
repurchase agreements. Under existing Ohio statutes, all investment eamings accrue
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F.

to the General Fund except those specifically related to Agency Funds, certain Trust
Funds, and those funds individually authorized by Board resolution.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows (GASB Statement No. 9) all highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three mounths or less when acquired, are
considered to be cash equivalents and are included under the heading "Equity in
pooled cash and investments".

During fiscal year 1999, investments were limited to STAROhio, 1.S. Government
Agencies and Commercial Paper.

The District has invested funds in the State Treasury asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAROhio) during the current fiscal year. STAROhio is an investment pool
managed by the State Treasurer's Office, which allows governments within the State
to pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the
SEC as an investment company, but does operate in 2 manner consistent with Rule
2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued
at STAROhio's share price, which is the price the investment could be sold for at
year-end.

Investments are stated at fair value as determined by quoted market prices.
Restricted Cash

Restricted cash in the general fund represents cash and cash equivalents set aside to
establish reserves required by state statute for budget stabilization, textbooks, and
capital maintenance. The budget stabilization reserve can be used only after
receiving approval from the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. At June 30,
19905 restricted cash equaled $267,159.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Inventory (Materials and Supplies)

Inventories of the Enterprise Funds are valued at lower of cost (first-in, first-out
method) or market and are determined by physical count. Inventories of Proprietary
Funds consist of materials and supplies and are expensed when used. The amount of
unused commodities at vear end is reported as deferred revenue since title does not
pass to the school district until the commodities are used.
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I. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

1. General Fixed Assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and
updated for the cost of additions and retirements during the year in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market values as of the date donated. No depreciation is recognized for assets in
the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The District does not possess any
infrastructure.

2. Proprictary Funds - Equipment reflected in the Proprietary Funds are stated at
historical cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for the cost of additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market values as of the date donated. Depreciation has been provided, where
appropriate, on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building Improvements 20 - 40 years
Equipment 3 -15 years

J. Intergovernmental Revenues

In Governmental Funds, entitlements (to the extent they are intended to finance the
current fiscal year) and non-reimbursable grants are recorded as receivables and
revenue when measurable and available. Reimbursement type grants are recorded as
receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred. Grants for
Proprietary Fund operations are recognized as revenue when measurable and earned.

The School District currently participates in several State and Federal programs,
categorized as follows: ‘

Entitlements

General Fund

State Foundation Program
School Bus Purchase
State Property Tax Relief

Special Revenue Funds
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid

Non-Reimbursable Grants
Special Revenue Funds
Auxiliary Services
Career Education

Teacher Development
Excellence in Education
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School Age Child Care Grant
Management Information
Entry Year Program
American Sign Language Grant
Textbook Subsidy
Eisenhower Grant

Title VIB/Preschool

Carl Perkins Education

Title I

Title VI

Drug Free Schools

EHA Pre-School

Capital Projects Funds

School Net
Technology Equity

Reimbursable Grants

General Fund
Driver Education

Proprietary Funds
National School Lunch Program
Government Donated Commoditics

Grants and entitlements received in governmental funds amounted to 34% of
governmental fund revenue during the fiscal year.

K. Compensated Absences

GASB Statement No. 16 specifies that compensated absences should be accrued as
they are earned by employees if both of the following conditions are met:

1. The employee's right to receive compensation is attributable to services
already rendered.

2. 1t is probable that the employer will compensate the employee for the benefits
through paid time off or cash payment.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability
includes the employees who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and
those the School District had identified as probable of receiving payment in the
future. The amount is based on the accumulated sick leave and employees' wage
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rates at fiscal year end, taking into consideration any limits specified in the School
District's termination policy.

For Governmental Funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and a
fund liability of the respective Governmental Fund. Amounts that are not expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Compensated absences of
Proprietary Funds are recorded as an expense and liability of the respective
Proprietary Fund.

Salary related payments are not applicable to the District.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the District has numerous transactions
between funds. The most significant include:

1. Routine transfers of resources from one fund to another fund through which
resources to be expended are recorded as operating transfers.

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another fund are treated as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction in
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund.

3. Short-ferm interfund loans are reflected as interfund loans payable/receivable,
while long-term interfund loans (greater than one year in length) arc recorded
as advances to/from other funds. There were no long-term interfund loans
outstanding at June 30, 1999. ' '

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a Governmental Fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated in the Debt Service Fund for payment early in
the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be
financed from expendable available resources is reported as a fund liability of a
Governmental Fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the
General Long-Term Obligation Account Group.

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from Proprietary Fund operations are
accounted for in those funds.

Fund Balance Reserves
The District records reservations for portions of fund equity which are legally

segregated for specific future use or which do not represent available spendable
resources and therefore are not available for appropriations for expenditures.
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3.

Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity, which is available for
appropriation, in future periods. Fund equity reserves are established for
encumbrances, property taxes and budgetary set-asides required under Ohio law. The
reserve for property taxes represents taxes recognized, as revenue under generally
accepted accounting principles not available for appropriation under State statutes.

O. Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the general-purpose financial statements are captioned
(Memorandum Only) to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principals,  Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

P. Proprietary Fund Accounting

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting”, the District applies all GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements
and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB
pronouncements.

EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds. Each fund type's
portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in Pooled Cash
and Investments". State Statute requires the classification of monies held by the District
into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury.
Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the School District Treasury, in
commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of
withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Board of Education has identified as not
required for use within the current two-year period of designation of depositories.
Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later
than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit
accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not

needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period
of designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of
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deposit, maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit or by savings or
deposit accounts including passbook accounts.

Protection of School District's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security
for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by the financial
mstitution or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution o secure
the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.

State legislation permits interim monies to be deposited or invested in the following
securities:

1. United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security
issued by the United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to
principal and interest by the United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any
federal government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the
federal national mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm
credit bank, federal home loan mortgage corporation, government national
morigage association, and student loan marketing association. All federal
agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal government agencies or
instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the
market value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must
exceed the principal value of the agreement by at least two percent and be
marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed
thirty days;

4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations
descnbed in division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements
secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities described
in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

6. The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio);

7. Certain bankers' acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to-
exceed one hundred and eighty days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five
percent of the interim moneys available for investment at any one time; and,

8. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two

highest rating classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating
agencies.
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Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage,
the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature
within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or
debt of the School District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be
held to maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented by
a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

At year-end the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $20,265,480. The bank
balance of deposits was $20,428,594 and of the bank balance, $200,000 was covered by
federal depository insurance. The remaining amounts were uninsured and
uncollateralized as defined by GASB. Although the securities were held by the pledging
financial institutions' trust department in the School District's name and all statutory
requirements for the investment of the money had been followed, noncompliance with
the federal requirements could potentially subject the money held in the School District's
name fo a successful claim by the FDIC.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that investments held by the District
should be categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the District at
year-end. The District's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of
risk assumed by the entity at year-end.

CATEGORY 1 includes investments that are issued, registered, or held by the District
or its agent in the District's name.

CATEGORY 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the District's name.

CATEGORY 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty, or by its department or agent, buf not in the District's name.

Based on the above criteria, the District's investments at year-end are classified as
follows: _
RISK CARRYING VALUE

INVESTMENTS CATEGORY (Fair Value)

U.S. Government Agencies $25,357,842
Commercial Paper 1 5,710,000
* Star Ohio N/A 3.076,323
Totat §34!144!165

* STAR Ohio is an unclassified investment because it is not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry form.
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4.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, public utility and tangible personal
(business) property. Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis.
Second haif distributions occur in a new fiscal year. Property taxes include amounts
levied against all real, public utility and tangible personal (used in business) property
located in the School District. Real property taxes are levied after April 1 on the assessed
value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public utility property taxes attached
as a lien on December 31 of the prior year, were levied April 1 and are collected with real
property taxes. Assessed values for real property taxes are established by State law at 35
percent of appraised market value. All property is required to be revalued every six
years. Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at 88
percent of true value (with certain exceptions) and on real property at 35 percent of true
value. Tangible personal property taxes are levied afier April 1 on the value listed as of

December 31 of the current year. Tangible personal property assessments are 25 percent
of true value.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment
was due by January 20. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at least one-half of
amount billed) was due January 20, with the remainder due on June 20.

. The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected with periodic settlements of

Real and Public Utility property taxes in February and August and Tangible Personal
Property Taxes in June and October to all taxing districts.

The School District receives property taxes from the County Auditor. The County
Auditor periodically advances to the School District its portion of the taxes collected.
Second-half real property tax payments collected by the County by June 30, 1999 are
available to finance fiscal year 2000 operations. The amount available to be advanced
can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real
property, personal property and public utility taxes which became measurable as of June
30, 1999. Although total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable,
only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is intended to finance current year
operations. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred revenue for that
portion not intended to finance current year operations.
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5.

FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the General Fixed Assets Account Group at the year-end follows:

Balance ‘ Balance
Beginning End

Class of Year Additions . Deletions of Year
Land $1,286,704 $149,652 . 0 $1,436,356
Buildings 15,457,016 334,583 0 15,791,599
Equipment 4,192,595 787,359 114,660 4,865,294
Construction
In Progress 0 1,294,018 0 1,294,018
Total $20.936,315  $2.565,612 $114.660 $23387,267

A summary of the Proprietary Fund fixed assets at year-end follows:

Equipment : $446,300

Less Accumulated Depreciation (347.766)

Net Fixed Assets $98,534
NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable activity for the District for the year ended June 30, 1999 was as follows:

Balance Balance
Beginning End
of Year “Additions Deletions of Year
Note Payable, 3.87% $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 - $0
Note Payable, 4.00% 0 20,000,000 0 20,000,000

The note is shown as a liability of the fund, that received the note proceeds. Accordingly,
all note debt activity has been reported in the Capital Projects Fund. See the following
note regarding changes in the general long-term obligations account group for long-term
disclosures.
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7. CHANGES IN THE GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT
GROUP '

During the year ended June 30, 1999, the following changes occurred in debt reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group:

Balance Balance
Beginning End
of Year Increase Decrease = of Year
Accrued Wages & Benefits § 139,039 $19,049 3 0 § 158,088
General Obligation 13,565,000 45,140,734 13,565,000 45,140,734
Bonds
Compensated 737,773 1,037,761 o 1,775,534
Absences
Notes Payable 118.000 0 118.000 0
Total $14.559.812  $46,197.544 $13.683.000 $47,074,356

The accrued wages and benefits amount above represents pension contributions that are
not expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

All current obligation bonds outstanding, issued to provide funds for the acquisition of
equipment and facilities, are general obligations of the District for which the full faith
and credit of the District is pledged for repayment. Accordingly, such un-matured
obligations of the District are accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligation
Account Group. Notes payable are paid through tax collections. Payments of principal
and interest relating to these liabilities are recorded as expenditures in the Debt Service
Fund. The source of payment is derived from debt tax issue proceeds.
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A. The following is a description of the District's bonds and notes outstanding as
of year end:

Balance Balance
Interest Issue Maturity Beginning Issued Retired End

ose Rate  Date Date of Year ~ 1999 1999 of Year
Energy
Conservation Note  5.00% 06/01/95 07/02/00 - $118,000 $0 $118,000 50
1999 Bond Issue 4.84% 02/01/99 12/01/19 0 2,000,000 ¢ 2,000,000
199% Bond Issue 5.00% 04/29/9% 12/01/24 0 43,140,734 0 43,140,734
1992 Bond Issue 6.50% 04/01/92 12/01/15 13,565.000 9 13.565.000 Q
TOTAL

$13,683.000 $45.140734 $13.683.000 $45,140,734

B. The following is a summary of the District's future annual debt service requirements
to maturity for general obligation bonds and notes:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest ) Total
2000 1,620,000 2,042,997 3,662,997
2001 1,555,000 1,990,493 3,545,493
2002 1,775,000 1,928,507 3,703,507
2003 2,020,000 1,856,143 3,876,143
2004 2,275,000 1,762,827 4,037,827
Thereafter 35,895,734 19,094,452 54 186
Totals $45.140.734 $28,675.419 $73.816.153

9. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

As of June 30, 1999, receivables and payables that resulted from various interfund
transactions were as follows:
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Interfund Interfund

Fund Type / Fund Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 53,477 $0
Special Revenue Fund:

Athletic Fund 0 14,707

Career Education 3,068

Carl Perkins 3,913
Enterprise Fund: .

Food Service 0 25,189
Agency Fund:

Student Activitics 0 6.600
Total All Funds $53.477 $53.477

10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A. School Employees Retirement System

The School District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio
(SERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. SERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend
benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code.
SERS issues a publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to the School Employees Retirement System, 45 N. Fourth Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215.

Plan members are required to contribute 9 percent of their annual covered salary and
the School District is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
current rate is 14 percent of annual covered payroll. A portion of the School
District’s contribution is used to fund pension obligation with the remainder being
used to fund health care benefits; for fiscal year 1999, 7.7 percent of annual covered
salary was the portion used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 1998, 9.02
percent was used to fund the pension obligation. The contribution requirements of
plan member and employers are established and may be amended, up to statutory
maximum amounts, by the SERS Retirement Board. The School District's
contributions for pension obligations to SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $438,822, $421,644, and $374,766, respectively; 51.6
percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years
1997 and 1996. $116,701 representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 is
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recorded as a liability within the respective funds and the general long-term
obligations account group. : «

B. State Teachers Retirement System

The School District participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio
(STRS), a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system
administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provides basis
retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible
service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter
3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issue a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report
may be obtained by writing the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 E. Broad
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary
and the School District is required to coniribute 14 percent; 6 percent was the portion
used to fund pension obligations. For fiscal year 1998, the portion used to fund
pension obligations was 10.5 percent. Contribution rates are established by STRS,
upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum
rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. The School District's
contributions for pension obligations to STRS for the fiscal years ended June 30,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $1,502,304, $1,436,268, and $1,300,788 respectively;
83.1 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100 percent for fiscal years
1997 and 1996. $108,267 representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 is
recorded as a liability within the respective funds.

C. Social Security System

Effective July 1, 1991, all employees not otherwise covered by the School Employees
Retircment System or the State of Teachers Retirement System have an option to
choose Social Security or the School Employees Retirement System/State Teachers
Retirement System. As of June 30, 1999, certain members of the Board of Education
have elected Social Security. The Board's liability is 6.2 percent of wages paid.

- 11. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The School District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and
their dependents through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to retired
non-certified employees and their dependents through the School Employees Retirement
System (SERS). Benefits include hospitalization, physicians' fees, prescription drugs and
reimbursements of monthly Medicare premivms. Benefit provisions and the obligation to
contribute are established by the Systems based on authority granted by State statue.
Both systems are on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of
the health care costs will be absorbed by the STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion
of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of
coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the employer contribution rate;
currently 14 percent of covered payroli. Through June 30, 1997, the Board allocated
employer contributions equal to two percent of covered payroll to the Health Care
Reserve Fund. Beginning fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the allocation was increased
to 8 percent. For the School District, this amount equaled $767,339 during fiscal year
1999. '

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. The balance in the
Fund was $2,156 million at June 30, 1998. For the year ended June 30, 1998, net health
care costs paid by STRS were $219,224,000 and STRS had 91,999 eligible benefit
recipients.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of
qualifying service credit, and disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring
on or after August 1, 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a
portion of their premium for health care. The portion is based on years of service up to
maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

For the fiscal year, employer contributions to fund health care benefits were 6.30 percent
of covered payroll, an increase from 4.98 percent for fiscal year 1999. In addition, SERS
levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14 percent of the difference
between a minimum pay and the member's pay, pro-rated for partial service credit. For
fiscal year 1999, the minimum pay has been established at $12,400. The surcharge,
added to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate, provides
for maintenance of the asset target level for the health care fund.

The target level for the health care reserve is 125 percent of annual health care expenses.
Expenses for health care at June 30, 1998 (the latest information available), were
$111,900,575 and the target level was $139.9 million. At June 30, 1998 SERS had net
assets available for payment of health care benefits of $160.3 million. SERS had
approximately 50,000 participants currently receiving health care benefits. For the
School District, the amount to fund health care benefits, including the surcharge equaled
$220,517 during the 1999 fiscal year.

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
The School District maintains two enterprise funds to account for the operations of food

service and latchkey. The table below reflects the more significant financial data relating
to the enterprise funds of the District as of and for the current year ended.
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Total

Latch Enterprise
Food Service Key Funds
Operating Revenues $659,038 $678 $659,716
Operating Expenses 4
less Depreciation 867,297 14,410 881,707
Depreciation Expense 31,662 0 31,662
Operating Income (Loss) (239,921) (13,732) (253,653)
Donated Commodities 74,710 0 74,710
Operating Grants 84,598 0 | 84,598
Operating Transfers In/(OQut) o 0 0
Net Income (Loss) (80,613) (13,732) (94,345)
Net Working Capital (98,541) 1,680 (96,861)
Total Assets 131,359 1,680 1A33,039
Total Liabilities 131,366 0 131,366
Total Equity N 1,680 1,673

13. BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund
bzlance/retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP); the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The main difference between
the budget basis and GAAP basis are:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis).

2. Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budget basis) as opposed
to when the liability is incurred (GAAP basis).
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3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures/expenses for all funds (budget basis)
rather than as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types and as
note disclosures in the proprietary fund types (GAAP basis).

4. Proceeds from the principal payment on bond and tax anticipation notes are

reported on the operating statement (budget basis) rather than on the balance sheet
(GAAP basis).

Reconciliation of Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources over (Under) Expenditures and other
Financing Uses From GAAP Basis to Budgetary Basis:

Govemmental General Special Revenue Debt Service  Capital Projects
Fund Types Fund Funds . .. Funds | Funds

GAAP Basis $1,737,491 $188,016 $21,835,572 $10,698,975
Net Adjustment for

Revenue Accruals (572,006) (19,423) (624,789) 20,921,502
Net Adjustment for

Expenditure Accruals  (469,573) 4,485 0 {1,144,425)
Encumbrances (28.237) (19.913) ] {16,081,115)
Budgetary Basis $667,675 $153,165 _ 321210785 $14,394 937

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Grants - The District receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal,
state and local agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under
these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the
grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other
applicable funds. Management is unable to estimate possible claims resulting from such
audits until the audits have been completed. However, in the opinion of management,
any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial
statements of the individual fund types included herein or on the overall financial
position of the District.

15. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

The Southwest Ohio Computer Association (SWOCA) is a jointly governed organization
amount a three county consortium of Ohio school districts. The organization was formed
for the purpose of applying modern technology with the aid of computers and other
electronic equipment to the administrative and instructional functions of the member
districts. Each of the governments of these schools and instructional functions of the
member districts. Each of the governments of these schools supports SWOCA based
upon a per pupil charge dependent upon the software package utilized. SWOCA is
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governed by a Board of Directors consisting of the superintendents and treasures of
member school districts. The degree of control exercised by any participating school
district is limited to its representation on the Board. The Board consists of one
representative from each of the participating 29 school districts. The financial statements
for SWOCA are available at the Butler County Career Center, 3603 Hamilton-
Middletown Road, Hamilton, Ohio 45012.

Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association/Unified Purchasing Association - The
Hamilton Clermont Cooperative Association/Unified Purchasing Association is a jointly
govemed organization among a two county consortium of school districts. The Unified
Purchasing Cooperative was organized under the Hamilton Clermont Cooperative
Association to benefit member districts with a more economically sound purchasing
mechanism for general school, office and cafeteria supplies. The United Purchasing
Cooperative organization is governed by representatives from each of the governments
that created the organization, but there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility
by the participating governments. Complete financial statement for H/CCA can be

obtained from their administrative office at 7615 Harrison Avenue, Cincinnati, Ohio
45231.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District maintains comprehensive insurance coverage with private carriers for real
property, building contents and vehicles. Vehicle policies include liability coverage for
bodily injury and property damage. Real property and contents are 90% co-insured.

The District’s insurance sctilements did not exceed insurance coverage for each of the
past three fiscal years.

17. INSURANCE PURCHASING POOL

Greater Cincinnati Insurance Consortium ~ The Greater Cincinnati Insurance
Consortium, an insurance purchasing pool, is a health trust formed to provide affordable
and desirable dental, life, medical and other disability group insurance for member's,
employees, eligible dependents and designated beneficiaries of such employees. The
board of Directors consists of one representative from each of the participating members
and are elected by the vote of the majority of the member school districts. The School
District pays premiums to a third party administrator, Edward Paul Cerry, which in turn
buys the insurance policies from various insurance companies. Upon termination, the
School District shall be responsible for prompt payment of all plan liabilities accruing as
a result of such termination and maintain no right to any assets of the Consortium. The
School District may terminate participation in the Consortium for the benefit of its
employees upon written notice to the Consortinm delivered at least sixty days prior to the
annual review date of the policy. Financial information can be obtained from the Greater

Cincinnati Insurance Consortium at 20600 Chagrin Boulevard, Shaker Heights, Ohio
44122,
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Ohio School Boards Association Workers' Compensation Group Rating Plan - The
School District participates in the Ohio School Boards Association Workers'
Compensation Group Rating Program (GRP), and insurance purchasing pool. The GRP's
business and affairs are conducted by a three member Board of Directors consisting of
the President, the President-Elect and the Immediate Past President of the OSBA. The
Executive Director of the OSBA, or his designee, serves as coordinator of the program.
Each year, the participating school districts pay an enrollment fee to the GRP to cover the
costs of administering the program.

18. STATE SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION

On March 24, 1997, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain
portions of the Ohio school-funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed the effect of
its ruling for one year to allow the State's legislature to design a plan to remedy the
perceived defects in that system. Declared unconstitutional was the State's "school
foundation program", which provides significant amount of monetary support to the
District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the District received $4,713,755 of
school foundation support for its general fund.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the
State Legislature in an attempt to address the issues identified by the Court. The Court of
Common Pleas in Perry County is currently reviewed the new laws and, in a decision on
February 26, 1999, determined they are not sufficiently responsive to the constitutional
issues raised under the "thorough and efficient” clause of the Ohio Constitution. The
State has appealed the decision made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Ohio
Supreme Court. As of December 23, 1999, the Ohio Supreme Court has not rendered an
opinion on this issue. The decision of the Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has
been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Court, and, as such, school districts are still operating
under the laws that the Common Pleas Court declared unconstitutional.

As of the date of these financial statements, the School District is unable to determine
what effect, if any, this ongoing litigation will have on its future state funding under this
program and on its financial operations.

19. ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMPLIANCE
A. Fund Deficits

Fund balances at June 30, 1999, included the following individual fund deficits:

Deficit Fund Balance
Athletic Special Revenue Fund $8,843
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid Special Revenue Fund 2,660
Carl Perkins Special Revenue Fund 3,913
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The above funds have deficit fund balances due to the accrual of wages and fringe
benefits and/or the reclassification of Advances In (other sources) to Interfund
Payable (liability). '

B. Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations

The Ohio Revised Code states that total expenditures from each fund are not to
exceed the total appropriations. The District had expenditures exceeding
appropriations at the legal level of control in the following fund:

Amount of Excess
General Fund $93,478

20. YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing
systems and other equipment that may adversely affect the government's operations.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other equipment
necessary to conducting District operations and has identified such systems as being
financial reporting, payroll and employee benefits, and educational statistics reporting
(through the State's Education Management and Information System (EMIS).

The District uses the State of Ohio Uniform School Accounting System software for its
financial reporting, and the State of Ohio Uniform Staff Payroll System sofiware for its
payroll and employee benefits. The State is responsible for remediation of these systems.

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the form of
"Foundation” and federal and state grant payments. Further, the State processes a
significant amount of financial and non-financial information about the District through
EMIS. The State is responsible for remediation of these systems.

County collects property taxes for distribution to the District. The County is responsible
for remediating the tax collection system and is solely responsible for all associated costs.

There were no remaining contracted amounts committed to this project as of June 30,
1999. All compliance costs to date have been covered under current hardware and
software support agreements with vendors.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of
related remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and
thereafter. Management cannot assure that the (District) is or will be Year 2000 ready,
that District's remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties
with whom the District does business will be year 2000 ready.
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21. SET-ASIDE CALCULATIONS

The School District is required by State stature to annually set aside in the general fund
an amount based on a statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other
instructional materials and an equal amount for the acquisition and construction of capital
iImprovements. Amounts not spent by year-end or offset by similarly restricted resources
received during the year must be held in cash at year-end and carried forward to be used

for the same purposes in future years. The School District is also required to set aside
money for budget stabilization.

The following cash basis information describes the change in the year-end set-aside
amounts for textbooks, capital acquisition, and budget stabilization. Disclosure of this
information is required by State statute,

Reserved Fund Balances
Capital Budget
Text Acquisition Stabilization Totals

Set-aside Cash Balance as of

June 30, 1998 $0 30 $113,604 113,604
Current Year Set-aside Requirement 320,312 320,312 160,156 800,780
Current Year Offsets (54,338) (320,312) 0 (374,650)
Qualifying Disbursements (265,974) 0 0 (265.974)
Set-aside Cash Balance as of

June 30, 1999 N . b [t} 2 0 $273.760  $273.760

Although the School District had offsets and qualifying disbursements during the year
that reduced the set-aside amounts for textbooks and instructional materials and capital
improvement and maintenance to below zero, these extra amounts may not be used to
reduce the sef-aside requirements of future years. Qualifying disbursements for
textbooks and instructional materials and capital improvement and maintenance during
the year were $427,812 and $440,745, respectively, which exceeded the required set-
aside and the reserve balance. Bond proceeds can be used as an offset to the capital
improvement and maintenance reserve. Of the $32,000,000 bond proceeds, $31,679,688
may be carried forward and used in future years.

22. ADVANCED REFUNDING

On April 1, 1999, the District issued $43,140,734 in General Obligation Bonds with
interest rates from 3.2% to 5.25% to advance refund $13,145,000 of outstanding 1992
General Obligation Bonds with interest rates from 4.1% to 7.1%. $14,972,897 (after
payment of $490,697 in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) was used
to purchase U.S. Government Securities. Those Securities were deposited in an
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irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on
the 1992 general obligation bonds. As a result, the 1992 general obligation bonds are
considered defeased and the Hability for those bonds has been removed from the debt
service fund.

The District completed the advanced refunding to reduce its total debt service payments

over the next 17 years by $1,546,389 and to obtain an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $1,103,848.
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COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND
AND ACCOUNT GROUP FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for govérnment resources not accounted for in any other
fund. The General Fund balance is available to the District for any purpose provided it is
expended or transferred to the general laws of the State of Ohio.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actua] (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 °

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Taxes $12,428. 964 $12,428,964 $0
Intergovernmental 8,224,652 8,224,267 - (38%)
Interest 296,736 279,688 {17,048)
Tuition and fees 167,307 168,010 703
Other revenues 54,778 57,215 - 2,437
Total revenues 21,172,437 21,158,144 (14,293)
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages 7,964,094 7,963,015 1,079
Fringe benefits 2,004,522 2,004,522 ¢
Purchased services 42,194 42,194 o
Materials and supplies 335,503 281,891 54,412
Capital outlay - new 82,343 82,343 0
Capital outlay - replacement 10,916 10,916 G
Other expenditures 4,295 4,295 0
Total reguiar 10,443,867 10,388,376 55,491
Special:
Salaries and wages 1,061,875 1,061,875 0
Fringe benefits 346,202 346,202 0
Purchased services 276,587 276,587 i}
Materials and supplies 5,009 5,009 0
Capital outlay - new 268 268 0
Other expenditures 67,484 67,484 0
Total special 1,757,425 1,757,425 ]
Vocational:
Salaries and wages 365,827 365,827 0
Fringe benefits 84,318 84,318 0
Purchased services 1,795 1,795 0
Materials and supplies 5,848 5,848 ]
Capital cutlay - new 369 369 0
Total vocational 458,157 458,157 0
Other:
Purchased services 26,242 27,102 (360)
Total other 26,242 27,102 (860}
Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages 681,590 681,590 0
Fringe benefits 156,013 156,013 0
Purchased services 31,918 31,918 0
Materials and supplies 5,263 5,263 0
Capital outlay - new 1,554 i,554 0
Total pupil 876,338 876,338 0
Continued
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT -
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actnal (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budgeat Actual (Unfavorable)
Instructional staff:
Salary and wages 177,706 177,706 0
Fringe benefits 53,198 53,198 0
Purchased services 23,5990 23,990 0
Materials and supplies 43,407 43,407 0
Capital outlay - new 4,364 4,364 0
Capitalf outlay - replacement 503 503 0
Total instructional staff 303,168 303,168 0
Board of Education:
Salaries and wages 11,440 11,440 0
Fringe benefits 1,262 1,262 ]
Purchased services 56,715 56,715 0
Materials and supplies 6,672 6,672 0
Other expenditures 3,469 3,443 26
Total board of education 79,558 79,532 26
Administration:
Salaries and wages 1,121,086 1,121,086 0
Fringe bencfits 296,170 296,170 o
Purchased services 12,891 12,891 0
Materials and supplies 47,639 47,639 0
Capital outlay - new 389 389 0
Other expenditures 24,134 24,134 0
Total school administration - 1,502,309 1,502,309 0
Fiscal:
Salaries and wages 205,930 205,930 0
Fringe benefits 61,829 61,829 0
Purchased services 63,027 63,027 0
Materialg and supplies 31,591 31,591 0
Capital outlay - new 4,124 4,124 0
Other expenditures 207,496 . 208,077 (581}
Total fiscal 573,997 574,578 (581)
Business:
Salaries and wages 102,190 102,190 0
Fringe benefits 26,051 26,051 0
Purchased services 153,534 153,534 0
Materials and supplies 37,298 37,298 0
Total business 319,073 ’ 319,073 0
Operations and maintenance:
Salaries and wages 695,793 695,793 0
Fringe benefits 215,160 215,160 0
Purchased services 803,556 803,556 0
Materials and supplies 144,678 144,678 0
Capital outlay - new 16,497 16,497 0
Total operations and maintenance 1,875,684 1,875,684 0
Continued
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LOVELAND CITY SCHQOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 -
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Pupil transportation:
Salaries and wages 745,037 745,037 0
Fringe benefits 233,275 233,275 1
Purchased services 672,063 672,063 G
Materials and supplies 123,732 123,732 o
Capital outlay - new 69,437 69,437 o
Total pupil transportation 1,843,544 1,843,544 &
Central:
Salaries and wages 59,263 59,263 0
Fringe benefits 76,172 76,172 ¢
Purchased services 54,023 54,023 0
Materials and supplies 16,630 16,630 G
Capitai ontlay - new 17,222 17,222 0
Totat central 223,310 223,310 0
Extracurricular activities:
Salaries and wages 13,777 13,777 0
Fringe benefits 2,017 2,017 0
Other 1,211 1,211 0
Total academic and subject oriented activities 17,005 17,005 0
Sports oriented activities: B
Salaries and wages 164,663 164,663 0
Fringe benefits 23,373 23,373 0
Purchased services 1,813 1,813 0
Total sports oriented activities 189,849 189,845 0
School and Public Service:
Salaries and wages 8,680 8,680 0
Fringe benefits 1,210 1,210 0
Total School and Public Service 9,890 9,850 i}
Total extracurricular activities 216,744 216,744 0
Capital Outlay
Site Improvement Services
Capital outlay 100 100 0
Total Site Improvement Services 100 100 0
Total capital outlay 100 100 0
Continued
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
General Fund (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Total expenditures 20,459,516 20,445 442 54,076
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 672,921 712,702 39,781
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of sale of fixed assets $9.000 £9,000 0
Refund of prior year expenditures 6,053 6,053 o
Advances in 445,046 445,046 0
Advances (out) (28,581) (28,5813 0
Operating transfers in 286,515 434,069 147,554
Operating transfers {out) (763,060) {910,614) (147,554)
Total other financing sources (uses) (45,027) {45,027} 0
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other financing uses 627,894 667,675 39,781
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior 197,497 197,497 0
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance, June 30 $825,391 $865,172 $39,781
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects or expendable trusts) that are legally restricted to expenditure
for specified purposes. The following are descriptions of each Special Revenue Fund:

PUBLIC SCHOOL SUPPORT: To account for specific local revenue sources (other than taxes)
generated by individual school bmldlngs (i.e. sales of pictures, profits from vending machines,
etc.). Expenditures include field trips, materials, equipment and other items to supplement co-
curricular and extra-curricular programs.

LEARNING LINKS: To account for monies which are provided for the Learning Links
Program.

VENTURE CAPITAL EAST: To account for the state monies which support the school
improvement program and to enhance faculty knowledge and experiences.

ATHLETIC: To account for those student activity programs which have student participation in
the activity but do not have student management in the programs. This fund includes athletic
programs as well as the band, cheerleaders, flag corps and other similar types of activities.

AUXILIARY SERVICES: To account for state funds which provide services and materials to

students attending non-public schools within the boundaries of the District as provided by state
law.

CAREER EDUCATION: To account for state funds which are provided to introduce various
career opportunities to students.

TEACHER DEVELOPMENT: To account for state funds which are provided to assist school
districts in the development of in-service programs.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION: To account for state funds which are provided to assist the
District in implementing a staff, student and financial system as mandated by the Omnibus
Education Reform Act of 1989,

ENTRY YEAR PROGRAM: To account for state funds which are provided for implementing
entry year programs.

AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE: To account for monies which are provided in conjunction
with American Sign Language Grant.
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DISADVANTAGED PUPIL IMPACT AID: To account for the provision of state funds fo
economically deprived pupils. The funds are grants designed to help level out the economic
differences between students.

TEXTBOOK SUBSIDY: To account for state funds which are provided for textbook subsidies.

EISENHOWER PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT: To account for monies which are
provided for professmnai development.

TITLE VIB/PRE-SCHOOL: To account for federal funds received for the purpose of assisting
in the identification of handlcapped children, development of procedural safeguards,
implementation of least restrictive alternate service patterns, and provision of fuil educational
opportunities fo handicapped children at preschool.

CARL PERKINS VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ACT: Provision of funds to boards of
education, teacher training institutions, and the state administering agency for cooperating in
development of vocational education programs in the following categories: secondary,
postsecondary, adult, disadvantaged and handicapped persons, exemplary programs, cooperative
education, construction of area vocational schools, ancillary services, research, advisory
committees, and work study projects, including sex equity grants. Funds are administered by the
Ohio Department of Education, Division of Vocational and Career Education.

TITLE I: To account for federal funds used to meet special educational needs of educationally
deprived children.

TITLE VI: To account for federal funds used to provide programs for at-risk students;
instructional materials to improve the quality of instruction; programs of professional
development; and programs to enhance personal excellence of students and student achievement.

EHA PRE-SCHOOL: To account for revenues and expenditures made in conjunction with child
abuse, child neglect preventlon programs and other grants.

DRUG FREE SCHQOLS: To account for federal funds used for establishment, operation and
improvement of programs of drug abuse prevention, early intervention, rehabilitation referral
and education in schools.

TELECOMM.: To account for funds provided for the Telecomm Program.

CONTINUQUS IMPROVEMENT: To account for funds provided for the Continuous
Improvement Program.

66



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1999

Public
School Learning Venture Athletic
Support Links Capital East Fund
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $181,004 $3,160 $12.440 $3,203
Receivables:
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 2,661
Total Assets 181,004 3,160 12,440 5,864
Liabilities
Accounts payable 775 0 52 i
Accrued wages 0 0 484 g
Interfund payable 1] 0 0 14,707
Total liabilities 775 0 536 14,707
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 11,427 0 0 0
Unreserved:
Undesignated 168,802 3,160 11,904 (8,843)
Total fund equity {deficit} 180,225 3,160 11,904 (8,843)
Total Liabilities and fund equity $181,004 $3,160 $12,440 £5,864
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Disadvantaged

69

Auxiliary Career Teacher Management Entry Year American Pupil
Services Education Development Information Program Sign Language Impact Aid
$72,624 L3 $5,272 $25,662 $24,981 5487 51
0 6,981 0 0 G 0 0
_ 72,625. 6,982 5,272 25,662 24,981 487 1
2,072 0 954 0 ¢ 0 ]
21,209 ] 0 0 0 0 _ 2,661
0 3,068 0 0 0 0 0
23,281 3,068 954 0 0 0O 2,661
966 0 0 0 ¢ 378 9
48,377 3,914 4,318 25,662 24981 109 (2,660)
49,343 3914 4318 25,662 24,981 487 (2,660)
$72,624 $£6,982 $5,272 $25,662 $24.981 $487 $1
Continued



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1999
Textboaok Eisenhower Titie VIB Carl
Subsidy Grant Pre-School Perkins
Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $0 $6,756 $24,585 $0
Receivables:
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 0
Total Assets 0 6,756 24585 0
Liabilities
Accounts payable 0 0 413 0
Accrued wages 0 0 17,822 0
Interfund payable 0 0 0 3,913
Total Labilities 0 0 18,235 3,913
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 0 220 1,525 0
Unreserved:
Undesignated 0 6,536 4,825 (3,913)
Total fimd equity {deficit) 0 6,756 6,350 (3,913)
Total Liabilities and fund equity 50 $6,756 $24,585 $0
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EHA Drug Free Continuous

Title 1 Title V1 Pre-School Schools Telecomm Improvement Totals
$66,112 312,494 $9,563 58,818 51,998 §300 $459.461
i) 0 o 19,715 0 0 29,357
66,112 12,494 9,563 28,533 1,998 300 488,818
Lt 0 0 0 0 0 4,266
38,468 0 0 0 0 0 80,644
0 9 0 0 Y 0 21,688
38,468 9 0 0 0 O 106,598
1,864 220 G o ¢ 0 16,600
25,780 12,274 9,563 28,533 1,998 300 365,620
27,644 12,494 9,563 28,533 1,998 300 382,220
$66,112 $12.494 $9,563 $28,533 $1,998 $300 $488,818
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1959

Revenues:

Intergovernmental
Investment
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other

Support services:
Pupil
Instructional Staff
Administration
Central

Operation of nen-instructional
services

Extracurricular activitics

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditares

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources {uses}

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over (under)}

expenditures and other

financing uses

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Public Venture
School Learning Capital Athletic
Support Links East Fund
S0 $4,000 $25,000 $2,651
0 0 0 0
118,951 0 0 £9,270
189,906 $1,130 229 2,000
308,857 5,130 25,229 93,931
0 438 12,947 0
1] ¢ 0 (]
0 898 ] 0
0 1] o 0
1,250 3,000 17,198 0
0 0 0 o
67,841 0 o
[} g (1} ]
112,536 ¢ 0 131,317
181,627 4,386 30,145 131,317
127,230 744 {4.916) (37,386)
0 0 0 40,000
0 0 0 40,000
127,230 744 {4,916) 2,614
52,999 2,416 16,820 {11,457
$180,229 $3,160 $11,904 (58,843}
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Entry American Disadvantaged
Auxiliary Career Teacher Management Year Sign Pupil
Services Education Development Information Program Language Impact Aid
£277,189 $12,754 $17,812 $10,750 $28,000 30 $£32,654
5,269 0 0 0 ] 1] g
o 0 0 0 0 0 g
0 0 0 0 0 0 818
282,458 12,754 17,812 10,750 28,000 0 33472
0 6,135 0 0 3,019 2,175 0
0 0 0 0 0 ] 39,870
k(] 0 0 0 0 0 0
11,780 0 g 1] 0 0 0
0 g 15,544 ] 0 0 15,270
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 1] 0 0 [ 0
256,165 i 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
267,945 6,135 15,544 0 3,019 2,175 55,140
14,513 6,619 2,268 10,750 24,981 (2,175) (21,668)
L 0 1] 0 0 o 0
0 0 0 0 0 O 0
14,513 6,619 2,268 10,750 24,981 {2,175) {21,668}
34,820 {2,705) 2,050 14,912 0 2,662 19,008
349,343 $3,914 $4,313 $25,662 $24,581 $487 (52,660}
Continued

73



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, CHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenugs:

Intergovernmental
Investment
Extracurricular activities
Other revenues

“Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Regular
Special
Other

Support services:
Pupil
Instructional Staf¥
Administration
Central

Operation of non-instructional
sarvices

Extracurricular activities

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over
{under)} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other

financing sources over (under)

expenditures and other

financing uses

Fur.d balance, July

Fu.t balance, June 30

Textbook Eisenhower Title VIB Carl

Subsidy Grant Pre-School Perkins
$54,338 £13,019 $124,971 §7,709
0 9 0 0
0 0 0 0
[ a 9 0
54,338 13,019 124,971 7,769
82,602 15,051 0 7.826
0 0 3,871 0
0 0 0 0
¢ Y 35,780 g
0 0 61,406 0]
0 0 2,090 0
0 g 0
0 0 16,936 0
0 0 8 1]
82,602 15,051 120,083 7,826
(28,264) (2,032) 4,888 (117)
a 0 i 0
0 0 0 1]
(28,264) (2,032) 4,888 {117
28,264 8,788 1,462 {3,796)
$0 $6,756 $6,350 ($3,913)
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EHA Drug Free Continuzous

Title I Title VI Pre-Scheol Schools Telecomm Improvement Totals
$258,216 $16,150 $9,059 $19,715 $1,998 $10,000 $926,095
L] 0 [ 0 ] [ 5269
L] 9 Q 0 [+ (14 208,221
] 0 4] 0 0 [+ 194,083
258,316 16,150 9,059 19,715 1,998 10,000 1,333,668
0 10,625 0 3,298 o 9,700 153,866
187,640 0 2,095 726 0 4] 234,203
[ g [ 0 Q0 a 898
34,450 ] 2,618 3,569 0 G 88,197
[+ g 108 0 0 ¢ 113,776
4,857 L] i} 0 0 G 6,547
(¢} ] 0 0 0 ¢ 67,841
0 3,160 0 (190) 0 0 276,071
1] 0 ¢] Q 0 1} 243,853
226,947 13,785 4,822 . 7,403 0 9,700 1,185,652
31,369 2,365 4237 12312 1,998 300 148,016
G 9 0 0 0 1] 40,000
0 4] 0 Q 0 1] 40,000
31,3589 2,365 4,237 12,312 1,998 300 188,016
(3,725} 10,129 5,326 16,221 4] 0 194,204
£27,644 $12,494 $9,563 $28,533 $1,998 $300 $382,220
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Public School Support Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995

Revenues:
From local sources:
Extracurricular activities
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support services:
Instructional staff:
Materials and supplies
Total instructional staff

Central
Capital outlay - new

Total central

Extracurricular
Materials and supplies

Total extracurricular
Total support services
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)

$118,515 $118,951 $436
189,996 189,906 0
308,421 308,857 436
1,250 1,250 0
1,250 1,250 0
73,213 73,213 0
73,213 73,213 0
119,454 119,454 0
119,454 119,454 0
193,917 193,917 0
193,917 193,917 0
114,504 114,940 436
53,862 53,862 0
$£168,366 $168,802 $436

76



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis)
Learning Links Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
From local sources:
Intergovernmental
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages
Materials and supplies
Total regular instruction

Support Services:
Instructional Staff:
Capital outlay - new
Total instructional staff

‘Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
QOther sources (uses)

Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources cver (under)
expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

WVariance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$4,000 $4,000 $0
1,136 {130 0
5,130 5,130 0
469 460 0
29 29 0
489 489 0
3,000 3,000 0
3,000 3,000 ¢
3,489 3,489 0
1,641 1,641 4]
{897) (897) 0
{897) (897) 0
744 744 0
2,416 2416 4]
$3,160 $£3,166 30
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actal (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Venture Capital Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revisad Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: _
Intergovernmental $25,000 $25,000 $0
Other revenue 229 229 0
Total revenues 25,229 25,229 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages 9,264 9,264 0
Fringe benefits 849 849 0
Materials and supplies 2,351 2,351 0
Total regular 12,464 12,464 0
Support services:
Instructional staff:
Purchased services 17,427 17,427 0
" Total instructional staff 17,427 17,427 0
Total expenditures 29,291 29,891 ) 0
Excess of revenues (under) expenditures (4,662) (4,662} 0
Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated) 17,050 17,050 0
Fund balance, June 30 $12,388 $12,388 30
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Athletic Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Extracurricular activities
Other local revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Extracurricular activities:

Sports oriented activities:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased setvices
Materials and supplies

Total sports oriented activities

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in

Tota! other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encurmbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$89,320 $90,128 ) $808
2,000 2,000 0
91,320 92,128 808
1,210 1,210 0
191 191 0
27,139 27,139 0
105,550 105,550 0
134,090 134,090 0
134,090 134,090 0
(42,770) (41,962) 808
40,000 40,000 0
40,000 40,000 0
(2,770 (1,962) 808
5,165 5,165 0
$2,395 $3,203 $808
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Auxiliary Services Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Interest
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Pupils:
Purchased services
Total pupils

Operation of non-instructional services:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total operation of
non-instructional services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$0 $5,269 $5,269
277,189 277,189 0
277,189 282,458 5,269
11,800 11,780 20
11,800 11,780 20
210,690 164,657 46,033
42,331 33,492 8,839
13,639 4,247 9,392
67,716 67,685 31
334,376 270,081 64,295
346,176 281,861 64,315
(68,987) 597 69,584
68,987 68,987 0
$0 $69,584 $69,584
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GA AP Budgetary Basis)

Career Education Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Curzent:
Instruction:
Reguiar:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total regular

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Advances in
Advances (out)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$8,841 $5,773 ($3,068)
8,841 5,773 (3,068)
4,560 4,500 0
1,635 1,635 0
6,135 6,135 0
6,135 6,135 0
2,706 (362) (3,068)
0 3,068 3,068
(2,705) {2,705) 0
(2,705) 363 3,068
1 1 0
0 0 0
§1 $1 £0
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LOYELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Teacher Development Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support services:

Instructional staff’
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and supplies

Total instructional staff

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$17,812 $17,812 $0
17,812 17,812 0
7,000 5,700 1,300
1,082 452 630
8,000 6,104 [,896
3,779 2,334 1,445
19,861 14,590 5,271
19,861 14,590 5,271
(2,049) 3,222 5,271
2,049 2,049 0
$0 $5,271 $5,271

82




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Management Information Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $10,750 £i10,750 80
Total revenues 16,750 10,750 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Support services:
Instructional Staff: .
Purchased services 5,000 0 5,000
Total instructional staff 5,000 0 5,000
Central:
Salaries and wages 5,000 ¢ 5,000
Fringe benefits 600 0 600
Purchased services . 5,000 0 5,000
Capital outlay 10,062 0 10,062
Total central 20,662 0 20,662
Total expenditures 25,662 i 25,662
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (14,912) 10,750 25,662
Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated) 14,912 14,912 0

Fund balance, June 3¢ 50 §25,662 $25,662
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Enfry Year Program Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Carrent:
Instruction:
Reguiar:

Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Funad balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 3¢

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budpget Actual {(Unfavorable)

$28,000 $28,000 $0
28,000 28,000 0
10,000 0 10,660
1,400 ] 1,400
12,600 420 12,180
4,600 2,600 1,400
28,000 3,020 24,980
0 24,980 24,980
g 0 G
30 $24,9380 $24,980
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

American Sign Language Grant Special Revenue Fund .

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 o ) o i -

Variance;
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental 50 $0 50
‘Total revenues 0 0 0
Expenditures

Current:

Instruction:
Regular: B
Capital outlay - new 2,661 2,553 108
Total expenditures 2,661 2,553 108
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (2,661) {2,553) 108
Fund balance, July I (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated} 2,661 2,661 0

Fund balance, June 30 (30) $108 $108

85



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Disadvantaged Pupil Impact Aid Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Special
Salaries and wages
Finge benefits
Total special

Support services:
Instructional staff:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Capital outlay
Total Instructional Staff
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Badget Actual (Unfavorable)
$33,472 $32,654 ($818)
Q 818 8ig
33,472 33472 Q
36,967 36,967 0
_. 5307 5,307 0
42,274 42,274 0
8,588 8,588 0
6,682 6,682 0
88 818 0
16,088 16,088 0
58,362 58,362 0
(24,890) {24,890) 0
24,890 24,890 0
30 $0 0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Textbook Subsidy Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 S

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $54,338 $54,338 30
Total revenues 54,338 54,338 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular

Materials and supplies 105,732 105,732 0

Total regular 105,732 105,732 0

Total expenditures 105,732 105,732 0
Excess of revenues

over (under) expenditures (51,394) (51,394) 0

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated) 51,394 51,394 0

Fund balance, June 30 $0 $0 $0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Eisenhower Grant Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:

Regular:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total regular

Support services:
Noninstructional:
Materials and supplies
Total noninstructional
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior

year encumbrances appropriated)

" Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$13,019 $13,019 8¢
13,019 13,019 s
10,280 6,280 4,00¢
570 970 ¢
3,701 2,897 80
6,569 5,124 1,44
21,520 15,271 B 6,245
287 o 28
287 0 - 28,
21,807 15,271 o 6,53
(8,788) (2,252) 6,53
8,78% 8,788 o |
(50) $6,536 8653
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) |
Title VI B/ Preschool

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

“Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Special:
Purchased services
Capital outlay - new

Total special instruction

Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Capital outlay

Total Pupil

Instructional staff:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Total instructional staff

Administration:
Fringe benefits
Materials and supplies

Capital outlay

Total administration

89

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$130,896 $124,971 ($5,925)
130,896 124,971 {5,925)
100 72 28
3,845 3,799 46
3,945 3,871 74
29,868 22,477 7,391
6,075 6,037 38
405 405 0
36,348 28,919 7,429
40,166 28,386 11,780
9,992 7,187 2,805
4,143 4,143 4]
15,051 14,981 70
69,352 54,697 14,655
1,013 808 205
750 608 142
750 674 76
2,513 2,090 423
Continued



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Title VI B/ Preschool (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

QOperations and non-instructional services:
Salaries and services
Fringe benefits
Materials and supplies

Total operations and non-instructional services

Total support services
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
vear ¢encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

S0

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

17,443 12,357 5,086
2,695 1,791 904
62 62 0
20,200 14,210 5,990
128,413 95,916 28,497
132,358 163,787 28,571
(1,462) 21,184 22,646
1,462 1,462 0
50 $22,646 $22,645




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Carl Perkins Education Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Purchased services
Supplies and materials
Total regular

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {(uses):

Advances in

Advances out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
vear encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Acinal (Unfavorable)
$11,622 $7,709 ($3,913)
11,622 7,709 3,913
5,300 5,300 0
2,526 2,526 0
7,826 7,826 0
7,826 7,826 0
3,796 i (3,913)
0 3,913 3,913
(3,796) (3,796} [§]
(3,796) 117 3,913
0 0 ¢
] ¢ y
50 $0 S0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary B

Title I Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenves

Expenditures:
Current:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outfay - new

Tota! special
Support services:

Pupil:

Salaries and wages

Fringe benefits

Purchased services

Total Pupil

Administration:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Parchased services

Total administration
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 {includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$258.316 $258,316 $0
258,316 258,316 0
145,244 122,229 23,015
22,770 22,767 3
14,692 2,401 12,291
11,780 11,779 1
1,778 1.778 ¢
(¢
196,264 160,954 35 ,3§G
31,770 22,397 937,

10,120 5,859 4,26
749 0 74

42,639 28,256 14,38

16,137 4,184 11,95

2,268 673 1,5¢

1,007 0 1,00

19,412 4,857 14.5:

258,315 194,067 64?2-

H 64,249 64,2
0 0
$1 $64,249 $64.2
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Title VI Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Tnstruction:

Regular:
Salaries and wages
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Capital outlay

Total regular

Support services:
Pupils:
Salaries and wages
Total pupils

Administration:

Salaries and wages
Total administration

Operations and non-instructional
Salaries and wages

Materials and supplies
Total aperations and nen-instructional services

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$16,150 $16,150 $0
16,150 16,150 0
7,000 612 6,388
4413 3,705 708
3,185 3,119 66
4,122 3,400 713
18,720 10,845 7,875
2,060 0 2,600
2,000 0 2,000
1,000 0 1,000
1,000 0 1,000
2,315 1,245 1,070
2,244 1,915 329
4,559 3,160 1,399
26,279 14,005 12,274
(10,129) 2,145 12,274
10,129 16,129 0
$0 $12,274 $12,274




LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT - N
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

EHA Pre-School Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actaal {Unfavorabie}
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $11,154 $11,154 $0
Total revenues 11,154 11,154 0
Expenditures:

Cusrent:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages 2,118 0 2,118
Fringe benefits 297 \] 297
Materials and supplies 2,767 2,096 671
Total speciat 5,182 2,006 3,086
Support services:
Pupil:
Salaries and wages 315 0 315
Fringe benefits 44 0 44
Purchased services 5,648 ' 0 5,648
Capital cutlay 4,054 3,684 370
Total pupil 10,061 3,684 6,377
Instructional staff:
Purchased services 208 108 100
Total instructional staff 208 108 100
Total expenditures 15451 5,888 9,563
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures (4,297 5,266 9,563
Other financing sources (uses):

Refund of prior year receipts (2,095) (2,095) 0
Total other financing sources (uses} {2,095) (2,095) 0

Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other uses (6,392) 3,171 9,563
¥ond balance, July 1 (includes prior 6,392 6,392 ¢

year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance (deficit), June 30 30 $9,563 $9,563
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LOVELAD CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Drug Free Schools Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:

Purchased services
Capital outlay - new

Total regular

Special:

Materials and supplies
Total special

Support services:

Pupil:

Purchased services

Total pupil

Administration:
Salaries and wages
Total administration

Operations and non-instructional services:
Purchased services
Materials and supplies

Total operations and non-instructional services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$0 $0 30
] ) 0
3,297 3,297 0
2,341 0 2,341
5,638 3,297 2,341
886 726 160
886 726 160
3,569 3,569 0
3,569 3,569 0
6,000 0 6,000
~ 6000 0 6,000
(300) (300) 0
a27 110 317
127 (190} 317
16,220 7,402 8,818
(16,220) (7,402) 8,818
16,220 16,220 0
50 $8,818 $8.818
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Telecomm Act Special Revenue Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $1,998 $1,998 $0
Total revenues 1,998 1,998 0
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Special:
Salaries and wages 0 0 0
Total special 0 V] 0
Total expenditures 0 0 0
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 1,998 1,998 0
Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior 0 0 ]
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance (deficit), June 30 - -$1,998 £1,998 30
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Continuous Improvement Grant Special Revenue Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
- Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental $10,000 $10,000 50
Total revenues 10,000 10,000 ¢
Expenditures:

Current:

Instruction:
Regular:
Purchased services 9,700 9,700 0
Materials and supplies 300 0 366
Total regular 10,000 9,700 300
Total expenditures 10,000 9,700 300
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures 0 380 300
Fund balance, July I (includes prior 0 ] a
year encumbrances appropriated)
Fund balance (deficit), June 30 $0 $300 $£300
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment
of general obligation bond principal and interest and certain other long-term obligations from
governmental resources when the District is obligated in some manner for the payment.

Since there is only one Debt Service Fund and the level of budgetary control is not greater than
that presented in the General Purpose Financial Statements, no additional financial statements
are presented here.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are used fo account for the financing and acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities, such as new school buildings and additions to existing buildings, or
for major renovation projects, including equipment purchases other than those financed by
Proprietary or Nonexpendable Trust Fund. The following are descriptions of each Capital
Projects Fund:

BUILDING: To account for all transactions related to all special bond funds in the District.
Proceeds from the sale of bonds, except premium and accrued interest, are paid into this fund.

PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT: To account for all transactions related to acquiring,
constructing or improving such permanent improvements as are authorized by Chapter 5705,
Revised Code.

SCHOOL NET: To account for revenues and expenditures related to the development and
implementation of the School Net network within the district.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
June 30, 1999
Permanent School
Building Improvement Net Totals

Assets:

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents $30,241,272 $202,940 $58,150 $30,502,36

Receivables:

Accrued interest 276,222 0 0 276,22
Total Assets 30,517,494 202,940 58,150 30,778,582
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 40,772 0 0 40,77
Contracts payable 215,052 0 0 215,05
Retainage payable 18,029 0 0 18,02¢
Accrued interest payable 333,333 0 0 333,33
Notes payable 20,000,000 0 0 20,000,00(
Total liabilities 20,607,186 0 0 20,607,18¢
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Reserved for encumbrances 15,863,642 2,033 a 15,845,675
Undesignated (5,953,334) 200,907 58,150 (5,694,277
Total fund equity (deficit) 9,510,308 202,940 58,150 16,171,398
Total Liabilities and fund equity $30,517,494 $202,940 $58,150 530,?78,,,5' 84
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOCL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balances

All Capital Projects Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Permanent Schocl
Building Improvement Net Totals
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $0 50 $354,860 $334,860
Investment 978,247 4] i} 978,247
Other revenues 0 186 0 186
Total revenues 978,247 186 354,860 1,333,293
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 0 9,611 288,465 298,080
Support services:
Pupil 4] 84,035 0 84,035
Instructional staff 0 0 16,814 16,814
Administration 1,406 0 o 1,406
Fiscal 7.333 0 o 7,333
Business 35974 0 g 35,974
Operations and maintensnce -0 40,282 ] 40,282
Central 14,479 61,561 31,575 107,615
Capital outlay 1,358,642 787,349 v 2,145,991
Debt Service:
Interest 333,333 9 0 333333
Total Expenditures 1,751,167 982,838 336,858 3,070,863
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures (772920) (982,652) 18,002 (1,737,570)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 10,000,000 1,753,317 0 11,753,317
Operating transfers (out) (1,316,772 0 0 1,315,772)
Proceeds of Bonds 2,000,000 0 0 2,000,000
Total other financing sources {uscs) 10,683,228 1,753,317 g 12,436,545
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other
financing uses 9,910,308 770,663 18,002 10,698,975
Fund balance, July 1 0 (567,725) 40,148 (527,577
Fund balance, June 30 $9,910,308 32(}7&940 $58,150 $10,171,398
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Building Capital Projects Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Interest

Tota] revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Administration
Purchased services

Total administration

Fiscal
Purchased services

Total fiscal

Business
Capital cutlay - new

Total business

Central
Purchased services

Total central

Site improvement services
Purchased services

Total site improvement services

Architecture and Engineering Services
Purchased services

Total architecture and engineering services
Building Acquisition and Construction
Purchased services

Capital outlay - new

Total building acquisition and construction

102

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabl
$1,112 $783,883 $782
1,112 783,883 782
1,406 1,406
1,406 1,406
7.333 7,333
7,333 7,333
35974 35,974
35,974 35,974
14,479 14,479
14,479 14,479
3,837,204 3,837,204
3,837,204 3,837,204
1,680,098 1,680,098
1,680,098 1,680,098
33,094 33,094
13,460,166 0 13,46
13,493,260 33,004 13,46
" Con



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Building Capital Projects Fund ' :
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Building Improvement Services
Purchased services 2,396,261 2,396,261
Capital outlay ~ new 9,217,213 9.217,213
Total building improvement services 11,613,474 11,613,474
Total capital outlay 30,624,036 17,163,870 13,460,1
Total expenditures 30,683,228 17,223,062 13,460,
Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures (30,682,116) (16,439,179 14,2421
OCther financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of bonds 2,000,000 2,000,000
Proceeds from sale of notes 30,000,000 30,000,000
Operating transfers (out) (1,316,772) (1,316,772)
Total other financing sources (uses) 30,683,228 30,683,228
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over {under)
expenditures and other financing uses ) 1,112 14,244,049 14,242,
Fund balance, July 1
0 0
Fund balance, June 30 $1,112 $14,244,049 $14,247.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Permanent Improvement - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
‘Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Capital outlay - new
Total regular
Support services:
Pupil:
Capital outlay - new
Total pupil

Operations and maintenance:
Capital outlay - new

Total operations and maintenance

Central
Capital outlay - new

Total Central
Site Improvement Services:
Purchased services

Capital outlay - new

Total site improvement services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabls
50 50
0 0
11,644 11,644
11,644 11,644
86,680 86,680
86,680 86,680
40,282 40,282
40,282 40,282
65,981 65,981
65,981 65,981
415,954 415,954
495512 495,512
911,466 911,466
1,116,053 1,116,053 )
(1,116,053) {1,116,053)
Contir:
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Permanent Improvement - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Other financing sources (uses):

Advanes (out)
Refund of prior year expenditures
Operating transfer in
Operating transfer out
Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over {under} expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

{436,545) (436,545) 0
186 186 0
2,869,183 2,869,183 0
(1,115,866) (1,115,866) 0
1,316,958 1,316,958 9
200,905 200,505 0
0 0 0
$200,905 $200,505 $0
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
School Net - Capital Projects Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 199%

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits

Capital outlay
Total regular
Support Services:
Instructional Staff:
Purchased services

Total instructional staff

Central:
Purchased services

Totzl central

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, July 1 (includes prior
year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund balance, June 30

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$354,860 $354,860 $0
354,860 354,860 0
75 75 0
12 12 0
414,550 356,402 58,148
414,637 356,489 58,148
16,814 16,814 (0}
16,814 16,814 {0)
31,575 31,575 0
31,575 31,575 0
463,026 404,878 58,148
(108,166) {50,018) 58,148
108,166 108,166 0
$0 $58,148 $58,148
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the expense (including
depreciation) of providing goods or services primarily or solely to the general public be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges. The following are descriptions of each of the
District's Enterprise Funds:

FOOD SERVICE: To account for all revenues and expenses related to the provision of food
services, including breakfast and lunch, for the District students and staff.

LATCH KEY: To account for all revenues and expenses related to the Latch Key Program for
the schools in the district. -
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, GHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 1999

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Intergovernmental
Inventory held for resale

Total Current Assets

‘Non-current assets:
Fixed assets (net of accumulated

depreciation)
Total Asseis

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accrued wages
Compensated absences payable
Interfund payabie
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Retained Earnings:
Unreserved
Total retained earnings

Total Liabilities and fund equity

Food Latch
Service Key

$1,431 $1,680
10,922 0
20,472 0
32,825 1,680
98,534 0
131,359 1,680
82,554 0
11316 0
25,189 0
12,307 0
131,366 0
131,366 0

) 1,680

) 1,680

$131,359 $1,680 §
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Retained Earnings

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Operating Revenues:
Tuition and fees
Sales
Other revenues

Total revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues:
Federal donated commodities
QOperating grants
Total non-operating revenues
Net Income

Retained Earnings, July 1

Retained Earnings, June 30

Food Latch
Service Key Totals

$0 $678 $678

659,010 0 659,010

28 0 28

659,038 678 659,716

322,665 12,663 335,328

123,954 1,747 125,701

8,777 0 8,777

411,901 0 411,901

31,662 0 31,662

898,959 14,410 913,369
~(239,921) (13,732) (253,653)

74,710 0 74,710

84,598 0 84,598

159,308 0 159,308
(80,613) {13,732) (94,345)

80,606 15,412 96,018

7 $1,680 $1,673
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, oHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALIL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from tuition and fees
Cash received from miscellaneous
Cash received from sales

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

Cash payments to employees for services
Net cash provided by (used for) operating acitivities

Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:

Operating grants received

Miscellaneous
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30

Reconcihiation of operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Operating income (Joss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
Donated commmodities nsed
Changes in assets and lizbilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in inventory held for resale
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits

Increase {decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for} operating activities

Food Latch
Service Key
$0 $676
2,124 0
659,010 0
(353,780) (20)
(425,787) (14,408)
{118.433) (13,732)
86,361 0
13,000 0
99,361 0
(15,072) (13,752)
24,503 15,432
1,431 1,680
(239,921) (13,732) (:
31,662 0
74,710 4]
2,096 0
12,834 g
(10,927 i) <
25,693 0
(4,861) 0
9,719) Q
121,488 20) |
($118,433) ($13,752) (3
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to another department or agency of the District on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Since there is only one Internal Service Fund and the level of budgetary control is not greater
than that presented in the General Purpose Financial Statements, no further financial statements
are presented here.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The
District's fiduciary funds include an Expendable Trust Fund, Nonexpendable Trust Fund and
Agency Funds. The following are descriptions of each of the District's Fiduciary Funds:

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

SPECIAL TRUST: To account for donations received by the District in a trustee capacity.
(Since there is only one Expendable Trust Fund, the only financial statement presented here is
the combining balance sheet).

AGENCY FUND

STUDENT ACTIVITIES: To account for the resources that belong to the various student groups
in the District. The funds account for sales and other revenue generating activities by student
activity programs which have students involved in the management of the program.

DISTRICT AGENCY: To account for assets received and disbursed where the Dlstnct 18
required to act in an agency capacity.

112



LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

June 30, 1999

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Interfund payable
Due to students

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved:

Undesignated
Total fund equity (deficit)

Totat Liabilities and fund equity

Smdent
Expendable Activities District
Trust Agency Agency Totals
$51 $62,770 54,712 567,533
51 62,770 4,712 67,533
0 6,600 0 6,600
0 56,170 4,712 60,882
0 62,770 4,712 67,482
51 0 0 51
51 0 Q 51
$51 $62,770 $4,712 $67,533
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIC
Statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to students

Total Habilities

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to students

Total Liabilities

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liahilities
Due to students

Total liabilities

Student Activities Fund
Beginning N - ; “Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$50,381 $131,397 $119,008 $62,770
50,381 131,397 115,008 62,770
50,381 131,397 119,008 62,770
$50,381 $131,397 $119,008 $62,770
District Agency Fund
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$3,508 $4,837 $3,633 $4,712
3,508 4,837 3,633 4,712
3,508 4,837 3,633 4712
$3,508 $4,837 $3,633 $4,712
Total All Agency Funds
Beginning “Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$53,889 $135,234 $122,641 $67,482
0 0 0 0
53,889 136,234 122,641 67,482
53,889 136,234 122,641 67,482
$53,889 $136,234 $122,641 $67,482
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

This account group is used to account for all land and land improvements, building and building
improvements, furniture and equipment not used in the operations of the Proprietary Funds. The
majority of the District's assets are reflected in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source
June 30, 1999

General fixed assets:

Land and land improvements $1,436,356
Buildings and building improvements 15,791,599
Furniture and equipment 4,865,294
Construction in progress 1,294,018
Total General Fixed Assets $23,387,267

Investment in general fixed assets by source:

General Fund $253,552
Special Revenue Funds 120,072
Capital Projects Funds 2,466,598
Acquisitions Prior to July 1, 1997* 20,547,045
Total General Fixed Assets $23,387,267
b ————

* Represents older assets for which fund source cannot practically be obtained.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of General Fixed Assets

By Function and Type
June 30, 1999

Land Buildings Construction
and land and building Furniture and In
Function Improvements Improvements Equipment Progress Total

Instruction:

Regular $149,652 $334,583 $521,122 50 $1,005,357

Special 0 0 36,814 0 36,814
“Total instruction 149,652 334,583 557,936 0 1,042,171
Support services:

Pupil 0 4] 55,877 0 55,877

Instructional staff 0 0 4,836 ] 4,836

Administration 0 0 3,088 o 3,088

Fiscal 0 0 3,445 G 3,445

Business 9 0 34,653 0 34,653

Operations and maintenance 0 0 18,680 0 18,680

Pupil transportation 0 0 860 G 360

Central 0 0 176,546 o 176,546
Total support services 0 0 297,985 0 297985
Capital Outlay o 39,293 166,755 0 206,048
Construction in Progress 0 G 0 1,294,018 1,294,018
Other - Pre July 1, 1997 items* 1,286,704 15,417,723 3,842,618 ] 20,547,045
Total General Fixed Assets $1,436,356 $15,791,59% $4,865,294 $1,294,018 $23,387,267

“Represents older assets for which function cannot practically be obtained.
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LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed

Assets by Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

Balance at Balance at
Function July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
Instruction:
Regular $25,766 $979,591 56 $1,005,357
Special 0 36,814 0 36,814
Total Instruction 25,766 1,016,405 0 1,042,171
Support services:
Pupil 8,032 47,845 0 55,877
Instructional staff G 4,836 0 4,836
Administration 3,088 0 0 3,088
Fiscal o 3,445 ¢ 3,445
Business (¢} 34,653 0 34,653
Operations and maintenance 4,495 14,185 0 18,680
Pupil transportation 0 860 0 860
Central 27,181 149,365 0 176,546
Total Support services 42,796 255,189 0 297,985
Capital Qutlay 206,048 0 0 206,048
Construction in Progress 0 1,254,018 0 1,294,018
Other - Pre July 1, 1997 items* 20,661,705 0 114,660 20,547,045
Total General Fixed Assets $20,936,315 $2,565,612 $114,660 $23,387,267

*Represents older assets for which function cannot practically be obtained.
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

LOVELAND CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

HAMILTON COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poabbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JANUARY 25, 2000
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